
 

NOTICE: Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in 
advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

Regular Meeting of the 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
OCTOBER 4, 2010 

CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  Submitted By 
      The City Manager 

mailto:clerk@troymi.gov�




 

 

 
 
 
TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda. Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members. I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
 
 
 
  

 





 

 

      

  

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
October 4, 2010 – 7:30 PM 

Council Chambers 
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

INVOCATION: Pastor A.C. Phipps of Evanswood Church of God 1 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 1 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 1 

B. ROLL CALL: 1 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS: 1 

C-1 Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations Scheduled 1 

a) Presentation given by Marla J. Larsen-Williams, Real Estate Specialist with 
the United States Postal Service regarding Troy’s Main Post Office Property ..... 1 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

D-1 No Carryover Items 1 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

E-1 No Public Hearings Scheduled 1 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT: 1 

G. RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT 2 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 2 

H-1 No Postponed Items 2 



 

 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 2 

I-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: 2 

I-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: None Scheduled 2 

I-3 Request for Closed Session – None Requested 2 

I-4 Winter Maintenance Agreement – Road Commission for Oakland County (RCOC) 2 

I-5 Consulting/Professional Services Agreement with the International City 
Management Association (ICMA) 3 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 3 

J-1a Approval of “I” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 3 

J-1b  Address of “I” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council 4 

J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 4 

J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Proposed 4 

J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions: 4 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 5: Approval to Expend Budgeted Funds .......... 4 

J-5 Application for New SDM License for San Marino Club, Inc. 5 

J-6 Announcement of Public Hearing for October 18, 2010 – Community Development 
Block Grant (CDBG) 2011 Application 6 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 6 

K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: No Announcements Forwarded 6 

K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at  
some future point in time): No Memorandums Forwarded 6 



 

 

L. COUNCIL REFERRALS: 6 

L-1  No Council Referrals Advanced 7 

M. COUNCIL COMMENTS 7 

M-1   No Council Comments Advanced 7 

N. REPORTS 7 

N-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 7 

a) Library Advisory Board – Final – June 10, 2010 ................................................... 7 
b) Board of Zoning Appeals – Draft – July 20, 2010 ................................................. 7 
c) Board of Zoning Appeals – Final – July 20, 2010 ................................................. 7 
d) Liquor Advisory Committee Minutes – Final – August 9, 2010 ............................. 7 
e) Planning Commission Special/Study Meeting – Final – August 24, 2010 ............ 7 
f) Planning Commission/Birmingham Planning Board Special/Joint - Draft – 

September 8, 2010 ............................................................................................... 7 
g) Liquor Advisory Committee – Draft – September 13, 2010 .................................. 7 
h) Planning Commission Regular Meeting – Draft – September 14, 2010 ............... 7 
i) Board of Zoning Appeals – Draft – September 21, 2010...................................... 7 
j) Board of Zoning Appeals/Study Session – Draft – September 21, 2010 .............. 7 
k) Election Commission – Draft – September 23, 2010 ............................................ 7 

N-2 Department Reports: 7 

a) 2010 Third Quarter Litigation Report .................................................................... 7 

N-3  Letters of Appreciation: No Letters of Appreciation 7 

N-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Forwarded 7 

N-5  Communication from the State of Michigan Public Service Commission Regarding  
Notice of Hearing for the Natural Gas Customers of The Consumers Energy  
Company –  Case No. U-16441 7 

N-6  Library Proposals / Ordinance Initiative Petition 7 

O. STUDY ITEMS 7 

O-1  No Study Items 7 



 

 

P. CLOSED SESSION: 7 

P-1 None Requested 7 

Q. ADJOURNMENT 7 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 8 

Monday, October 11, 2010 - Industrial Development District (IDD) and Industrial 
Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Magna Powertrain .............................. 8 

Monday, October 11, 2010 - Industrial Development District (IDD) and Industrial 
Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Witzenmann USA, LLC ...................... 8 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 8 

Monday, October 11, 2010 Regular Meeting ........................................................... 8 
Monday, October 18, 2010 Regular Meeting ........................................................... 8 
Monday, November 8, 2010 Regular Meeting ......................................................... 8 
Monday, November 15, 2010 Regular Meeting ....................................................... 8 
Monday, November 22, 2010 Regular Meeting ....................................................... 8 
Monday, December 6, 2010 Regular Meeting ......................................................... 8 
Monday, December 13, 2010 Regular Meeting ....................................................... 8 
Monday, December 20, 2010 Regular Meeting ....................................................... 8 

SCHEDULED SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 8 

Monday, October 11, 2010 (5:30 PM) Barry Demp Coaching -Special Meeting ..... 8 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA October 4, 2010 
 

- 1 - 

INVOCATION: Pastor A.C. Phipps of Evanswood Church of God 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 

B. ROLL CALL: 
a)  Mayor Louise E. Schilling 

Robin Beltramini 
Mayor Pro Tem Wade Fleming 
Martin Howrylak 
Mary Kerwin 
Maureen McGinnis 
Dane Slater 

 
b) Excuse Absent Council Members: 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-10- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of              at the 
Regular City Council Meeting of Monday, October 4, 2010 due to            . 
 
Yes: 
No: 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:  
C-1 Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations Scheduled 
 
a) Presentation given by Marla J. Larsen-Williams, Real Estate Specialist with the United 

States Postal Service regarding Troy’s Main Post Office Property 
 
D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 
D-1 No Carryover Items 
 
E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
E-1 No Public Hearings Scheduled 
 
F. PUBLIC COMMENT:  

In accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 – 
Members of the Public and Visitors 
 

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA October 4, 2010 
 

- 2 - 

Any person not a member of the City Council may address the Council with recognition of the 
Chair, after clearly stating the nature of his/her inquiry or comment. City Council requests that if 
you do have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you are 
encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved satisfactorily, to 
the Mayor and Council. 
 
• Petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation time that may be extended with 

the majority consent of City Council. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to five 

(5) minutes to address any Public Hearing item. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to five 

minutes to address Postponed, Regular Business or Consent Agenda items or any other item 
as permitted under the Open Meetings Act during the Public Comment portion of the agenda. 

• City Council may waive the requirements of this section by a majority of the City Council 
members. 

• City Council may wish to schedule a Special Meeting for Agenda items that are related to 
topics where there is significant public input anticipated. 

• Through a request of the Chair and a majority vote of City Council, public Comment may be 
limited when there are fifteen (15) or more people signed up to speak either on a Public 
Hearing item or for the Public Comment period of the agenda. 

G. RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 
H-1 No Postponed Items 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 
I-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees:  
 
a) Mayoral Appointments: None Scheduled 
 
b)  City Council Appointments/Confirmation: None Scheduled 
 
I-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: None Scheduled 
 
I-3 Request for Closed Session – None Requested 
 
I-4 Winter Maintenance Agreement – Road Commission for Oakland County (RCOC) 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-10- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA October 4, 2010 
 

- 3 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the 2010-2011 Winter Maintenance 
Agreement between the Road Commission for Oakland County (RCOC) and the City of Troy 
for Snow and Ice Control of nine segments of Priority I and Priority II county roads, which are 
described and outlined in Exhibit A;  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and 
City Clerk to EXECUTE the necessary documents, a copy of this agreement, which is 
authorized by the provisions of 1951 PA 51 (MCL 247.651 et seq.), shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting.  
 
Yes:  
No:  
 
I-5 Consulting/Professional Services Agreement with the International City 

Management Association (ICMA) 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-10- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS an agreement for consulting / 
professional services with the International City Management Association (ICMA) of 
Washington, DC, not-to-exceed $208,360.00 including travel costs, in accordance with the 
Professional Services Agreement to be dated October 5, 2010, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting with the award CONTINGENT upon the 
contractor’s submission of properly executed contract documents and all other specified 
requirements; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk 
to EXECUTE the documents on behalf of the City of Troy; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the General Fund Budget is AMENDED by increasing the 
Human Resources budget by $208,360.00 and that the source of funds will come from the 
Capital Projects Fund Local Roads budget. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
  
J. CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
J-1a Approval of “I” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-10- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA October 4, 2010 
 

- 4 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 
presented with the exception of Item(s)  ______________, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED 
after Consent Agenda (I) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
J-1b  Address of “I” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 
J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-10- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Minutes of the 6:30 PM Special 
and the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meetings of September 20, 2010 as submitted. 
 
J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Proposed 
 
J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:  
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 5: Approval to Expend Budgeted Funds 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-10- 
 
1. Troy Community Coalition 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the expenditure of funds budgeted in 
the 2010/2011 fiscal year to the Troy Community Coalition to provide community services to 
prevent drug and alcohol abuse in the amount of $50,000.00; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and 
City Clerk to EXECUTE the agreements to fund these services, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 

 
2. Common Ground 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the expenditure of funds budgeted in 
the 2010/2011 fiscal year to Common Ground to provide community service programs to the 
residents of the City of Troy in the amount of $2,040.00; and 
  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and 
City Clerk to EXECUTE the agreements to fund these services, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
 

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA October 4, 2010 
 

- 5 - 

3. HAVEN 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the expenditure of funds budgeted in 
the 2010/2011 fiscal year to the HAVEN Program to provide community services to support 
victims of domestic assault for the residents of the City of Troy in the amount of $4,370.00; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and 
City Clerk to EXECUTE the agreements to fund these services, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 

 
4. Avondale Youth Assistance 

 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the expenditure of funds budgeted in 
the 2010/2011 fiscal year to the Avondale Youth Assistance to provide counseling and 
community services to prevent youth offender recidivism to the residents of Troy who reside in 
the Avondale School District at a cost of $2,920.00 which shall be paid in one installment; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and 
City Clerk to EXECUTE the agreements to fund these services, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
5. Troy Youth Assistance 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the expenditure of funds budgeted in 
the 2010/2011 fiscal year to the Troy Youth Assistance to provide diversion programs and 
community services to the residents of the City of Troy at a cost of $17,080.00 which shall be 
paid in quarterly installments; and 
  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and 
City Clerk to EXECUTE the agreements to fund these services, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
J-5 Application for New SDM License for San Marino Club, Inc. 
 
a) New License 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-10- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONSIDERS for APPROVAL San Marino Club, 
Inc. for a New SDM License located at 1685-1695 East Big Beaver Road, Troy, MI 48083, 
Oakland County {MLCC Request #487689} “above all others”; and hereby AUTHORIZES the 
Mayor and City Clerk to EXECUTE the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA October 4, 2010 
 

- 6 - 

b) Agreement 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-10- 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter into agreements with applicants 
for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with San Marino Club, Inc. for a New SDM license located at 1685-1695 East Big Beaver Road, 
Troy, MI 48083, Oakland County {MLCC Request #487689} and hereby AUTHORIZES the 
Mayor and City Clerk to EXECUTE the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
J-6 Announcement of Public Hearing for October 18, 2010 – Community Development 

Block Grant (CDBG) 2011 Application 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-10- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SCHEDULES a Public Hearing at their Regular 
meeting on Monday, October 18, 2010 at 7:30 PM or as soon thereafter as the agenda will 
permit for the purpose of hearing public comments on the adoption of the Community 
Development Block Grant 2011 application in the approximate amount of $173,970.00 to fund 
eligible projects. 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 
K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: No Announcements Forwarded 
 
K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 
 some future point in time): No Memorandums Forwarded 
 
L. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  

Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 
Placement on the Agenda 

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA October 4, 2010 
 

- 7 - 

L-1  No Council Referrals Advanced  

M. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
M-1   No Council Comments Advanced 

N. REPORTS  
N-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 
a) Library Advisory Board – Final – June 10, 2010 
b) Board of Zoning Appeals – Draft – July 20, 2010 
c) Board of Zoning Appeals – Final – July 20, 2010 
d) Liquor Advisory Committee Minutes – Final – August 9, 2010 
e) Planning Commission Special/Study Meeting – Final – August 24, 2010 
f) Planning Commission/Birmingham Planning Board Special/Joint - Draft – September 8, 

2010 
g) Liquor Advisory Committee – Draft – September 13, 2010 
h) Planning Commission Regular Meeting – Draft – September 14, 2010 
i) Board of Zoning Appeals – Draft – September 21, 2010 
j) Board of Zoning Appeals/Study Session – Draft – September 21, 2010 
k) Election Commission – Draft – September 23, 2010 

N-2 Department Reports:  
a) 2010 Third Quarter Litigation Report 
 
N-3  Letters of Appreciation: No Letters of Appreciation  
 
N-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Forwarded 
 
N-5  Communication from the State of Michigan Public Service Commission Regarding 
 Notice of Hearing for the Natural Gas Customers of The Consumers Energy 
 Company –  Case No. U-16441 
 
N-6  Library Proposals / Ordinance Initiative Petition 
 

O. STUDY ITEMS 
O-1  No Study Items 

P. CLOSED SESSION: 
P-1 None Requested 

Q. ADJOURNMENT 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA October 4, 2010 
 

- 8 - 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
 
 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
Monday, October 11, 2010 - Industrial Development District (IDD) and Industrial Facilities 
Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Magna Powertrain 
Monday, October 11, 2010 - Industrial Development District (IDD) and Industrial Facilities 
Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Witzenmann USA, LLC 

 
SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 

Monday, October 11, 2010 ............................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, October 18, 2010 ............................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, November 8, 2010 ............................................................................. Regular Meeting 
Monday, November 15, 2010 ........................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, November 22, 2010 ........................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, December 6, 2010 ............................................................................. Regular Meeting 
Monday, December 13, 2010 ........................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, December 20, 2010 ........................................................................... Regular Meeting 

 

SCHEDULED SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
Monday, October 11, 2010 (5:30 PM) ......................... Barry Demp Coaching -Special Meeting  

 



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:  September 23, 2010                             
 
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager     
  
From:  Mark F. Miller, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services  
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
 
Subject: Winter Maintenance Agreement, Road Commission for Oakland County 
 
 
Background 
 
Since 2001 the City of Troy has serviced all county roads in Troy for snow and ice control.  The 
amount of compensation to the City has not increased since the 2007/2008 Winter Maintenance 
Contract, which does not cover costs but does provide for a higher level of service by the City of Troy.     
 
Attached are copies of the proposed 2010/2011 Winter Maintenance Agreement between the Road 
Commission for Oakland County and the City of Troy, the 2009/2010 Winter Maintenance Guidelines 
(2010/2011 guidelines have not been finalized), the RCOC Winter Maintenance Historical Funding 
report and a map of the roads in Troy.  In review of these guidelines, the City has no county roads 
that fall into the highest priority category (Critical Priority).  The county roads that do fall into Priority I 
are Crooks and Big Beaver, with all other county roads falling into Priority II.   
 
In a basic comparison, the City provides 1 truck for each of the 9 segments of county roads, with a 
road segment averaging 5.5 miles long and 3.5 lanes in width.  The RCOC has stated, that based on 
the intensity of a snow and ice event, they would have at most 1 truck for every 3 segments or as little 
as 1 truck for all 9 segments of roadway.  
 
The City of Troy and the RCOC vary greatly when comparing response times for snow and ice 
control.  The 9 different road segments vary in length of time for treatment of ice and snow, but using 
the RCOC method of treating 25 lane miles per hour, it will take an average of 52 minutes to treat one 
segment. Utilizing the 2009/2010 snow and ice control measures, on average the City of Troy can 
treat all 9 road segments with 1 truck per route in 52 minutes. The RCOC completes all nine road 
segments with one truck per 3 routes in 2 hours and 37 minutes. The RCOC level of service would 
not provide some service for road segments for more than 1 hour and 44 minutes or more. This is the 
highest level of service that the RCOC can provide. With only 1 truck for all nine routes, the initial 
cleanup could take nearly 8 hours to treat all of the RCOC roads just in Troy. Treatment times and 
level of service will also vary greatly based on storm intensity, length of storm temperature, wind, time 
of day and traffic volumes.  
 

pallottaba
Text Box
I-04



 

 

2 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

The level of service that the RCOC would strive for at the morning and evening rush hours on the 
priority-I roads (Big Beaver and Crooks Roads) would be bare wheel tracks. Based on the RCOC 
method of treating 25 lane miles per hour it would take the RCOC 1 hour and 14 minutes to treat all 
lanes of roadway one time.   
 
 

 
Figure 1 Bare Wheel Tracks on roads 

 
All other road segments are priority-II roads and the RCOC would strive to have ¼ of slush in the 
wheel tracks. Keep in mind that some road segements may not even see treament for 1 hour and 44 
minutes and will not be fully treated for up to 2 hours and 37 minutes.  
 
 

 
Figure 2 Slush Roads 

 
All other times the level of service would be intermediate to minimum with ¼” slush in wheel tracks to 
slush in intersections, on curves and on hills. 
 



 

 

3 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
The RCOC is willing to divide the 9 road segments so that the City of Troy can select the road 
segments to be maintained by the City and the RCOC will maintain the remaining segments. This 
allows the City to select roads for a higher level of service. The charges will be identified in Exhibit A 
of the winter maintenance contract. For example; if the City of Troy selects Big Beaver Road 
($37,678.80) and Crooks Road ($29,797.87) the funding provided to the City would total $67,476.67. 
 
Salt contracts with the State of Michigan are approved. The price for salt purchases this winter for the 
City of Troy is $47.28 per ton, 13.6% lower than last winter.  It continues to be very evident that this 
agreement is beneficial to all parties with regards to level and timeliness of service.  The City is able 
to administer Snow & Ice Control in a more timely and uniform manner to it’s high priority roads, while 
allowing the County to concentrate on it’s highest priority roads, I-75 and M-59. 
 
Recommendation 
 
City Management is in agreement with the measured lane mile figures as presented, and with the 
calculations used to determine the level of compensation for each road configuration; therefore we 
recommend that the proposed maintenance agreement be approved with funding that is attached to 
the road segment selected by City Council. 
 
If City Council’s decision is to approve the funding agreement but limit it to specific roadways, Council 
can offer a substitute resolution listing the roadways the City will be maintaining. 
 
Fund Availability 
 
Funds are available in the operating budgets of the Streets Division for snow and ice control for 
county roads. 
 
 
City Attorney’s Review as to Form and Legality  
 
Approved as to Form and Legality:  
            
      Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 TR/S: Miller’s Review/ Agenda 09.13.10 RB: Winter Maintenance Agreement RCOC 





































 
 

ROAD COMMISSION FOR OAKLAND COUNTY 
WINTER MAINTENANCE GUIDELINES 

 
2009/2010 

 
 
 
I PURPOSE 
 

The intent of the Winter Maintenance Guidelines is to provide a plan for winter snow and ice 
control in a manner to reasonably control hazardous conditions caused by snow and ice on roads 
maintained by the Road Commission. 

 
The purpose of these guidelines is to: 

 
 1. Identify roadway factors, weather conditions, and operational adjustments that must be 

considered in performing winter maintenance. 
 
 2. Prescribe guidelines regarding winter maintenance procedures and practices. 
 

 3. Provide operating personnel with a clear understanding of Road Commission plans for 
implementation of the Board policy. 

 
 
II FACTORS TO BE CONSIDERED IN PERFORMING WINTER MAINTENANCE 
 

Every winter storm is characterized by a unique combination of temperature, precipitation, and 
pavement conditions that must be considered in selecting the appropriate maintenance strategy.  
Given the daily and weekly traffic patterns of the County, the day of the week and the time of day 
when the storm occurs are also factors. 

 
It is not possible to summarize every conceivable storm situation and alternative strategy.  
Judgment and experience must be exercised in tailoring the response as conditions change and 
the work progresses. 

 
Understanding the various factors involved, and how they interact, however, is essential to 
ensuring that the initial response to a winter storm is rapid and effective. 

 
 

A. Road Condition and Traffic Considerations 
 

Traffic volume is a factor in establishing the priority and level of maintenance to be 
performed.  The most heavily traveled roads are generally maintained first, except in 
situations where abnormal conditions are known to exist or emergencies involving public 
health and safety occur.  Conditions such as hills and sharp curves also contribute to the 
priority given to a road. 

 
 
 

 



 2 

    
State and County roads will be maintained using the following priority scheme: 

 
  1. 

Critical Priority roads are paved State and County roads with traffic volumes normally 
greater than 10,000 vehicles per day per single lane and/or 40,000 vehicles per day with 
roads four or more lanes. 

Critical Priority 

 
 2. 

Priority I roads are paved State and County roads generally with volumes of 2,500 to 
10,000 vehicles per day per single lane.  In addition, terrain and road alignments are 
factors in assigning this priority.  Priority I may also be assigned to roads to achieve route 
continuity and efficiency. 

Priority I 

 
 3.  

Priority II roads are other paved County roads shown on District salt route sheets 
contained as Appendix A of this document.  Priority II roads may be maintained as part of 
higher priority routes, but are generally maintained after Critical and Priority I roads are 
cleared. 

Priority II 

 
 4. 

Priority III roads are those paved roads providing access to hospitals, schools, and other 
significant traffic generators, and not categorized as Critical, Priority I or Priority II roads.  
Priority III roads are shown on each District's Priority III route maps. 

Priority III 

 
  5.  

Roads under the jurisdiction of the Road Commission not designated by the priority 
scheme outlined above are Priority IV and Priority V roads.  Priority IV roads include 
mile-type local roads and primary gravel roads.  Priority V roads include all other roads 
and subdivision streets. 

Priority IV and Priority V Roads 

 
 
 B. Day of Week and Time of Day Considerations 
 

When winter storms occur they are categorized as being "Critical", "Intermediate", or 
"Minimal" depending upon the time of day and day of the week.  These times of 
occurrence are closely tied to travel patterns in the county. 

 
 1.  

Critical level situations occur during the morning and evening rush hours from 6:00 a.m. 
to 9:00 a.m. and from 3:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m., Monday through Friday. 

Situation "A" - Critical Level Time 

 
The maintenance objective during critical situations is to achieve an optimal pavement 
condition by 6:00 a.m. or 3:00 p.m. and to maintain it through the critical period.  The 
optimal pavement condition varies by road priority: 

 
Road Priority  
Critical Priority  75% Bare Pavement 

Optimal Pavement Condition 

Priority I   Bare Wheel Tracks. 
Priority II   1/4" or less slush in wheel tracks. 



 3 

 
 2. 

Intermediate level situations occur during off-peak periods from 9:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m., 
Monday through Friday, from 6:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. on Saturday and from 8:00 a.m. to 
7:00 p.m. on Sunday and Holidays.  The maintenance objectives during these periods are: 

Situation "B" - Intermediate Level Time 

 
Road Priority 

  Critical Priority   Bare Wheel Tracks. 
Optimal Pavement Condition 

  Priority I   1/4" or less slush in wheel tracks. 
Priority II   Slush in wheel tracks in intersections, on curves or on 

hills. 
 
  3. 

Situation C is in effect for storms during night and early morning hours from 7:00 p.m. to 
6:00 a.m., Monday through Saturday and from 7:00 p.m. to 8:00 a.m. on Sunday and 
Holidays.  During Situation C, the objective is to maintain pavements to the following 
levels: 

Situation "C" - Minimum Level Time 

 
Road Priority 

 Critical Priority:  1/4" or less slush in wheel tracks. 
Optimal Pavement Condition 

 Priority I:  Slush in wheel tracks. 
   Priority II:  Routine treatment unless a hazard is present. 

 
These Situations govern maintenance operations during storms only.  As a consequence, 
Priority III, Priority IV, and Priority V roads may be maintained only as part of higher 
priority routes, as time permits, or in the event of known hazards or emergencies during 
storms. 

 
The day of week and time of day considerations are summarized in Exhibit I on page 5. 
 
  

C. Precipitation and Temperature Considerations 
 

 1. 
The type and amount of precipitation both present at the outset and received during the 
storm, are important factors in determining the maintenance strategy. 

Precipitation: 

 
If pavement is dry at the outset of a snowstorm, and temperatures are below 25 degrees 
Fahrenheit, traffic may keep the pavement bare and dry during the storm.  Under these 
conditions, salt may not be required.  Dry snow may be allowed to accumulate and be 
bladed off provided no icing develops. 
 
If the pavement is wet at the outset, snow will begin to stick to the surface immediately.  
Salting is required as soon as possible.  Whenever snow accumulates to one inch or more, 
the surface should be bladed off prior to applying salt. 

 
Sleet or freezing rainstorm requires application of salt as soon as possible to prevent icing 
of pavement surfaces. 

 
 



 4 

 
 

Preferential icing is a special condition; generally occurring on bridge decks in the 
beginning of the winter season and in early spring.  Preferential icing occurs when 
moisture is present and bridge deck temperatures are less than bridge approach surface 
temperatures.  During these conditions, bridge decks become icy without corresponding 
icing of roadway surfaces.  Preferential icing conditions require salting as soon as 
possible after notice. 

 
   2. 

The effectiveness of salting operations is closely tied to temperature.  Sunshine and traffic 
increases the effectiveness of salt.  As temperatures decrease, more salt must be applied 
to achieve the same level of effectiveness.  At temperatures of 10 degrees Fahrenheit or 
less, producing bare pavement using only salt becomes very difficult. 

Temperature 

 
Exhibit II, on page 6, prescribes treatments given the storm forecast and prevailing road 
condition at the time maintenance operations commence. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 5 

 
 

ROAD COMMISSION FOR OAKLAND COUNTY 
WINTER MAINTENANCE EQUIPMENT CALLOUT SITUATIONS 

 
EXHIBIT I 

 
 Sunday/ 

Holidays 
Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

1:00 A.M.        
2:00 A.M.        
3:00 A.M.  SITUATION  C  MINIMUM LEVEL  
4:00 A.M.        
5:00 A.M.        
6:00 A.M.        
7:00 A.M.        
8:00 A.M.  SITUATION  A  CRITICAL LEVEL  
9:00 A.M.        

10:00 A.M.        
11:00 A.M.        
12:00 P.M.        
1:00 P.M.  SITUATION  B  INTERMEDIATE LEVEL  
2:00 P.M.        
3:00 P.M.        
4:00 P.M.        
5:00 P.M.        
6:00 P.M.  SITUATION  A  CRITICAL LEVEL  
7:00 P.M.        
8:00 P.M.        
9:00 P.M.        

10:00 P.M.  SITUATION  C  MINIMUM LEVEL  
11:00 P.M.        
12:00 A.M.        
 
 
 



 6 

EXHIBIT II 
TREATMENT GUIDELINES 

 
    

ROAD 
CONDITIONS 

FORECAST 
STORM 

FORECAST 
TEMPERATURE 

RESPONSE 

    
WET Any accumulation of 

snow, sleet or freezing 
rain 

30 degrees or below If freezing rain or sleet, apply salt immediately at the rate of 
400#/2L.M. and repeat as necessary to prevent ice packs from 
forming. 
If snow, apply salt at the rate indicated in Exhibit IV. 
If snow continues and accumulates, blade and continue to patrol for 
icy spots. 

    
    

WET Any accumulation of 
snow 

Below 30 degrees and 
falling 

Apply salt at the rate indicated by Exhibit IV as soon as possible.  
If snow continues and accumulates plow and reapply salt. 

    
    

DRY Any accumulation of 
snow 

Below 20 degrees and 
falling 

Try to keep the pavement dry.  Apply salt at wet or icy spots only, 
at the rate indicated in Exhibit V.  If snow continues and 
accumulates, blade and continue to patrol for icy spots. 

    
    

DRY Any accumulation of 
snow 

Below 10 degrees Apply salt or sand/chloride mixture to designated signalized 
intersections, hills, curves, and ramps.  If snow accumulates, plow 
and reapply salt or sand/chloride.  Roads that glaze over or become 
wet may be salted at the appropriate application rate. 

    
    

DRIFTING SNOW   High Winds  Control drifting by plowing.  Apply sand/chloride if needed for 
traction. 

    
    
 
 
 



 7 

 
 
III.  WINTER STORM ORGANIZATION 
 

Decreasing the response time during winter storms requires adjustment to normal maintenance 
departmental operations.  These adjustments include activation of the Winter Storm Watch 
Snow Duty Officer (hereafter referred to as SDO), implementation of workforce call out 
procedures, and initiation of snow and ice patrols. 

 
 

A. Winter Storm Watch Snow Duty Officer 
 

The SDO is responsible for monitoring storm forecasts, determining an appropriate 
response to storms including call out, adjustments, and curtailing of work force. 

 
The Director of Highway Maintenance, or his designate, functions as the SDO for a 
rotating one week period from November through early April.  The SDO is a Highway 
Maintenance Department staff person responsible for winter maintenance operations 
during all hours of that one week period.   

 
The SDO is expected to exercise judgment regarding factors related to time of day, day of 
week, expected storm conditions (rate of fall, total accumulation, duration and 
temperature), and available work force. 

   
To insure that the roadways in the urban areas of Oakland County receive premium service 
during winter maintenance operations, a plan has been developed that allows for the 
transfer of operators and equipment in time of need to Districts 4, 4S and 4T from Districts 
1, 2 and 3.  The SDO will implement this process when deemed necessary. 

 
The SDO may authorize the salting of subdivision streets, and in consultation with district 
supervisors’ call out additional personnel. 

 
In the event that storm conditions are so severe that it becomes necessary to depart from 
normal winter storm maintenance plans, the SDO is responsible for developing, 
implementing and coordinating alternative plans as necessary to combat the storm.  

 
Conditions making such action appropriate may include heavy snow accumulations over 
prolonged periods accompanied by high winds and possibly freezing rain.  These 
conditions call for development of strategies that depart significantly from those outlined 
in these guidelines, and require independent judgment on the part of the SDO. 

 
If, in the opinion of the SDO, additional help by private contractors is needed, he shall 
contact the Managing Director and recommend implementation of snow removal by 
private contractors.   
 
 
 
 

 
 



 8 

 B. Winter Call Out Procedures 
 

During winter maintenance on overtime, the work force should be sufficient to maintain 
the roads at the prescribed optimal condition.  Ordinarily, this results in a reduction in the 
work force when moving from Situation "A" to either Situation "B" or "C". 

 
Similarly, additional employees may have to be called in to prepare for rush hour traffic 
when it appears that storm conditions may be present during a Situation "A" time frame. 

 
Exhibit III, on the following pages, provides guidelines for the initial call out of additional 
employees. 

 
At the time of initial call out and anytime during the storm when significant changes in 
work force occur, the Public Information Officer for Road Commission for Oakland 
County shall be informed of these changes to allow him to update the news media of 
changing conditions.  This can generally be performed by the night watchman during off 
duty hours and the SDO during regular working hours at sometime after the call out or 
work force changes have been made. 

 



 9 

   
DISTRICT NO 1 EXHIBIT III 
CRITICAL 6 ROAD COMMISSION FOR OAKLAND COUNTY 
PRIORITY I 10 STORM CALLOUT GUIDELINES 
PRIORITY II 0  
TOTAL ROUTES 16 SITUATION  A 
  6:00 A.M. – 9:00 A.M. MONDAY - FRIDAY 
  3:00 P.M. – 7:00 P.M. MONDAY - FRIDAY 
   

FORECAST 
STORM SEVERITY 

ROAD PRIORITY CALLOUT RESPONSE 

   
CONDITION   

 CRITICAL ( I )     Have    6    spreading units available after forecast 
YELLOW 1 THRU 6  

   
FLURRIES   
AND/OR I   ( II )     Have    5    spreading units available after forecast 

DRIFTING 7 THRU 16  
   

LITTLE OR   
LIMITED EFFECT NONE     NONE 

   
   

CONDITION CRITICAL     Have    6    spreading units available after forecast 
   

RED   
 I   ( II )     Have    5    spreading units available after forecast 
 ( I )     Have    5    spreading units when snow begins if prior 
      to 6:00 a.m. or 4:30 p.m. 

EXPECT ALL   
PAVEMENT TO BE   
SNOW COVERED NONE     NONE 

   
   

CONDITION CRITICAL  ( I )     Have    6    spreading units available after forecast 
   

BLACK   
 I   ( I )     Have    10   spreading units available after forecast 
   

MAJOR   
SNOWSTORM NONE     NONE 

   
   
  

 
GOAL FOR PAVEMENT CONDITION 

CRITICAL  75% BARE PAVEMENT 
 PRIORITY I BARE PAVEMENT IN WHEEL TRACKS 
 PRIORITY II ¼” OR LESS SLUSH IN WHEEL TRACKS 
 
 

  

 COVERAGE LEGEND 
( I )      SINGLE COVERAGE  
( II )     DOUBLE COVERAGE  
( III )    TRIPLE COVERAGE  



 10 

 
DISTRICT NO 1 EXHIBIT III 
CRITICAL 6 ROAD COMMISSION FOR OAKLAND COUNTY 
PRIORITY I 10 STORM CALLOUT GUIDELINES 
PRIORITY II 0  
TOTAL ROUTES 16 SITUATION  B 
             9:00 A.M. – 3:00 P.M. MONDAY - FRIDAY 
             6:00 A.M. – 7:00 P.M. SATURDAY 
             8:00 A.M. – 7:00 P.M. SUNDAY AND HOLIDAY 
   

FORECAST 
STORM SEVERITY 

ROAD PRIORITY CALLOUT RESPONSE 

   
CONDITION   

 CRITICAL ( I )     Call    6    drivers when snow begins 
YELLOW 1 THRU 6  

   
FLURRIES   

AND/OR I   ( II )     Call    5    drivers if roads become slippery 
DRIFTING 7 THRU 16  

   
LITTLE OR   

LIMITED EFFECT NONE     NONE 
   
   

CONDITION CRITICAL ( I )     Have    6    spreading units available after forecast 
   

RED   
 I   ( I )     Call    10    drivers when snow begins 

EXPECT ALL   
PAVEMENT TO BE   
SNOW COVERED NONE     NONE 

   
   

CONDITION CRITICAL  ( I )     Have    6    spreading units available after forecast 
   

BLACK   
 I   ( I )     Call    10    drivers when snow begins 
   

MAJOR   
SNOWSTORM NONE     NONE 

   
   
  

 
GOAL FOR PAVEMENT CONDITION 

CRITICAL  BARE PAVEMENT IN WHEEL TRACKS 
 PRIORITY I ¼” OR LESS SLUSH IN WHEEL TRACKS 
 PRIORITY II SLUSH IN WHEEL TRACKS AT INTERSECTIONS, 

CURVES AND HILLS 
   
   

 COVERAGE LEGEND 
( I )      SINGLE COVERAGE  
( II )     DOUBLE COVERAGE  
( III )    TRIPLE COVERAGE  
   
   



 11 

  
  

   
DISTRICT NO 1 EXHIBIT III 
CRITICAL 6 ROAD COMMISSION FOR OAKLAND COUNTY 
PRIORITY I 10 STORM CALLOUT GUIDELINES 
PRIORITY II 0  
TOTAL ROUTES 16 SITUATION  C 
             7:00 P.M. – 6:00 A.M. MONDAY - SATURDAY 
             7:00 P.M. – 8:00 A.M. SUNDAY AND HOLIDAY 
   

FORECAST 
STORM SEVERITY 

ROAD PRIORITY CALLOUT RESPONSE 

   
CONDITION CRITICAL ( II )  

 1 THRU 6     Have    3    spreading units available after forecast 
YELLOW   

   
FLURRIES   
AND/OR I   ( III )     Have    4    spreading units available after forecast 

DRIFTING 7 THRU 16  
   

LITTLE OR   
LIMITED EFFECT NONE     NONE 

   
   

CONDITION CRITICAL ( II )     Call    3    drivers when snow begins 
   

RED   
 I   ( II )     Call    5    drivers when snow begins 
      Additional drivers may be called with approval of 
      headquarters 

EXPECT ALL   
PAVEMENT TO BE   
SNOW COVERED NONE     NONE 

   
   

CONDITION CRITICAL  ( II )     Call    3    drivers when snow begins 
   

BLACK   
 I   ( II )     Call    5    drivers when snow begins 
      Additional drivers may be called with approval of 
      headquarters 
   

MAJOR   
SNOWSTORM NONE     NONE 

   
   

 
GOAL FOR PAVEMENT CONDITION 

CRITICAL  ¼” OR LESS SLUSH IN WHEEL TRACKS 
 PRIORITY I SLUSH IN WHEEL TRACKS 
 PRIORITY II NONE 
 
 

  

 COVERAGE LEGEND 
( I )      SINGLE COVERAGE  
( II )     DOUBLE COVERAGE  
( III )    TRIPLE COVERAGE  



 12 

 
DISTRICT NO 2 EXHIBIT III 
CRITICAL 4 ROAD COMMISSION FOR OAKLAND COUNTY 
PRIORITY I 11 STORM CALLOUT GUIDELINES 
PRIORITY II 0  
TOTAL ROUTES 15 SITUATION  A 
  6:00 A.M. – 9:00 A.M. MONDAY - FRIDAY 
  3:00 P.M. – 7:00 P.M. MONDAY - FRIDAY 
   

FORECAST 
STORM SEVERITY 

ROAD PRIORITY CALLOUT RESPONSE 

   

CONDITION 
 

CRITICAL ( I ) 
1 THRU 4 

 
    Have    4    spreading units available after forecast 

YELLOW   
   

FLURRIES   
AND/OR I   ( II )     Have    6    spreading units available after forecast 

DRIFTING 5 THRU 15  
   

LITTLE OR   
LIMITED EFFECT NONE     NONE 

   
   

CONDITION CRITICAL     Have    4    spreading units available after forecast 
   

RED   
 I   ( II )     Have    6    spreading units available after forecast 
 ( I )     Have    5    spreading units when snow begins if prior 
      to 6:00 a.m. or 4:30 p.m. 

EXPECT ALL   
PAVEMENT TO BE   
SNOW COVERED NONE     NONE 

   
   

CONDITION CRITICAL  ( I )     Have    4    spreading units available after forecast 
   

BLACK   
 I   ( I )     Have    11   spreading units available after forecast 
   

MAJOR   
SNOWSTORM NONE     NONE 

   
   
  

 
GOAL FOR PAVEMENT CONDITION 

CRITICAL  75% BARE PAVEMENT 
 PRIORITY I BARE PAVEMENT IN WHEEL TRACKS 
 PRIORITY II ¼” OR LESS SLUSH IN WHEEL TRACKS 
   
   

 COVERAGE LEGEND 
( I )      SINGLE COVERAGE  
( II )     DOUBLE COVERAGE  
( III )    TRIPLE COVERAGE  



 13 

 
DISTRICT NO 2 EXHIBIT III 
CRITICAL 4 ROAD COMMISSION FOR OAKLAND COUNTY 
PRIORITY I 11 STORM CALLOUT GUIDELINES 
PRIORITY II 0  
TOTAL ROUTES 15 SITUATION  B 
             9:00 A.M. – 3:00 P.M. MONDAY - FRIDAY 
             6:00 A.M. – 7:00 P.M. SATURDAY 
             8:00 A.M. – 7:00 P.M. SUNDAY AND HOLIDAY 
   

FORECAST 
STORM SEVERITY 

ROAD PRIORITY CALLOUT RESPONSE 

   
CONDITION CRITICAL ( I )     Call    4    drivers when snow begins 

 1 THRU 4  
YELLOW   

   
FLURRIES   
AND/OR I   ( II )     Call    6    drivers if roads become slippery 

DRIFTING 5 THRU 15  
   

LITTLE OR   
LIMITED EFFECT NONE     NONE 

   
   

CONDITION CRITICAL ( I )     Have    4   spreading units available after forecast 
   

RED   
 I   ( I )     Call    11   drivers when snow begins 

EXPECT ALL   
PAVEMENT TO BE   
SNOW COVERED NONE     NONE 

   
   

CONDITION CRITICAL  ( I )     Have    4    spreading units available after forecast 
   

BLACK   
 I   ( I )     Call    11    drivers when snow begins 
   

MAJOR   
SNOWSTORM NONE     NONE 

   
   
  

 
GOAL FOR PAVEMENT CONDITION 

CRITICAL  BARE PAVEMENT IN WHEEL TRACKS 
 PRIORITY I ¼” OR LESS SLUSH IN WHEEL TRACKS 
 PRIORITY II SLUSH IN WHEEL TRACKS AT INTERSECTIONS 

CURVES AND HILLS 
   

   
 COVERAGE LEGEND 

( I )      SINGLE COVERAGE  
( II )     DOUBLE COVERAGE  
( III )    TRIPLE COVERAGE  

 
 
 
 



 14 

   
   
DISTRICT NO 2 EXHIBIT III 
CRITICAL 4 ROAD COMMISSION FOR OAKLAND COUNTY 
PRIORITY I 11 STORM CALLOUT GUIDELINES 
PRIORITY II 0  
TOTAL ROUTES 15 SITUATION  C 
             7:00 P.M. – 6:00 A.M. MONDAY - SATURDAY 
             7:00 P.M. – 8:00 A.M. SUNDAY AND HOLIDAY 
   

FORECAST 
STORM SEVERITY 

ROAD PRIORITY CALLOUT RESPONSE 

   
CONDITION   

 CRITICAL ( II )     Have    2    spreading units available after forecast 
YELLOW 1 THRU 4  

   
FLURRIES   
AND/OR I   ( III )     Have    5    spreading units available after forecast 

DRIFTING 5 THRU 15  
   

LITTLE OR   
LIMITED EFFECT NONE     NONE 

   
   

CONDITION CRITICAL ( II )     Call    2    drivers when snow begins 
   

RED   
 I   ( II )     Call    5    drivers when snow begins 
      Additional drivers may be called with approval of 
      headquarters 

EXPECT ALL   
PAVEMENT TO BE   
SNOW COVERED NONE     NONE 

   
   

CONDITION CRITICAL  ( II )     Call    2   drivers when snow begins 
   

BLACK   
 I   ( II )     Call    6    drivers when snow begins 
      Additional drivers may be called with approval of 
      headquarters 
   

MAJOR   
SNOWSTORM NONE     NONE 

   
    

GOAL FOR PAVEMENT CONDITION 
 

GOAL FOR PAVEMENT CONDITION 

CRITICAL  ¼” OR LESS SLUSH IN WHEEL TRACKS 
 PRIORITY I SLUSH IN WHEEL TRACKS 
 PRIORITY II NONE 
   

 COVERAGE LEGEND 
( I )      SINGLE COVERAGE  
( II )     DOUBLE COVERAGE  
( III )    TRIPLE COVERAGE 



 15 

 
DISTRICT NO 3 EXHIBIT III 
CRITICAL 7 ROAD COMMISSION FOR OAKLAND COUNTY 
PRIORITY I 8 STORM CALLOUT GUIDELINES 
PRIORITY II 0  
TOTAL ROUTES 15 SITUATION  A 
  6:00 A.M. – 9:00 A.M. MONDAY - FRIDAY 
  3:00 P.M. – 7:00 P.M. MONDAY - FRIDAY 
   

FORECAST 
STORM SEVERITY 

ROAD PRIORITY CALLOUT RESPONSE 

   
CONDITION CRITICAL ( I )     Have    7    spreading units available after forecast 

 1 THRU 7  
YELLOW   

   
FLURRIES   
AND/OR I   ( II )     Have    4    spreading units available after forecast 

DRIFTING 8 THRU 15  
   

LITTLE OR   
LIMITED EFFECT NONE     NONE 

   
   

CONDITION CRITICAL     Have    7    spreading units available after forecast 
   

RED   
 I   ( II )     Have    4    spreading units available after forecast 
 ( I )     Have    4    spreading units when snow begins if prior 
      to 6:00 a.m. or 4:30 p.m. 

EXPECT ALL   
PAVEMENT TO BE   
SNOW COVERED NONE     NONE 

   

   
CONDITION CRITICAL  ( I )     Have    7    spreading units available after forecast 

   
BLACK   

 I   ( I )     Have    8    spreading units available after forecast 
   

MAJOR   
SNOWSTORM NONE     NONE 

   
   
  

 
GOAL FOR PAVEMENT CONDITION 

CRITICAL  75% BARE PAVEMENT 
 PRIORITY I BARE PAVEMENT IN WHEEL TRACKS 
 PRIORITY II ¼” OR LESS SLUSH IN WHEEL TRACKS 
   
   

 COVERAGE LEGEND 
( I )      SINGLE COVERAGE  
( II )     DOUBLE COVERAGE  
( III )    TRIPLE COVERAGE  



 16 

 
DISTRICT NO 3 EXHIBIT III 
CRITICAL 7 ROAD COMMISSION FOR OAKLAND COUNTY 
PRIORITY I 8 STORM CALLOUT GUIDELINES 
PRIORITY II 0  
TOTAL ROUTES 15 SITUATION  B 
             9:00 A.M. – 3:00 P.M. MONDAY - FRIDAY 
             6:00 A.M. – 7:00 P.M. SATURDAY 
             8:00 A.M. – 7:00 P.M. SUNDAY AND HOLIDAY 
   

FORECAST 
STORM SEVERITY 

ROAD PRIORITY CALLOUT RESPONSE 

   
CONDITION CRITICAL ( I )  

 1 THRU 7     Call    7    drivers when snow begins 
YELLOW   

   
FLURRIES   
AND/OR I   ( II )     Call    4    drivers if roads become slippery 

DRIFTING 8 THRU 15  
   

LITTLE OR   
LIMITED EFFECT NONE     NONE 

   
   

CONDITION CRITICAL ( I )     Have    7    spreading units available after forecast 
   

RED   
 I   ( I )     Call    8    drivers when snow begins 

EXPECT ALL   
PAVEMENT TO BE   
SNOW COVERED NONE     NONE 

   
   

CONDITION CRITICAL  ( I )     Have    7    spreading units available after forecast 
   

BLACK   
 I   ( I )     Call    8    drivers when snow begins 
   

MAJOR   
SNOWSTORM NONE     NONE 

   
   
  

 
GOAL FOR PAVEMENT CONDITION 

CRITICAL  BARE PAVEMENT IN WHEEL TRACKS 
 PRIORITY I ¼” OR LESS SLUSH IN WHEEL TRACKS 
 PRIORITY II SLUSH IN WHEEL TRACKS AT INTERSECTIONS 

CURVES AND HILLS 
 
 

  

 COVERAGE LEGEND 
( I )      SINGLE COVERAGE  
( II )     DOUBLE COVERAGE  
( III )    TRIPLE COVERAGE 
 
 
 

 

   



 17 

   
DISTRICT NO 3 EXHIBIT III 
CRITICAL 7 ROAD COMMISSION FOR OAKLAND COUNTY 
PRIORITY I 8 STORM CALLOUT GUIDELINES 
PRIORITY II 0  
TOTAL ROUTES 15 SITUATION  C 
             7:00 P.M. – 6:00 A.M. MONDAY - SATURDAY 
             7:00 P.M. – 8:00 A.M. SUNDAY AND HOLIDAY 
   

FORECAST 
STORM SEVERITY 

ROAD PRIORITY CALLOUT RESPONSE 

   
CONDITION CRITICAL ( II )  

 1 THRU 7     Have    4    spreading units available after forecast 
YELLOW   

   
FLURRIES   
AND/OR I   ( III )     Have    3 spreading units available after forecast 

DRIFTING 8 THRU 15  
   

LITTLE OR   
LIMITED EFFECT NONE     NONE 

   
   

CONDITION CRITICAL ( II )     Call    4    drivers when snow begins 
   

RED   
 I   ( II )     Call    3    drivers when snow begins 
 ( III  )     Additional drivers may be called with approval of 
      headquarters 

EXPECT ALL   
PAVEMENT TO BE   
SNOW COVERED NONE     NONE 

   
   

CONDITION CRITICAL  ( II )     Call    4    drivers when snow begins 
   

BLACK   
 I   ( III )     Call    3    drivers when snow begins 
      Additional drivers may be called with approval of 
      headquarters 
   

MAJOR   
SNOWSTORM NONE     NONE 

   
   
  

 
GOAL FOR PAVEMENT CONDITION 

CRITICAL  ¼” OR LESS SLUSH IN WHEEL TRACKS 
 PRIORITY I SLUSH IN WHEEL TRACKS 
 PRIORITY II NONE 

  
 COVERAGE LEGEND 

( I )      SINGLE COVERAGE  
( II )     DOUBLE COVERAGE  
( III )    TRIPLE COVERAGE 



 18 

 
DISTRICT NO 4 EXHIBIT III 
CRITICAL 11 ROAD COMMISSION FOR OAKLAND COUNTY 
PRIORITY I 10 STORM CALLOUT GUIDELINES 
PRIORITY II 0  
TOTAL ROUTES 21 SITUATION  A 
  6:00 A.M. – 9:00 A.M. MONDAY - FRIDAY 
  3:00 P.M. – 7:00 P.M. MONDAY - FRIDAY 
   

FORECAST 
STORM SEVERITY 

ROAD PRIORITY CALLOUT RESPONSE 

   
CONDITION CRITICAL ( I )     Have    11   spreading units available after forecast 

 1 THRU 11  
YELLOW   

   
FLURRIES   
AND/OR I   ( II )     Have    5    spreading units available after forecast 

DRIFTING 12 THRU 21  
   

LITTLE OR   
LIMITED EFFECT NONE     NONE 

   
   

CONDITION CRITICAL     Have    11   spreading units available after forecast 
   

RED   
 I   ( II )     Have    5    spreading units available after forecast 
 ( I )     Have    5    spreading units when snow begins if prior 
      to 6:00 a.m. or 4:30 p.m. 

EXPECT ALL   
PAVEMENT TO BE   
SNOW COVERED NONE     NONE 

   
   

CONDITION CRITICAL  ( I )     Have    11   spreading units available after forecast 
   

BLACK   
 I   ( I )     Have    10    spreading units available after forecast 
   

MAJOR   
SNOWSTORM NONE     NONE 

   
   
  

 
GOAL FOR PAVEMENT CONDITION 

CRITICAL  75% BARE PAVEMENT 
 PRIORITY I BARE PAVEMENT IN WHEEL TRACKS 
 PRIORITY II ¼” OR LESS SLUSH IN WHEEL TRACKS 
 
 

  

 COVERAGE LEGEND 
( I )      SINGLE COVERAGE  
( II )     DOUBLE COVERAGE  
( III )    TRIPLE COVERAGE  
  

 
 

   



 19 

   
DISTRICT NO 4 EXHIBIT III 
CRITICAL 11 ROAD COMMISSION FOR OAKLAND COUNTY 
PRIORITY I 10 STORM CALLOUT GUIDELINES 
PRIORITY II 0  
TOTAL ROUTES 21 SITUATION  B 
             9:00 A.M. – 3:00 P.M. MONDAY - FRIDAY 
             6:00 A.M. – 7:00 P.M. SATURDAY 
             8:00 A.M. – 7:00 P.M. SUNDAY AND HOLIDAY 
   

FORECAST 
STORM SEVERITY 

ROAD PRIORITY CALLOUT RESPONSE 

   
CONDITION CRITICAL ( I )     Call    11   drivers when snow begins 

 1 THRU 11  
YELLOW   

   
FLURRIES   
AND/OR I   ( II )     Call    5    drivers if roads become slippery 

DRIFTING 12 THRU 21  
   

LITTLE OR   
LIMITED EFFECT NONE     NONE 

   
   

CONDITION CRITICAL ( I )     Have    11   spreading units available after forecast 
   

RED   
 I   ( I )     Call    10    drivers when snow begins 

EXPECT ALL   
PAVEMENT TO BE   
SNOW COVERED NONE)     NONE 

   
   

CONDITION CRITICAL  ( I )     Have    11   spreading units available after forecast 
   

BLACK   
 I   ( I )     Call    10    drivers when snow begins 
   

MAJOR   
SNOWSTORM NONE     NONE 

   
   
  

 
GOAL FOR PAVEMENT CONDITION 

CRITICAL  BARE PAVEMENT IN WHEEL TRACKS 
 PRIORITY I ¼” OR LESS SLUSH IN WHEEL TRACKS 
 PRIORITY II SLUSH IN WHEEL TRACKS AT INTERSECTIONS 

CURVES AND HILLS 
   

 COVERAGE LEGEND 
( I )      SINGLE COVERAGE  
( II )     DOUBLE COVERAGE  
( III )    TRIPLE COVERAGE 
 
 
 
 

 

   



 20 

   
DISTRICT NO 4 EXHIBIT III 
CRITICAL 11 ROAD COMMISSION FOR OAKLAND COUNTY 
PRIORITY I 10 STORM CALLOUT GUIDELINES 
PRIORITY II 0  
TOTAL ROUTES 21 SITUATION  C 
             7:00 P.M. – 6:00 A.M. MONDAY - SATURDAY 
             7:00 P.M. – 8:00 A.M. SUNDAY AND HOLIDAY 
   

FORECAST 
STORM SEVERITY 

ROAD PRIORITY CALLOUT RESPONSE 

   
CONDITION   

 CRITICAL ( II )     Have    6    spreading units available after forecast 
YELLOW 1 THRU 11  

   
FLURRIES   
AND/OR I   ( III )     Have    4    spreading units available after forecast 

DRIFTING 12 THRU 21  
   

LITTLE OR   
LIMITED EFFECT NONE     NONE 

   
   

CONDITION CRITICAL ( II )     Call    6    drivers when snow begins 
   

RED   
 I   ( III )     Call    4    drivers when snow begins 
      Additional drivers may be called with approval of 
      headquarters 

EXPECT ALL   
PAVEMENT TO BE   
SNOW COVERED NONE     NONE 

   
   

CONDITION CRITICAL  ( II )     Call    6    drivers when snow begins 
   

BLACK   
 I   ( III )     Call    4    drivers when snow begins 
      Additional drivers may be called with approval of 
      headquarters 
   

MAJOR   
SNOWSTORM NONE     NONE 

   
   
  

 
GOAL FOR PAVEMENT CONDITION 

CRITICAL  ¼” OR LESS SLUSH IN WHEEL TRACKS 
 PRIORITY I SLUSH IN WHEEL TRACKS 
 PRIORITY II NONE 
   

 COVERAGE LEGEND 
( I )      SINGLE COVERAGE  
( II )     DOUBLE COVERAGE  
( III )    TRIPLE COVERAGE 



 21 

 
DISTRICT NO 4S EXHIBIT III 
CRITICAL 21 ROAD COMMISSION FOR OAKLAND COUNTY 
PRIORITY I 2 STORM CALLOUT GUIDELINES 
PRIORITY II 0  
TOTAL ROUTES 23 SITUATION  A 
  6:00 A.M. – 9:00 A.M. MONDAY - FRIDAY 
  3:00 P.M. – 7:00 P.M. MONDAY - FRIDAY 
   

FORECAST 
STORM SEVERITY 

ROAD PRIORITY CALLOUT RESPONSE 

   
CONDITION CRITICAL (1)     Have    21    spreading units available after forecast 

 1 THRU 20  
YELLOW   

   
FLURRIES   
AND/OR I   ( II )     Have    1    spreading unit available after forecast 

DRIFTING 21 THRU 22  
   

LITTLE OR   
LIMITED EFFECT NONE     NONE 

   
   

CONDITION CRITICAL     Have    21   spreading units available after forecast 
   

RED   
 I   ( II )     Have    1    spreading unit available after forecast 
 ( I )     Have    1    spreading unit when snow begins if prior 
      to 6:00 a.m. or 4:30 p.m. 

EXPECT ALL   
PAVEMENT TO BE   
SNOW COVERED NONE     NONE 

   
   

CONDITION CRITICAL  ( I )     Have    21   spreading units available after forecast 
   

BLACK   
 I   ( I )     Have    2    spreading units available after forecast 
   

MAJOR   
SNOWSTORM NONE     NONE 

   
   
  GOAL FOR PAVEMENT CONDITIO

 
N 

CRITICAL  75% BARE PAVEMENT 
 PRIORITY I BARE PAVEMENT IN WHEEL TRACKS 
 PRIORITY II ¼” OR LESS SLUSH IN WHEEL TRACKS 
   

 COVERAGE LEGEND 
( I )      SINGLE COVERAGE  
( II )     DOUBLE COVERAGE 
( III )    TRIPLE COVERAGE 

 

 
 
 
 

 

   



 22 

   
DISTRICT NO 4S EXHIBIT III 
CRITICAL 21 ROAD COMMISSION FOR OAKLAND COUNTY 
PRIORITY I 2 STORM CALLOUT GUIDELINES 
PRIORITY II 0  
TOTAL ROUTES 23 SITUATION  B 
             9:00 A.M. – 3:00 P.M. MONDAY - FRIDAY 
             6:00 A.M. – 7:00 P.M. SATURDAY 
             8:00 A.M. – 7:00 P.M. SUNDAY AND HOLIDAY 
   

FORECAST 
STORM SEVERITY 

ROAD PRIORITY CALLOUT RESPONSE 

   
CONDITION CRITICAL ( I )  

 1 THRU 20     Call    21   drivers when snow begins 
YELLOW   

   
FLURRIES   
AND/OR I   ( II )     Call    1    driver if roads become slippery 

DRIFTING 21 THRU 22  
   

LITTLE OR   
LIMITED EFFECT NONE     NONE 

   
   

CONDITION CRITICAL ( 1 )     Have    21   spreading units available after forecast 
   

RED   
 I   ( I )     Call    2    drivers when snow begins 

EXPECT ALL   
PAVEMENT TO BE   
SNOW COVERED NONE     NONE 

   
   

CONDITION CRITICAL  ( I )     Have    21   spreading units available after forecast 
   

BLACK   
 I   ( I )     Call    2    drivers when snow begins 
   

MAJOR   
SNOWSTORM NONE     NONE 

   
   
  

 
GOAL FOR PAVEMENT CONDITION 

CRITICAL  BARE PAVEMENT IN WHEEL TRACKS 
 PRIORITY I ¼” OR LESS SLUSH IN WHEEL TRACKS 
 PRIORITY II SLUSH IN WHEEL TRACKS AT INTERSECTIONS, 

CURVES AND HILLS 
   

 COVERAGE LEGEND 
( I )      SINGLE COVERAGE  
( II )     DOUBLE COVERAGE 
( III )    TRIPLE COVERAGE 
 
 
 

 

  
   



 23 

   
   
DISTRICT NO 4S EXHIBIT III 
CRITICAL 21 ROAD COMMISSION FOR OAKLAND COUNTY 
PRIORITY I 2 STORM CALLOUT GUIDELINES 
PRIORITY II 0  
TOTAL ROUTES 23 SITUATION  C 
             7:00 P.M. – 6:00 A.M. MONDAY - SATURDAY 
             7:00 P.M. – 8:00 A.M. SUNDAY AND HOLIDAY 
   

FORECAST 
STORM SEVERITY 

ROAD PRIORITY CALLOUT RESPONSE 

   
CONDITION   

 CRITICAL ( II )     Have    11    spreading units available after forecast 
YELLOW 1 THRU 20  

   
FLURRIES   
AND/OR I   ( III )     Have    1    spreading unit available after forecast 

DRIFTING 21 THRU 22  
   

LITTLE OR   
LIMITED EFFECT NONE     NONE 

   
   

CONDITION CRITICAL ( 1I )     Call    11    drivers when snow begins 
   

RED   
 I   ( II )     Call     1   driver when snow begins 
      Additional drivers may be called with approval of 
      headquarters 

EXPECT ALL   
PAVEMENT TO BE   
SNOW COVERED NONE     NONE 

   
   

CONDITION CRITICAL  ( II )     Call    11    drivers when snow begins 
   

BLACK   
 I   ( II )     Call    1    driver when snow begins 
      Additional drivers may be called with approval of 
      headquarters 
   

MAJOR   
SNOWSTORM NONE     NONE 

   
   
  

 
GOAL FOR PAVEMENT CONDITION 

CRITICAL  ¼” OR LESS SLUSH IN WHEEL TRACKS 
 PRIORITY I SLUSH IN WHEEL TRACKS 
 PRIORITY II NONE 
   

 COVERAGE LEGEND 
( I )      SINGLE COVERAGE  
( II )     DOUBLE COVERAGE  
( III )    TRIPLE COVERAGE 
 

 

 



 24 

 
   
DISTRICT NO 4T EXHIBIT III 
CRITICAL 10 ROAD COMMISSION FOR OAKLAND COUNTY 
PRIORITY I 6 STORM CALLOUT GUIDELINES 
PRIORITY II 0  
TOTAL ROUTES 16 SITUATION  A 
  6:00 A.M. – 9:00 A.M. MONDAY - FRIDAY 
  3:00 P.M. – 7:00 P.M. MONDAY - FRIDAY 
   

FORECAST 
STORM SEVERITY 

ROAD PRIORITY CALLOUT RESPONSE 

   
CONDITION CRITICAL (I)  

 1 THRU 9     Have    10    spreading units available after forecast 
YELLOW   

   
FLURRIES   
AND/OR I   ( II )     Have    3    spreading units available after forecast 

DRIFTING 10 THRU 15  
   

LITTLE OR   
LIMITED EFFECT NONE     NONE 

   
   

CONDITION CRITICAL     Have    10    spreading units available after forecast 
   

RED   
 I   ( II )     Have    3    spreading units available after forecast 
 ( I )     Have    3    spreading units when snow begins if prior 
      to 6:00 a.m. or 4:30 p.m. 

EXPECT ALL   
PAVEMENT TO BE   
SNOW COVERED NONE     NONE 

   
   

CONDITION CRITICAL  ( I )     Have    10    spreading units available after forecast 
   

BLACK   
 I   ( I )     Have    6   spreading units available after forecast 
   

MAJOR   
SNOWSTORM NONE     NONE 

   
   
  

 
GOAL FOR PAVEMENT CONDITION 

CRITICAL  75% BARE PAVEMENT 
 PRIORITY I BARE PAVEMENT IN WHEEL TRACKS 
 PRIORITY II ¼” OR LESS SLUSH IN WHEEL TRACKS 
   

 COVERAGE LEGEND 
( I )      SINGLE COVERAGE  
( II )     DOUBLE COVERAGE  
( III )    TRIPLE COVERAGE 
 

 



 25 

 
DISTRICT NO 4T EXHIBIT III 
CRITICAL 10 ROAD COMMISSION FOR OAKLAND COUNTY 
PRIORITY I 6 STORM CALLOUT GUIDELINES 
PRIORITY II 0  
TOTAL ROUTES 16 SITUATION  B 
             9:00 A.M. – 3:00 P.M. MONDAY - FRIDAY 
             6:00 A.M. – 7:00 P.M. SATURDAY 
             8:00 A.M. – 7:00 P.M. SUNDAY AND HOLIDAY 
   

FORECAST 
STORM SEVERITY 

ROAD PRIORITY CALLOUT RESPONSE 

   
CONDITION CRITICAL ( I )  

 1 THRU 9     Call    10    drivers when snow begins 
YELLOW   

   
FLURRIES   
AND/OR I   ( II )     Call    3    drivers if roads become slippery 

DRIFTING 10 THRU 15  
   

LITTLE OR   
LIMITED EFFECT NONE     NONE 

   
   

CONDITION CRITICAL ( I )     Have    10    spreading units available after forecast 
   

RED   
 I   ( I )     Call    6    drivers when snow begins 

EXPECT ALL   
PAVEMENT TO BE   
SNOW COVERED NONE     NONE 

   
   

CONDITION CRITICAL  ( I )     Have    10    spreading units available after forecast 
   

BLACK   
 I   ( I )     Call     6     drivers when snow begins 
   

MAJOR   
SNOWSTORM NONE     NONE 

   
   
  

 
GOAL FOR PAVEMENT CONDITION 

CRITICAL  BARE PAVEMENT IN WHEEL TRACKS 
 PRIORITY I ¼” OR LESS SLUSH IN WHEEL TRACKS 
 PRIORITY II SLUSH IN WHEEL TRACKS AT INTERSECTIONS, 

CURVES AND HILLS 
   

 COVERAGE LEGEND 
( I )       SINGLE COVERAGE  
( II )      DOUBLE COVERAGE  
( III )     TRIPLE COVERAGE 
 

 



 26 

 
DISTRICT NO 4T EXHIBIT III 
CRITICAL 10 ROAD COMMISSION FOR OAKLAND COUNTY 
PRIORITY I 6 STORM CALLOUT GUIDELINES 
PRIORITY II 0  
TOTAL ROUTES 16 SITUATION  C 
             7:00 P.M. – 6:00 A.M. MONDAY - SATURDAY 
             7:00 P.M. – 8:00 A.M. SUNDAY AND HOLIDAY 
   

FORECAST 
STORM SEVERITY 

ROAD PRIORITY CALLOUT RESPONSE 

   
CONDITION   

 CRITICAL ( II )     Have    5    spreading units available after forecast 
YELLOW 1 THRU 9  

   
FLURRIES   
AND/OR I   ( III )     Have    3    spreading units available after forecast 

DRIFTING 10 THRU 15  
   

LITTLE OR   
LIMITED EFFECT NONE     NONE 

   
   

CONDITION CRITICAL ( II )     Call    5    drivers when snow begins 
   

RED   
 I   ( II )     Call    3    drivers when snow begins 
      Additional drivers may be called with approval of 
      headquarters 

EXPECT ALL   
PAVEMENT TO BE   
SNOW COVERED NONE     NONE 

   
   

CONDITION CRITICAL  ( II )     Call    5    drivers when snow begins 
   

BLACK   
 I   ( II )     Call    3    drivers when snow begins 
      Additional drivers may be called with approval of 
      headquarters 
   

MAJOR   
SNOWSTORM NONE     NONE 

   
   
  

 
GOAL FOR PAVEMENT CONDITION 

CRITICAL  ¼” OR LESS SLUSH IN WHEEL TRACKS 
 PRIORITY I SLUSH IN WHEEL TRACKS 
 PRIORITY II NONE 
   

 COVERAGE LEGEND 
( I )       SINGLE COVERAGE  
( II )     DOUBLE COVERAGE  
( III )    TRIPLE COVERAGE  
 



 27 

 
When deciding on work force adjustments during the storm, the following procedures 
will be followed:  

 
1. Evaluate road conditions three or four hours before the onset of the next expected 

change in the Situation. 
 

 2. Determine desired pavement conditions to be achieved and maintained during the 
upcoming Situation. 

 
3. Evaluate expected weather conditions for the next four to five hours. 

 
4. Estimate the labor force required to achieve desired maintenance objectives. 

 
5. In consultation with district supervision, augment or reduce labor force accordingly at 

the transition time. 
 
 
 C. Southfield and Troy Maintenance Districts 
 

Winter maintenance problems are particularly acute in the southern part of the County 
where heavy concentrations of traffic and longer employee travel times hinder operations. 

 
When storm conditions make additional personnel and equipment necessary in these 
districts, initial call out should be made one to two hours earlier than the other districts 
prior to the morning rush hour. 

 
In addition, all reasonable steps should be taken to ensure full maintenance of Southfield 
and Troy routes whenever conditions warrant.  It may be necessary to reassign routes 
from adjacent districts to accomplish this.  The SDO will be responsible for determining 
route changes. 

 
 
 D. Other Labor Force Considerations 
 

During winter storms and other emergencies, situations may be encountered where work 
must be continued and this tends to generate long hours of work by individuals. 

 
In the interest of employee and public safety, no employee should work more than 16 
hours continuously.  Department and district supervision should attempt to get 
replacements from within their own district. 

 
Equipment should remain on the road continuously during Situation "A" periods.  The 
only exception should be to reload salt or to take on fuel.  Reassignment of drivers and 
vehicles for the sole purpose of relieving those drivers can normally be delayed until the 
end of the situation which is after 9:00 a.m. or 7:00 p.m. or at such time as the route is 
completed. 

 



 28 

Stopping for meals during Situation "A" periods may be allowed with the approval of 
district supervision if the pavement is in acceptable condition and the possibility of 
additional precipitation has passed. 

 
Operators are encouraged to be productive while patrolling in anticipation of a storm.  If 
the travel lanes are clear, shoulders can be plowed back as needed.  Crossovers and other 
areas where snow is being tracked onto travel lanes may also be salted or plowed. 

 
 
 E. Night and Weekend Calls for Winter Maintenance for State Trunklines and Road 

Commission Primary Roads. 
 

When a watchman receives a call at night or on weekends stating that an accident has 
occurred or that there is an isolated slippery spot, the watchman should contact district 
supervision for location inspection and determination.  If the watchman has any questions 
or concerns, he should contact district supervision or the SDO for determination of 
action. 

 
 
 F. Night and Weekend Calls for Winter Maintenance for Local and Subdivision Roads 
 

Calls received at night or on weekends stating that a reportable accident has occurred due 
to slippery conditions or that there is an isolated slippery spot (with remainder of road in 
reasonably good condition) that may cause a reportable accident, will initiate the 
following action: 

 
1. If an accident has been reported, the watchman or alternate shift foreman will contact 

appropriate police agencies for confirmation, and if the accident is confirmed, will 
have location treated with salt, sand, or salt and sand mix as soon as possible.  If the 
accident is not confirmed, the watchman or alternate shift foreman will follow the 
procedure in paragraph 2 below. 

 
2. A report of an isolated slippery spot where the remainder of the road is believed to be 

in good condition will be reported to the alternate shift foreman or to district 
supervision immediately.  The alternate shift foreman or supervisor will inspect the 
road as soon as possible unless they have knowledge that it is not an isolated situation 
(much of the road is slippery).  District supervision may salt or sand immediately, 
schedule it for the next daylight work period, or determine that no action is advisable, 
depending on their own evaluation of conditions. 

 
If the watchman has any questions or concerns, he should contact district supervision 
or the SDO for determination of action. 
 
 
 

 
 



 29 

IV. WINTER MAINTENANCE PRACTICES 
 

The following winter maintenance practices are adopted for use during winter storm 
operations.  Operators should be made aware of these guidelines and their responsibilities as 
described below.  Deviations from accepted practice should be corrected by counseling the 
operator at the first opportunity. 
 
A. Salting 

The maximum application rate to be used by Road Commission trucks is 400-pounds/2 
lane mile, except for intersections, hills, ramps, and crossovers.  These exceptions are 
discussed in Exhibit IV. 

 
The amount of salt applied must be altered with temperature changes.  Exhibit IV 
provides application rate guidelines for various temperatures and snow accumulations.  
The rates shown should produce nearly complete melting of the accumulations indicated.  
Whenever snow accumulates to one inch or more the surfaces should be bladed off prior 
to applying salt. 

 
 

EXHIBIT IV 
 

SALT APPLICATION RATES 
(Pounds per 2 Lane Miles) 

 
 Snow Accumulation Application Rate 
 1/4 Inch 200 Pounds 
 1/2 Inch 300 Pounds 
 3/4 Inch 400 Pounds 

 
Sunshine and traffic will increase the effectiveness of salt, reducing requirements below 
those shown above.  Supervisors should consider this when determining application rates. 
 
It is intended that a heavier application

 

 of salt and sand will be used on intersections, 
hills, ramps, and crossovers than on the remainder of the route.  This should be 
accomplished by temporarily increasing both the delivery system and spinner speeds. 

Higher application rates at these same locations should usually be advisable doing spot 
locations. 

 
If equipment cannot achieve the higher rates, it may be desirable to salt these areas twice 
(a double application). 

 

Spreaders should be calibrated and charts maintained in each vehicle showing the settings 
and the resulting application rate at various speeds.  Operators are expected to select an 
appropriate application rate and use salt effectively. 

Spreader Calibration 

 
 



 30 

Spinner speeds should be adjusted so that a six to eight foot pattern is spread.  Spinner 
shields should be adjusted so that salt is placed at or near the high point of the pavement. 

Spinner Speeds 

 
 

The center lane of five-lane roads should be bladed during normal snow removal 
operations.  Center left turn lanes should be salted as required during storm cleanup 
operations. 

Center Lane Salting 

 
 
 B. Blading and Plowing 
 

Blades and/or plows should be used to remove snow from the traveled portion the road 
whenever accumulation reaches one inch or more. 

 
All blading and plowing in multi-lane roads should be done with one unit for each lane 
whenever possible. 
 

 
Shoulders should be plowed back if snow covered.  Generally, however, plowing of 
shoulders should be part of the clean up operation during regular hours.  The final plow 
pass on shoulders having guardrails should plow snow up and over the guardrail 
whenever possible. 

 
It is extremely important to blade slush off the pavement whenever freezing temperatures 
exist or are expected. 

 
Salt usually begins to lose its effectiveness about two hours after application.  Plowing 
operations should therefore be delayed to allow maximum melting from salting. 

 
 
 

 C. Ceasing Storm Operations 
 

When precipitation has stopped falling and no more is expected, and optimal pavement 
conditions have been achieved, the maintenance objective is to treat pavement so that it 
should remain in an adequate driving condition until cleanup can be completed during 
regular working hours. 

 
In making the decision to cease storm operations, expected temperature and wind 
conditions for the next several hours are important factors to consider. 

 
Forecasted temperatures significantly above freezing means that some slush may be left 
on the pavement and allowed to melt naturally.  Slush should be bladed off so that it does 
not freeze if colder temperatures are expected. 

 



 31 

Shoulders should be plowed back to minimize drifting if wind is forecast, also so they do 
not freeze in place thereby making them more difficult to plow later. 

 
Critical priority routes should be treated until it is evident that the required conditions of 
Situations A, B, or C are met as appropriate. 

 
When these conditions have been achieved, storm operations should cease and the work 
force sent home or reassigned to other work. 

 
 

D. After-Storm Clean Up 
 

Clean up after the storm should be accomplished during regular working hours.  The 
maintenance objective during clean up is to provide bare, dry pavement conditions on all 
Critical, Priority I and Priority II roads, as well as reasonably adequate conditions on 
Priority III, Priority IV, and Priority V roads. 

 
  Priority IV and Priority V roads will be maintained in accordance with the following 
guidelines: 
 

1. In making judgments about winter maintenance on Priority IV and Priority V roads, 
traffic volume, time of day, temperature, weather forecasts, reported hazardous 
conditions, and workload will be taken into consideration. 

 
2. Mile-type local roads, whether paved or unpaved, will generally carry more traffic 

than subdivision streets, and will generally be maintained first. 
 

 
3. Salt will normally be used for paved roads and sand for gravel roads.  The most 

probable locations for salting or sanding will be at stops, railroad crossings, and on 
hills, curves and intersections. 

 
4. Winter maintenance of Priority IV and Priority V roads will, except in case of 

emergency or known hazards, be performed during regular working hours. 
 

5. Any unusual number of evening or weekend requests for spot salting sanding at 
locations such as hills, curves, and stopping areas will be brought to the attention of 
the SDO who will consider the advisability scheduling overtime responses. 

 
6. Salt use in subdivisions will be controlled closely.  Spot salting in subdivisions should 

be limited to fairly sharp curves and steep grades and to an approach area of about 50 
feet at intersections. 

 
7. Salting of entire lengths of subdivision streets may be performed during regular 

working hours, subject to the following conditions: 
 

 a. The Director of Highway Maintenance or his designate must give specific 
authorization. 



 32 

 b. The temperature is 30 degrees Fahrenheit or warmer if overcast, and is expected 
to remain steady or increase.  If the sun is shining a temperature of 26 degrees 
Fahrenheit is acceptable.  No additional accumulation is expected for two or three 
days. 

 c. Existing accumulation is generally at least one-half inch of ice packed snow that 
cannot be removed by blading. 

 d. Critical, Priority I, and Priority II roads are at prescribed conditions. 
 e. Adequate supply of salt is available. 

 f. When subdivision streets are salted the maximum application rate should be 800 
pounds per 2-lane mile of street. 

 
Generally, clean up should be accomplished by plowing and blading.  Salt can be used to 
clear a packed ice condition on a paved road and to melt snow or slush remaining after 
blading. 

 
 Strips of snow and ice between wheel tracks should be eliminated by blading. 
 

Other factors involved in the selection of a clean up strategy include accumulation and 
temperature.  Exhibit VI on the next page, provides guidance in selecting an appropriate 
strategy. 
 



 33  

EXISTING
PRIORITY ACCUMULATION EXISTING TEMPERATURE TREATMENT RESPONSE

I  &  II 1" and less 9 degrees and lower     Apply salt-chloride mixture at "mile road"
    intersections, adjacent hills and curves.

 III

(during normal 10 degrees and above     Salt
working hours)

1" and above 9 degrees and lower     Blade and/or plow and apply salt-chloride mixture
    at "mile road" intersections, adjacent hills, and
    curves.

10 degrees and above     Blade and/or plow and salt.
    Blade or plow shoulder on regular time or when
    patrolling on "storm alert" for next storm.

Local roads & 3" or less 9 degrees and lower     None
subdivison streets
(normal working 10 degrees and above     None

hours only)

3" and above 9 degrees and lower     Blade and/or plow.

10 degrees and above     Blade and/or plow paved and gravel roads.

Note:
reasonable safety.  Intersections with paved mile roads, railroad crossings and hills command first priority
for treatment in such a situation.

ROAD COMMISSION FOR OAKLAND COUNTY
EXHIBIT VI

 AFTER STORM TREATMENT RESPONSES

Salt, salt and sand, or sand may be used on local roads and subdivision streets when traffic cannot travel with 



2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2002-2010
Personal Services 67,971$    109,889$  85,042$    122,384$  87,472$    93,444$    173,673$  125,799$  69,447$      935,121$     

31.8%
Salt and Supplies 64,128$    128,162$  118,385$  167,386$  128,565$  120,004$  257,666$  238,349$  117,818$   1,340,463$  

45.6%
Vehicles & Equipment 39,260$    73,090$    62,263$    88,718$    57,674$    58,122$    112,434$  117,084$  56,849$      665,494$     

22.6%
Totals Expence 171,359$  311,141$  265,690$  378,488$  273,711$  271,570$  543,773$  481,232$  244,114$   2,941,078$  

Contract Amount 213,170$  219,565$  226,152$  230,676$  235,289$  239,995$  244,795$  249,691$  249,691$   2,109,024$  

Net Cost to City (41,811)$   91,576$    39,538$    147,812$  38,422$    31,575$    298,978$  231,541$  (5,577)$       832,054$     

92,450$    

69,785$    

Average Net Cost to City / Year

Road Commission of Oakland County Winter Maintenance Historical Funding

Average Net Cost to City/Year
removing the two high and two low years



 

Map of RCOC Roads and list of roads Troy would maintain for Snow & Ice Control. 

 

• Adams  
• Big Beaver 
• Crooks 
• Dequindre 
• John R 
• Livernois 
• Long Lake 
• Maple 
• South Blvd  







 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

September 28, 2010 
 
To:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
  
From:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
  Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
  Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
  Susan Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
  Peggy E. Sears, Human Resources Director 
   
Subject: Consulting/Professional Services Agreement with the International City Management  
  Association (ICMA) 
 
 
In accordance with direction from City Council, attached is a contract for consulting/professional services 
with ICMA.  The outcome of ICMA’s work is to provide us with a neutral third party evaluation of finding 
the most efficient manner in which to deliver services, as well as what it takes to be sustainable in terms 
of staffing.  The scope of work will include all departments that have not yet been analyzed and they are 
identified below: 
 
• Police Department 
• Fire Department 
• City Manager’s Office 
• City Attorney’s Office  
• City Assessor’s Office 
• City Clerk’s Office 
• City Treasurer’s Office 
• Finance  
• Information Technology 
• Human Resources 
• Purchasing Department 
• All departments involved in maintenance functions: Public Works; Parks and Recreation; Building 

Operations 
• In addition, ICMA will conduct a benefit comparative analysis 
 
The aggregate cost for the above eight elements ranges from $196,660 to $208,360.  Funding can come 
from two primary sources:  General Fund Balance and a transfer from Capital to General Fund from a 
capital project that is currently under construction.  The project is the North Adams Valley and Orchard 
Highlands pavement rehabilitation.  Low bid was $621,292.79 with a 25% contingency, equaling 
$776,615.99.   One million dollars is budgeted for the project, therefore $223,384.01 is available.  City 
Engineer Steve Vandette is confident that the 25% contingency will be sufficient to complete the paving 
rehabilitation project. 
 
c: Craig Rapp, Director of Consulting Services, ICMA  
 Department Directors 

pallottaba
Text Box
I-05



































































CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft September 20, 2010 
 

- 1 - 

Mayor Pro Tem Fleming gave the Invocation. The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given.  
 
A. CALL TO ORDER: 
The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, September 20, 2010, at City 
Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:30 PM. 

B. ROLL CALL: 
Mayor Louise E. Schilling 

 Robin Beltramini 
 Mayor Pro Tem Wade Fleming 
 Martin Howrylak (Absent) 
 Mary Kerwin 
 Maureen McGinnis 
 Dane Slater 
 
Vote on Resolution to Excuse Council Member Howrylak  
 
Resolution #2010-09-198 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of Council Member Martin 
Howrylak at the Regular City Council Meeting of Monday, September 20, 2010 due to being out 
of the county. 
 
Yes: Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming, McGinnis, Slater  
No: Kerwin  
Absent: Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED  

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:  
C-1 Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations Scheduled 
 
a) A Presentation was received from Charlie Lu, Marketing Director of the Oriental Culture 

Association regarding their annual event, “Shen Yun Performing Arts”. 
a) On behalf of the City of Troy, Mayor Louise Schilling presented a proclamation to David 

Paull, COO of Medical Weight Loss Clinic in Troy in recognition of Childhood Obesity 
Awareness Week on September 20-27, 2010.  

b) On behalf of the City of Troy, Mayor Louise Schilling presented a proclamation to Ann 
Comiskey, Executive Director of Troy Community Coalition, recognizing the 10th 
Anniversary of A Day to Eat Dinner with Your Children on September 27, 2010. 

 
D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 
D-1 No Carryover Items 
 

pallottaba
Text Box
J-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft September 20, 2010 
 

- 2 - 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
E-1 No Public Hearings Scheduled 
 
Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #6 - Order 
of Business 
 
Resolution #2010-09-199 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SUSPENDS Rules of Procedure for the City 
Council, Rule #6 - Order of Business to take action on an item that does not appear on the 
agenda. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Fleming, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution to Reduce Public Comment, Rule #16 – Members of the Public & Visitors 
 
Resolution #2010-09-200 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REDUCES Public Comment, Rule #16, Members 
of the Public & Visitors, from five minutes to two minutes at the request of the Chair and by 
majority vote of City Council. 
 
Yes: Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling 
No: Fleming, Beltramini  
Absent: Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED  
 
Vote on Resolution to Rescind Resolution to Reduce Public Comment, Rule 16 – 
Members of the Public & Visitors 
 
Resolution #2010-09-201 
Moved by Schilling 
Seconded by Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RESCINDS resolution to Reduce Public Comment, 
Rule #16 – Members of the Public & Visitors. 
 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft September 20, 2010 
 

- 3 - 

Yes: Fleming, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Beltramini  
No: None  
Absent: Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED  
 
F. PUBLIC COMMENT:  
 
Ralph Koerber: Discussed various topics (barbed wire fencing at Sylvan Glen, safety 

policy and city fleet) raised in a communication he forwarded to city 
council members.  

Earl Cannon: Discussed concerns about negative comments received at the last City 
Council meeting regarding management and the library; spoke in support 
of the library. 

Janice Daniels: Spoke in opposition of the library proposals. 
Gordon Schepke Raised various questions in regard to library proposals. 
Michael Hutson: Discussed the Intermodal Transit Facility project from his perspective as 

the Planning Commission Chair. 
Gerard Staeger: Spoke in opposition of the November library proposals; spoke in support 

of a new petition currently being circulated.  
Marvin Reinhardt: Spoke in opposition of the DDA; discussed various other agenda items 

and topics. 
Edna Abrahim: Spoke in support of Library Proposal I. 
Kumar Bhatt: Spoke in support of Library Proposal I. 
James Savage: Spoke in opposition of the Intermodal Transit Facility proposal. 
Tony Cruz: Spoke in opposition of library proposals. 
Edward Kempen: Spoke in opposition of library proposals; discussed circulation of a petition 

offering other options to voters. 
Thomas Burke: Spoke in opposition to Troy’s Distracted Driver’s Law; discussed 

opposition and raised questions regarding library proposals. 
Richard Peters: Discussed various topics. 

G. RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 
H-1 No Postponed Items 
 
The meeting RECESSED at 9:10 PM. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 9:20 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 
I-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: None Scheduled 
 
I-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: None Scheduled 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft September 20, 2010 
 

- 4 - 

I-3 Request for Closed Session – None Requested 
 
I-4 Preliminary Site Plan Approval (File Number SP 957) – Troy/Birmingham 

Intermodal Transit Facility – South of Maple Road, West of Coolidge, Section 31, 
Zoned M-1 (Light Industrial) – Controlled by Consent Judgment 

 
Resolution 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Slater  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby GRANTS Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as 
requested for the proposed Troy/Birmingham Intermodal Transit Facility, located south of Maple 
Road, west of Coolidge Highway, in Section 31, within the M-1 Zoning District and controlled by 
Consent Judgment. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend Proposed Resolution A – As Recommended by City 
Management by Substitution 
 
Resolution #2010-09-202 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Kerwin  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS proposed Resolution A – As 
Recommended by City Management by STRIKING it in its entirety and SUBSTITUTING it with 
Resolution B – As Recommended by the Planning Commission. 
 
Yes: McGinnis, Slater, Beltramini, Fleming, Kerwin  
No: Schilling  
Absent: Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend Proposed Resolution B – As Recommended by the 
Planning Commission 
 
Resolution #2010-09-203 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Kerwin  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS Resolution B - As Recommended by the 
Planning Commission by INSERTING ”after the results of the environmental assessment so 
that changes required by the environmental assessment may be made in conjunction with any 
enhancements outlined at the workshop and then presented as a whole to Troy City Council 
and Birmingham’s Planning Board prior to Final Site Plan Approval” AFTER “workshop” and 
STRIKE “so that the results of the workshop can be presented to the Troy City Council and 
Birmingham’s Planning Board prior to Final Site Plan Approval in the second “BE IT FURTHER 
RESOLVED”.  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft September 20, 2010 
 

- 5 - 

Yes: Slater, Beltramini, Fleming, Kerwin, McGinnis  
No: Schilling  
Absent: Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution as Amended by Substitution 
 
Resolution #2010-09-204 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Slater 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby GRANTS Preliminary Site Plan Approval, 
requested for the proposed Troy/Birmingham Intermodal Transit Facility, located south of 
Maple Road, west of Coolidge Highway, in Section 31, within the M-1 Zoning District and 
controlled by Consent Judgment; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS City Management to 
conduct a design workshop prior to final approval, with members of the Planning Commission, 
the Planning Board, the Hubbell, Roth & Clark team and staff from the Cities of Birmingham 
and Troy. The goal of the workshop would be to discuss and incorporate further design 
enhancements into the plans for improved aesthetics and functionality of the project. In 
general, the enhancements will address: 
 

• Building façade articulation to create a greater visual interest; 
• A more identifiable building entrance; 
• Enhancing the sense of arrival by focusing on a major point of interest; 
• Establishing visual interest with human-scale elements at the building; 
• Creating transitional features between the building, the ground plane and retaining 

wall; and 
• Offering additional, cost effective, sustainable design features. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS City Management to 
schedule the workshop after the results of the environmental assessment so that changes 
required by the environmental assessment may be made in conjunction with any 
enhancements outlined at the workshop and then presented as a whole to Troy City Council 
and Birmingham’s Planning Board prior to Final Site Plan Approval; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the project SHALL be developed so that the construction 
cost does not exceed the approved funding amount. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Fleming, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater 
No: Schilling  
Absent: Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft September 20, 2010 
 

- 6 - 

I-5 Towing Administrative Fees 
 
Resolution #2010-09-205 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Police Department charges an Administrative Fee of $10.00 for towed 
and impounded vehicles;  
 
WHEREAS, The current Administrative Fee is significantly less than the actual costs incurred 
by the City and the average rate charged by many area police departments; and 
 
WHEREAS, City Council has the discretion to change the Administrative Fee at any time; 
  
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the increase of 
the Administrative Fee for towed and impounded vehicles from $10.00 to $30.00. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Fleming, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling  
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
I-6 Scheduling of a Special Meeting on October 11, 2010 with Mr. Barry Demp 
 
Resolution #2010-09-206 
Moved by McGinnis  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
WHEREAS, City Council directed the City Manager to find a coach/facilitator to assist City 
Council with team building, identifying a preferred future and delineation of goals and 
objectives; and 
 
WHEREAS, Mr. Barry Demp of Barry Demp Coaching has agreed to meet with City Council for 
an hour and a half at no charge for reason of determining with specificity what the governing 
body wants to achieve; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SCHEDULES a Special 
Meeting with City Management and Mr. Barry Demp on Monday, October 11, 2010 at 5:30 PM 
in the Council Boardroom of Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI 48084 for the purpose 
of meeting with Barry Demp of Barry Demp Coaching for team building, identifying a preferred 
future and delineation of goals and objectives. 
 
Yes: Fleming, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Beltramini  
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft September 20, 2010 
 

- 7 - 

I-7 Municipal Credit and Community Credit Agreement 
 
Resolution #2010-09-207 
Moved by Fleming  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the request to transfer Municipal 
Credit funds in the amount of $76,084.00 and Community Credit funds in the amount of 
$110,732.00, or the amount transferred to the City from SMART, to Troy Medi-Go Plus for the 
operation of transportation service for senior citizens and persons with disabilities; and 
  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and 
City Clerk to EXECUTE the documents; copies of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming  
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
J-1a Approval of “I” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2010-09-208 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by McGinnis  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 
presented. 
 
Yes: McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming, Kerwin  
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
J-1b  Address of “I” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 
J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2010-09-208-J-2 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular 
and Special City Council Meetings of September 13, 2010 as submitted. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft September 20, 2010 
 

- 8 - 

J-3 City of Troy Proclamations:  
 
Resolution #2010-09-208-J-3 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following City of Troy 
Proclamations: 
 
a) Childhood Obesity Awareness Week – September 20-27, 2010 
b) A Day to Eat Dinner with Your Children – September 27, 2010 
 
J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions: None Submitted 
 
J-5 Temporary Waiver of Parking Restriction on Grand Haven 
 
Resolution #2010-09-208-J-5 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby temporarily WAIVES the no parking restrictions on 
the south side of Grand Haven from the west driveway of the American House located at 2300 
Grand Haven to the west Driveway of 920 John R, beginning on Monday, October 4, 2010 for 
approximately 10 days, until the parking lot of 920 John R resurfacing project is completed.  

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 
K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  
 
a) Announcement of Public Hearings for Industrial Development District (IDD) and 

Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate for Magna Powertrain at 1870-1932 
Technology 

b) Announcement of Public Hearings for Industrial Development District (IDD) and 
Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate for Witzenmann USA, LLC at 1201 
Stephenson 

Noted and Filed 

K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 
 some future point in time): 
 
a) Streamlining Boards and Committees 
 
L. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  
L-1  No Council Referrals Advanced  

M. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
M-1   Council Comments Advanced: 
 
Council Member Beltramini asked City Assessor, Nino Licari to respond to statements made 
regarding the City of Clawson‘s tax rate during Public Comment. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft September 20, 2010 
 

- 9 - 

City Assessor Licari provided current tax rate information in response to the speaker’s remarks. 
 
Council Member Beltramini referenced an article that appeared in USA TODAY regarding a 
study conducted recently about distracted drivers. 

N. REPORTS  
N-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 
a) Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust / Final – April 14, 2010 
b) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees / Final-Amended – June 9, 2010 
c) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees / Final – July 14, 2010 
d) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees / Final – August 11, 2010 
e) Planning Commission-Special/Study / Draft – August 24, 2010 
f) Animal Control Appeal Board / Draft – September 1, 2010 

Noted and Filed 

N-2 Department Reports:  
a) Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services – July & August 2010 

Noted and Filed 
 
N-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter of Appreciation from Terry M. Nerbonne, Ph.D – Ferris State University to Chief 

Gary Mayer Thanking the Members of the Police Department Who Assisted in Making 
the Criminal Justice Summer 2010 Internship Program a Success 

b) E-mail from Faz Weslati to Chief Gary Mayer in Appreciation for the Service They 
Received from Officer Kirk Linton 

c) Letter of Appreciation from Robert Pelachyk, President/CEO of HELLER Machine Tools 
to John Szerlag 

Noted and Filed 
 
N-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Received 
 
N-5  Memorandum: Kocenda v Troy 

Noted and Filed 
 
N-6  Senior Citizen Program Annual Report 

Noted and Filed 
 
N-7 Confirmation of Services for Financial Audit from Rehmann 

Noted and Filed 
 
N-8 Report from Standard & Poor's Regarding Troy's Bond Rating 

Noted and Filed 
 
N-9 Organizational Structure: Museum and Nature Center 

Noted and Filed 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft September 20, 2010 
 

- 10 - 

O. STUDY ITEMS 
O-1  Update from SAFEbuilt 
 
O-2  Organizational Restructuring Proposal from the International City Management 

Association (ICMA) - Consensus of City Council for City Management to prepare the 
proposal as an agenda item for action at the October 4, 2010 Regular City Council 
meeting. 

P. CLOSED SESSION: 
P-1 None Requested 

Q. ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting RECESSED at 10:54 PM. 

The meeting RECONVENED at 11:03 PM. 

The meeting ADJOURNED at 12:06 PM. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC  
City Clerk 

 



CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL SESSION MINUTES – Draft September 20, 2010 
 

- 1 - 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 
The Special Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, September 20, 2010, at City 
Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 6:31 PM. 

B. ROLL CALL: 
(a)  Mayor Louise E. Schilling 

Robin Beltramini 
Mayor Pro Tem Wade Fleming 
Martin Howrylak (Absent) 
Mary Kerwin 
Maureen McGinnis 
Dane Slater 
 

Vote on Resolution to Excuse Council Member Howrylak  
 
Resolution #2010-09-196 
Moved by Fleming   
Seconded by  Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of Council Member 
Howrylak at the City Council Special Session and Closed Session of Monday, September 20, 
2010 due to being out of the county. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Fleming, McGinnis, Slater    
No: Schilling, Kerwin  
Absent: Howrylak   
 
MOTION CARRIED  

C. DISCUSSION ITEMS:  

C-1 City Manager - 2010 Annual Evaluation    
 
Resolution #2010-09-197 
Moved by Kerwin   
Seconded by  Slater  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a Closed Session for Monday, 
September 20, 2010 in the Council Board Room of Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, 
Michigan for the purpose of performance evaluation of the City Manager, pursuant to MCL 
15.268 (a). 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Fleming, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling  
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 

pallottaba
Text Box
J-02



CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL SESSION MINUTES – Draft September 20, 2010 
 

- 2 - 

D. PUBLIC COMMENT:                                                                                    

E. ADJOURNMENT: 

The meeting RECESSED at 6:33 PM. 

The meeting RECONVENED at 6:33 PM. 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 7:22 PM. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC  
City Clerk 

 



pallottaba
Text Box
J-04a-1



 1 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF TROY AND 

 TROY COMMUNITY COALITION 

 

 

 This Agreement, by and between the City of Troy, 500 W. Big Beaver Road, 

Troy, Michigan 48084 (hereinafter referred to as the “CITY”), and the Troy Community 

Coalition, 4420 Livernois, Troy, Michigan 48098, a Michigan non-profit organization, 

(hereinafter referred to as “TCC”),  

 

RECITALS 

 

 WHEREAS, the CITY desires to provide for a problem-solving service for 

individuals in an effort to prevent drug and alcohol abuse through individual, group, and 

family counseling to enable those served to cope with problems adversely affecting the 

ability of the individual to make optimal use of their world, i.e. social adjustment, work 

adjustment; and to provide free, on-site and off-site service for individuals, especially 

those who cannot afford private services; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the CITY desires to provide individuals with an opportunity to 

participate in the TCC program; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the general purpose of the TCC is to provide opportunities for 

mental, social and physical growth and development of individuals to prevent drug and 

alcohol abuse and to cope with their environment; and 

  

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above in meeting the needs of 

residents of the CITY, and in consideration of the promises and mutual covenants 

hereinafter contained, the parties agree as follows: 

 

TCC RESPONSIBILITIES.   

 

1.  General Project Summary.  A general description of the community services to 

be provided by TCC is as follows: 

 

A.  A mental health worker, a licensed social worker, psychologist, or 

counselor, on staff at TCC shall be available to the individuals of the 

community who are having difficulty in their personal and social 

adjustments.  This person will work with individuals, youths, parents, 

schools and other community organizations, consistent with their 

professional training and licensing, in helping the youth grow towards a 

more satisfactory adjustment.  The worker will act as a liaison for the 

individual, agencies, and family. 

 

B.  TCC shall also offer programs to individuals which are designed to 

further the social and emotional needs of the individuals and to prevent 

drug and alcohol abuse. 



 2 

 

  C.  TCC will continue to provide service at the current level or greater. 

 

2.  Program Description. A detailed description of each program offered will be 

provided to the CITY, will be maintained on file at TCC, and will be available for 

inspection by the CITY on request. 

 

3.  Location of Facility.  TCC shall provide an office or treatment facility within 

the CITY.  Currently, that facility is located at 4420 Livernois, Troy, Michigan 

48098.  The CITY shall be notified immediately of any relocation or planned 

relocation of the facility. 

 

4.  Service Documentation.  TCC shall provide a quarterly report which may be in 

the form of minutes from monthly TCC Board of Directors meetings to the CITY 

in October, January, April and July, including but not limited to the following 

information: 

 

A.  Data regarding TCC’s operation, including but not limited to, the 

number of persons serviced by TCC programs, attendance records for 

counseling and programs, duration of programs, etc. 

 

  B.  Types of cases treated and referral source(s). 

 

  C.  All community and special projects undertaken by TCC. 

 

  D.  Other information that the CITY may deem necessary without 

                         jeopardizing the confidentiality of the TCC clientele. 

 

5.  Fiscal Requirements.  TCC shall maintain an accounting system to identify and 

support all expenditures, i.e., all income and expenses for which services are 

provided under this Agreement.  The accounting system, at a minimum, shall 

consist of a chart of accounts, cash receipts journal, cash disbursements journal, 

and general ledger.  All expenditures and income must be supported by vouchers 

and receipts that detail the reason for the transaction. 

 

TCC shall submit to the CITY a copy of its annual budget for any fiscal year 

which falls within the twelve-month period covered by this Agreement.  These 

budgets shall show the TCC budget, total expenditures, and expenditures funded 

and claimed to other funding sources. 

 

TCC shall provide to the CITY a quarterly financial statement which may be in 

the form of Monthly Treasurer Reports as submitted to the TCC Board of 

Directors in October, January, April and July, including total income and 

expenditures for the previous three (3) months. 

 



 3 

TCC agrees to retain at its costs all books, records or other documents relevant to 

this Agreement for six years after final payment.   

 

6.  Review of Programs by the City.  Upon request, TCC will review with the 

CITY staff the programs funded by this Agreement to determine if there are 

appropriate counseling activities or educational guidance and which may be 

utilized by the individual.   

 

7.  Confidentiality.   The use or disclosure of information concerning applicants 

for services or recipients of services, obtained in connection with the performance 

of the Agreement, shall be restricted to purposes directly connected with the 

administration of the programs implemented by this Agreement and must be 

consistent with all statutory requirements. 

 

8.  Subcontracts.  TCC shall not assign this Agreement or enter into any 

subcontracts for services under this Agreement without obtaining prior written 

approval of the CITY. 

 

9.  Indemnify and Hold Harmless.  TCC shall indemnify, save and hold harmless 

the CITY, its employees, officers, and agents, and affiliated entities from any 

losses, damages, judgments, claims, expenses, costs, and liabilities, including 

attorney fees, interest and legal expenses, which may arise from or be caused 

directly or indirectly by any act or omission of TCC or its officers, directors, 

employees, agents or volunteers. 

 

10. Insurance.  TCC shall present to the CITY documentation that is satisfactory 

to the CITY that indicates that TCC is covered under a policy of insurance or self-

insurance. 

 

TROY’S RESPONSIBILITIES 

 

The CITY hereby agrees to pay to TCC an amount not to exceed $50,000.00 for 

services performed under this Agreement. Full payment shall be made by 

September 30, 2010.  

 

Obligations incurred by TCC prior to or after the period covered by this 

Agreement shall be excluded. 

 

MUTUAL COVENANTS 

 

1. Cancellation of Agreement.   If the CITY determines that TCC fails to comply 

with the conditions of this Agreement, or to fulfill its responsibility as indicated in 

the Agreement, or the CITY determines that the methods and techniques being 

utilized in accomplishing the goals of this Agreement are not acceptable or 

compatible with the CITY’s policy, then the CITY reserves the right to cancel this 

Agreement by giving thirty (30) days written notice to TCC.  If TCC becomes 



 4 

defunct, TCC will reimburse the CITY for all pre-payments based on the date of 

termination. 

 

2.  Employees of  TCC.  Representatives, employees and volunteers of TCC shall 

not be deemed to be employees or agents of the CITY for any purposes solely 

because of their participation with TCC. 

 

3.  Independent Contractors.  TCC is an independent contractor, and its agents, 

employees, or servants are responsible for its own conduct.  This Agreement is 

not a joint venture for the profit of either party. 

 

4.  Compliance with Laws.  TCC shall be responsible for compliance with all 

Federal, State and City laws or ordinances.  Any violation of the law or ordinance 

results in material breach of the Agreement. 

 

5.  Terms of Agreement.  This Agreement shall become effective as of September 

1, 2010 and shall terminate on August 31, 2011 unless terminated under the 

provisions set forth in this Agreement. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the CITY and TCC have caused this Agreement to be 

executed by their respective authorized officers. 

 

 

WITNESSES:      CITY OF TROY 

 

 

____________________________   ____________________________ 

Louise Schilling, Mayor 

 

____________________________                           ______________________________ 

       Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 

 

 

 

WITNESSES:      TROY COMMUNITY COALITION 

 

 

____________________________   _____________________________ 

       Ann M. Comiskey,  

       Executive Director 



pallottaba
Text Box
J-04a-2



 1 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF TROY AND  

COMMON GROUND SANCTUARY 

 

 This Agreement, by and between the City of Troy, 500 W. Big Beaver Road, 

Troy, Michigan  48084 (hereinafter referred to as the “CITY”), and Common Ground 

Sanctuary, 1410 South Telegraph Road, Bloomfield Hills, Michigan  48302, a Michigan 

non-profit organization, (hereinafter referred to as “ Common Ground Sanctuary”),  

 

RECITALS 

 

 WHEREAS, the CITY desires to provide for problem-solving for individuals and 

families in crisis, victims of crime, persons with mental illness, persons trying to cope 

with critical situations and runaway and homeless youths, especially those who cannot 

afford private services; and 

  

 WHEREAS, the general purpose of Common Ground Sanctuary is to provide 

opportunities for individuals and families in crisis: 

  

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above in meeting the needs of the 

individual, including youth and families of the CITY, and in consideration of the 

promises and mutual covenants hereinafter contained, the parties agree as follows: 

 

COMMON GROUND SANCTUARY RESPONSIBILITIES.   

 

1.  General Project Summary.  A general description of the community services to 

be provided by Common Ground Sanctuary is as follows: 

 

A.  A mental health worker, a licensed social worker, psychologist, or 

counselor, on staff at Common Ground Sanctuary shall oversee programs 

designed to make crisis assistant available including, but not limited to, a 

24-hour crisis telephone line, victim assistance programs, runaway and 

homeless youth shelters, street outreach programs, legal clinics and in-

home counseling programs.   

 

B.  Common Ground Sanctuary shall offer these programs to  individuals, 

including youth, and families in crisis, victims of crime, persons with 

mental illness, individuals trying to cope with critical situations and 

runaway and homeless youths, including residents of the City of Troy. 

 

C.  Common Ground Sanctuary will continue to provide service at the 

current level or greater. 

 

2.  Program Description. A detailed description of each program offered will be 

provided to the CITY, will be maintained on file at Common Ground Sanctuary, 

and will be available for inspection by the CITY on request. 

 



 2 

3.  Location of Facility.  Common Ground Sanctuary has administrative offices at 

1410 South Telegraph Road, Bloomfield Hills, Michigan  48302.  The CITY shall 

be notified immediately of any relocation or planned relocation of the facility. 

 

4.  Service Documentation.  Common Ground Sanctuary shall provide a quarterly 

report which may be in the form of minutes from monthly Common Ground 

Sanctuary Board of Directors meetings to the CITY in October, January, April 

and July, including but not limited to the following information: 

 

A.  Data regarding Common Ground Sanctuary’s operation, including but 

not limited to, the number of persons serviced by Common Ground 

Sanctuary programs, attendance records for counseling and programs, 

duration of programs, etc. 

 

  B.  Types of cases treated and referral source(s). 

 

C.  All community and special projects undertaken by Common Ground 

Sanctuary. 

 

  D.  Other information that the CITY may deem necessary without 

jeopardizing the confidentiality of the Common Ground Sanctuary 

clientele. 

 

5.  Fiscal Requirements.  Common Ground Sanctuary shall maintain an 

accounting system to identify and support all expenditures, i.e., all income and 

expenses for which services are provided under this Agreement.  The accounting 

system, at a minimum, shall consist of a chart of accounts, cash receipts journal, 

cash disbursements journal, and general ledger.  All expenditures and income 

must be supported by vouchers and receipts that detail the reason for the 

transaction. 

 

Common Ground Sanctuary shall submit to the CITY a copy of its annual budget 

for any fiscal year which falls within the twelve-month period covered by this 

Agreement.  These budgets shall show the Common Ground Sanctuary budget, 

total expenditures, and expenditures funded and claimed to other funding sources. 

 

Common Ground Sanctuary shall provide to the CITY a quarterly financial 

statement which may be in the form of Monthly Treasurer Reports as submitted to 

the Common Ground Sanctuary Board of Directors in October, January, April and 

July, including total income and expenditures for the previous three (3) months. 

 

Common Ground Sanctuary agrees to retain at its costs all books, records or other 

documents relevant to this Agreement for six years after final payment.   

 

6.  Review of Programs by the City.  Upon request, Common Ground Sanctuary 

will review with the CITY staff the programs funded by this Agreement to 



 3 

determine if there are appropriate crisis guidance programs and counseling 

activities which may be utilized by individuals and families.   

 

7.  Confidentiality.   The use or disclosure of information concerning applicants 

for services or recipients of services, obtained in connection with the performance 

of the Agreement, shall be restricted to purposes directly connected with the 

administration of the programs implemented by this Agreement and must be 

consistent with all statutory requirements. 

 

8.  Subcontracts.  Common Ground Sanctuary shall not assign this Agreement or 

enter into any subcontracts for services under this Agreement without obtaining 

prior written approval of the CITY. 

 

9.  Indemnify and Hold Harmless.  Common Ground Sanctuary shall indemnify, 

save and hold harmless the CITY, its employees, officers, and agents, and 

affiliated entities from any losses, damages, judgments, claims, expenses, costs, 

and liabilities, including attorney fees, interest and legal expenses, which may 

arise from or be caused directly or indirectly by any act or omission of Common 

Ground Sanctuary or its officers, directors, employees, agents or volunteers. 

 

10. Insurance.  Common Ground Sanctuary shall present to the CITY 

documentation that is satisfactory to the CITY that indicates that Common 

Ground Sanctuary is covered under a policy of insurance or self-insurance with 

Oakland County, Michigan. 

 

TROY’S RESPONSIBILITIES 

 

The CITY hereby agrees to pay to Common Ground Sanctuary an amount not to 

exceed $2,040.00 for services performed under this Agreement.  Payment is to be 

made in one payment in September, 2010. 

 

Obligations incurred by Common Ground Sanctuary prior to or after the period 

covered by this Agreement shall be excluded. 

 

MUTUAL COVENANTS 

 

1. Cancellation of Agreement.   If the CITY determines that Common Ground 

Sanctuary fails to comply with the conditions of this Agreement, or to fulfill its 

responsibility as indicated in the Agreement, or the CITY determines that the 

methods and techniques being utilized in accomplishing the goals of this 

Agreement are not acceptable or compatible with the CITY’s policy, then the 

CITY reserves the right to cancel this Agreement by giving thirty (30) days 

written notice to Common Ground Sanctuary,  If  Common Ground Sanctuary 

becomes defunct, Common Ground Sanctuary will reimburse the CITY for all 

pre-payments based on the date of termination. 

 



 4 

2.  Employees of Common Ground Sanctuary.  Representatives, employees and 

volunteers of Common Ground Sanctuary shall not be deemed to be employees or 

agents of the CITY for any purposes solely because of their participation with 

Common Ground Sanctuary. 

 

3.  Independent Contractors.  Common Ground Sanctuary is an independent 

contractor, and its agents, employees, or servants are responsible for its own 

conduct.  This Agreement is not a joint venture for the profit of either party. 

 

4.  Compliance with Laws.  Common Ground Sanctuary shall be responsible for 

compliance with all Federal, State and City laws or ordinances.  Any violation of 

the law or ordinance results in material breach of the Agreement. 

 

5.  Terms of Agreement.  This Agreement shall become effective as of July 1, 

2010 and shall terminate on June 30, 2011 unless terminated under the provisions 

set forth in this Agreement. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the CITY and Common Ground Sanctuary have caused this 

Agreement to be executed by their respective authorized officers. 

 

 

WITNESSES:     CITY OF TROY 

 

 

____________________________  ____________________________ 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 

 

____________________________                 ______________________________ 

      Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 

 

 

 

WITNESSES:     COMMON GROUND SANCTUARY 

 

 

____________________________  _____________________________ 

      Tony Rothschild, President and CEO  

 

____________________________  



pallottaba
Text Box
J-04a-3



 1 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF TROY AND HAVEN, INC. 

 

 This Agreement, by and between the City of Troy, 500 W. Big Beaver Road, 

Troy, Michigan  48084 (hereinafter referred to as the “CITY”), and Haven, Inc., 2550 

Telegraph Road, Suite 111, Bloomfield Hills, Michigan  48302, a Michigan non-profit  

corporation, (hereinafter referred to as “HAVEN”),  

 

RECITALS 

 

 WHEREAS, the CITY desires to provide crisis intervention, shelter, advocacy, 

individual, group and family counseling for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault 

and child abuse; and to further provide for counseling to the perpetrators of domestic 

violence in an attempt to prevent further violence from occurring; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the general purpose of the HAVEN is to provide available shelter to 

citizens who are forced to escape from the home where violence occurs; and to provide 

ongoing counseling to help heal the damage caused by these terrible crimes; and  

 

 WHEREAS, HAVEN also provides a 24-hour crisis line for immediate assistance 

for the citizens of the City, 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above in meeting the needs of the 

citizens of the CITY, and in consideration of the promises and mutual covenants 

hereinafter contained, the parties agree as follows: 

 

HAVENS RESPONSIBILITIES.   

 

1.  General Project Summary.  A general description of the community services to 

be provided by HAVEN is as follows: 

 

A.  A mental health worker, a licensed social worker, psychologist, or 

counselor on staff at HAVEN or available for consultation to HAVEN, 

shall supervise all activities ongoing under the HAVEN program 

consisting of, but not limited to, crisis intervention, shelter, advocacy, 

individual, group and family counseling for victims of domestic violence, 

sexual assault and child abuse. HAVEN shall also maintain a 24-hour 

crisis line to provide immediate assistance to the citizens of the City and 

others who are in need of such assistance. 

 

B. Other project responsibilities include, but are not limited to, counseling 

for the perpetrators of domestic violence in an attempt to prevent further 

violence from occurring. 

 

  C.  HAVEN will continue to provide service at the current level or greater. 

 



 2 

2.  Program Description. A detailed description of each program offered will be 

maintained on file at HAVEN and will be available for inspection by the CITY on 

request. 

 

3.  Location of Facility.  HAVEN shall provide an office and/or treatment facility 

at 2550 Telegraph Road, Suite 111, Bloomfield Hills, Michigan  48302. The 

CITY shall be notified immediately of any relocation or planned relocation of the 

facility.  HAVEN shall maintain “safe houses: in the area for use by its citizens 

and that the locations of those “safe house” shall remain confidential for the 

protections of the residents. 

 

4.  Service Documentation.  HAVEN shall provide a quarterly report which may 

be in the form of minutes from monthly HAVEN Board of Directors meetings to 

the CITY in October, January, April and July, including but not limited to the 

following information: 

 

A.  Data regarding  HAVEN’s operation, including but not limited to, the 

number of persons serviced by HAVEN programs, attendance records for 

counseling and programs, duration of programs, etc. 

 

  B.  Types of cases treated and referral source(s). 

 

  C.  All community and special projects undertaken by HAVEN. 

 

  D.  Other information that the CITY may deem necessary without 

                         jeopardizing the confidentiality of the HAVEN clientele. 

 

5.  Fiscal Requirements.  HAVEN shall maintain an accounting system to identify 

and support all expenditures, i.e., all income and expenses for which services are 

provided under this Agreement.  The accounting system, at a minimum, shall 

consist of a chart of accounts, cash receipts journal, cash disbursements journal, 

and general ledger.  All expenditures and income must be supported by vouchers 

and receipts that detail the reason for the transaction. 

 

HAVEN shall submit to the CITY a copy of its annual budget for any fiscal year, 

which falls within the twelve-month period covered by this Agreement.  These 

budgets shall show the HAVEN budget, total expenditures, and expenditures 

funded and claimed to other funding sources. 

 

HAVEN shall provide to the CITY a quarterly financial statement which may be 

in the form of Monthly Treasurer Reports as submitted to the HAVEN Board of 

Directors in October, January, April and July, including total income and 

expenditures for the previous three (3) months. 

 

HAVEN agrees to retain at its costs all books, records or other documents 

relevant to this Agreement for six years after final payment.   



 3 

 

6.  Review of Programs by the City.  Upon request, HAVEN will review with the 

CITY staff the programs funded by this Agreement to determine if there are 

appropriate shelter and counseling activities which may be utilized by citizens.  

 

7.  Confidentiality.   The use or disclosure of information concerning applicants 

for services or recipients of services, obtained in connection with the performance 

of the Agreement, shall be restricted to purposes directly connected with the 

administration of the programs implemented by this Agreement and must be 

consistent with all statutory requirements. 

 

8.  Subcontracts.  HAVEN shall not assign this Agreement or enter into any 

subcontracts for services under this Agreement without obtaining prior written 

approval of the CITY. 

 

9.  Indemnify and Hold Harmless.  HAVEN shall indemnify, defend, pay on 

behalf of save and hold harmless the CITY, its elected and appointed officials, 

employees, volunteers, officers, agents, and affiliated entities against and from 

any losses, damages, judgments, claims, demands, suits, expenses, costs, and 

liabilities, personal injury or death and/or property damage, including attorney 

fees, interest and legal expenses, which may arise from or be caused directly or 

indirectly by any act or omission of HAVEN or its officers, directors, employees, 

agents or volunteers.  

 

10. Insurance.  HAVEN shall present to the CITY documentation that is 

satisfactory to the CITY that indicates that HAVEN is covered under a policy of 

insurance or self-insurance which is satisfactory to the CITY and which names the 

City as an additional insured. 

 

11.  Discrimination prohibited.  HAVEN shall not discriminate against any 

employee or applicant for employment with respect to hire, tenure, terms, 

conditions, or privileges of employment, on a matter directly or indirectly related 

to employment, because of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, height, 

weight, or marital status pursuant to the Elliot Larsen Civil Rights Act, 1976, P.A. 

453.  HAVEN shall comply with the provisions of the Michigan Handicappers 

Civil Rights Act, 1976, P.A. 220 and the Federal Rehabilitations Act of 1973, 

P.A. 93-112, 87 Stat. 394, which requires that no employee or client or otherwise, 

qualified handicapped individual shall, solely by reason of his handicap, be 

excluded from participation, be denied the benefits of or be subjected to, 

discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal assistance.  No 

person shall, on the grounds of  race, creed, color, sex, age, national origin, 

height, weight, handicap, or marital status, be excluded from participation in, be 

denied the proceeds of, or be subject to discrimination in the performance of this 

contract.  HAVEN shall comply with all applicable regulations promulgated 

pursuant to the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended. 

 



 4 

12.  Prohibition of Political and Religious Activity.  There shall be no religious 

worship, instruction, or proselytization as part of, or in connection with the 

performance of this Agreement.  None of the funds, materials, property or 

services under this Agreement shall be used in the performance of services under 

this Agreement for any partisan political activity, including lobbying, as specified 

in Federal Circular A-122, Cost Principles for Non-profit Organizations – 

lobbying revisions, or to further the election, defeat, recall, impeachment, 

appointment or dismissal of any candidate for or from any public office. 

 

CITY’S RESPONSIBILITIES 

 

The CITY hereby agrees to pay to HAVEN an amount not to exceed $ 4,370.00 

for services performed under this Agreement.  Payment will be made in one 

payment in September, 2010. 

 

Obligations incurred by HAVEN prior to or after the period covered by this 

Agreement shall be excluded. 

 

MUTUAL COVENANTS 

 

1. Cancellation of Agreement.   If the CITY determines that HAVEN fails or has 

failed to comply with the conditions of this Agreement, or to fulfill its 

responsibility as indicated in the Agreement, or the CITY determines that the 

methods and techniques being utilized in accomplishing the goals of this 

Agreement are not acceptable or compatible with the CITY’s policy, then the 

CITY reserves the right to cancel this Agreement by giving thirty (30) days 

written notice to HAVEN.  If HAVEN becomes defunct, HAVEN will reimburse 

the CITY for all pre-payments based on the date of termination. 

 

2.  Employees of HAVEN.  Representatives, employees and volunteers of 

HAVEN shall not be deemed to be employees or agents of the CITY for any 

purposes solely because of their participation with HAVEN. 

 

3.  Independent Contractors.  HAVEN is an independent contractor, and its 

agents, employees, or servants are responsible for its own conduct.  This 

Agreement is not a joint venture for the profit of either party. 

 

4.  Compliance with Laws.  HAVEN shall be responsible for compliance with all 

Federal, State and City laws or ordinances.  Any violation of the law or ordinance 

results in material breach of the Agreement. 

 

5.  Notices.  Whenever under this Agreement provision is made for notice of any 

kind, unless otherwise herein expressly provided, it shall be in writing and shall 

be served personally or sent by registered or certified mail with postage prepaid, 

to the addresses stated below, or such other address as either of the parties may 



 5 

subsequently designate in writing by notice to the other party in the manner 

required hereunder:  

 

 Notice to City:          Tonni Bartholomew 

             City Clerk, City of Troy 

             500 W. Big Beaver Road 

                                       Troy, Michigan  48084 

 

 Notice to Haven:       Beth Morrison, President & CEO 

              HAVEN, INC. 

              2550 Telegraph Road 

              Suite 111 

              Bloomfield Hills, Michigan  48302 

 

6.  Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between 

HAVEN and the CITY with respect to the subject matter hereof; and there are no 

other further written or oral understandings or agreements with respect hereto.  

 

7.  Modification.  No variation or modification of this Agreement and no waiver 

of its provisions shall be valid unless in writing and signed by the parties.        

 

8.  Terms of Agreement.  This Agreement shall become effective as of July 1, 

2010 and shall terminate on June 30, 2011 unless terminated under the provisions 

set forth in this Agreement. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the CITY and HAVEN have caused this Agreement to 

be executed by their respective authorized officers. 

 

 

WITNESSES:      CITY OF TROY 

 

 

____________________________   ____________________________ 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 

 

____________________________                           ______________________________ 

       Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 

 

 

 

WITNESSES:      HAVEN, INC. 

 

____________________________   _____________________________ 

       Beth Morrison, President & CEO 

 

____________________________    



pallottaba
Text Box
J-04a-4



 1 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF TROY AND AVONDALE YOUTH 

ASSISTANCE 

 

 This Agreement, by and between the City of Troy, 500 W. Big Beaver Road, 

Troy, Michigan  48084 (hereinafter referred to as the “CITY”), and the Avondale Youth 

Assistance, 260 South Squirrel Road, Auburn Hills, Michigan  48326, , a Michigan non-

profit organization, (hereinafter referred to as “AYA”),  

 

RECITALS 

 

 WHEREAS, the CITY desires to provide for a problem-solving service for youth 

and parents through individual, group, and family counseling to enable those served to 

cope with problems adversely affecting the ability of the youth to make optimal use of 

their world, i.e. social adjustment, work adjustment; and to provide free, on-site and off-

site service for youth, especially those who cannot afford private services; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the CITY desires to provide youth residents of the City an 

opportunity to participate in the AYA program; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the general purpose of the AYA is to provide opportunities for 

mental, social and physical growth and development of youth; and 

  

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above in meeting the needs of the 

youth of the CITY, and in consideration of the promises and mutual covenants hereinafter 

contained, the parties agree as follows: 

 

AYA RESPONSIBILITIES.   

 

1.  General Project Summary.  A general description of the community services to 

be provided by AYA is as follows: 

 

A.  A mental health worker, a licensed social worker, psychologist, or 

counselor, on staff at AYA shall be available to the youths of the 

community who are having difficulty in their personal and social 

adjustments.  This person will work with youths, parents, schools and 

other community organizations, consistent with their professional training 

and licensing, in helping the youth grow towards a more satisfactory 

adjustment.  The worker will act as a liaison for the youth, agencies, and 

family. 

 

B.  AYA shall also offer programs to resident youth which are designed to 

further the social and emotional needs of the youth. 

 

  C.  AYA will continue to provide service at the current level or greater. 

 



 2 

2.  Program Description. A detailed description of each program offered will be 

provided to the CITY, will be maintained on file at AYA, and will be available 

for inspection by the CITY on request. 

 

3.  Location of Facility.  AYA shall provide an office or treatment facility within 

a reasonable distance from the CITY. The CITY shall be notified immediately of 

any relocation or planned relocation of the facility. 

 

4.  Service Documentation.  AYA shall provide a quarterly report which may be 

in the form of minutes from monthly AYA Board of Directors meetings to the 

CITY in October, January, April and July, including but not limited to the 

following information: 

 

A.  Data regarding AYA’s operation, including but not limited to, the 

number of persons serviced by AYA programs, attendance records for 

counseling and programs, duration of programs, etc. 

 

  B.  Types of cases treated and referral source(s). 

 

  C.  All community and special projects undertaken by AYA. 

 

  D.  Other information that the CITY may deem necessary without 

                         jeopardizing the confidentiality of the AYA clientele. 

 

5.  Fiscal Requirements.  AYA shall maintain an accounting system to identify 

and support all expenditures, i.e., all income and expenses for which services are 

provided under this Agreement.  The accounting system, at a minimum, shall 

consist of a chart of accounts, cash receipts journal, cash disbursements journal, 

and general ledger.  All expenditures and income must be supported by vouchers 

and receipts that detail the reason for the transaction. 

 

AYA shall submit to the CITY a copy of its annual budget for any fiscal year 

which falls within the twelve-month period covered by this Agreement.  These 

budgets shall show the AYA budget, total expenditures, and expenditures funded 

and claimed to other funding sources. 

 

AYA shall provide to the CITY a quarterly financial statement which may be in 

the form of Monthly Treasurer Reports as submitted to the AYA Board of 

Directors in October, January, April and July, including total income and 

expenditures for the previous three (3) months. 

 

AYA agrees to retain at its costs all books, records or other documents relevant to 

this Agreement for six years after final payment.   

 

6.  Review of Programs by the City.  Upon request, AYA will review with the 

CITY staff the programs funded by this Agreement to determine if there are 



 3 

appropriate educational guidance and counseling activities which may be utilized 

by the youth.   

 

7.  Confidentiality.   The use or disclosure of information concerning applicants 

for services or recipients of services, obtained in connection with the performance 

of the Agreement, shall be restricted to purposes directly connected with the 

administration of the programs implemented by this Agreement and must be 

consistent with all statutory requirements. 

 

8.  Subcontracts.  AYA shall not assign this Agreement or enter into any 

subcontracts for services under this Agreement without obtaining prior written 

approval of the CITY. 

 

9.  Indemnify and Hold Harmless.  AYA shall indemnify, save and hold harmless 

the CITY, its employees, officers, and agents, and affiliated entities from any 

losses, damages, judgments, claims, expenses, costs, and liabilities, including 

attorney fees, interest and legal expenses, which may arise from or be caused 

directly or indirectly by any act or omission of AYA or its officers, directors, 

employees, agents or volunteers. 

 

10. Insurance.  AYA shall present to the CITY documentation that is satisfactory 

to the CITY that indicates that AYA is covered under a policy of insurance or 

self-insurance with Oakland County, Michigan. 

 

TROY’S RESPONSIBILITIES 

 

The CITY hereby agrees to pay to AYA an amount not to exceed $ 2,920.00 for 

services performed under this Agreement.  Payment is to be made in a lump sum 

in September of 2010. 

 

Obligations incurred by AYA prior to or after the period covered by this 

Agreement shall be excluded. 

 

MUTUAL COVENANTS 

 

1. Cancellation of Agreement.   If the CITY determines that AYA fails to comply 

with the conditions of this Agreement, or to fulfill its responsibility as indicated in 

the Agreement, or the CITY determines that the methods and techniques being 

utilized in accomplishing the goals of this Agreement are not acceptable or 

compatible with the CITY’s policy, then the CITY reserves the right to cancel this 

Agreement by giving thirty (30) days written notice to AYA.  If AYA becomes 

defunct, AYA will reimburse the CITY for all pre-payments based on the date of 

termination. 

 



 4 

2.  Employees of  AYA.  Representatives, employees and volunteers of AYA 

shall not be deemed to be employees or agents of the CITY for any purposes 

solely because of their participation with AYA. 

 

3.  Independent Contractors.  AYA is an independent contractor, and its agents, 

employees, or servants are responsible for its own conduct.  This Agreement is 

not a joint venture for the profit of either party. 

 

4.  Compliance with Laws.  AYA shall be responsible for compliance with all 

Federal, State and City laws or ordinances.  Any violation of the law or ordinance 

results in material breach of the Agreement. 

 

5.  Terms of Agreement.  This Agreement shall become effective as of August 1, 

2010 and shall terminate on July 31, 2011 unless terminated under the provisions 

set forth in this Agreement. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the CITY and AYA have caused this Agreement to be 

executed by their respective authorized officers. 

 

 

WITNESSES:     CITY OF TROY 

 

 

____________________________  ____________________________ 

Louise Schilling, Mayor 

 

____________________________                ______________________________ 

      Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 

 

 

 

WITNESSES:  AVONDALE YOUTH ASSISTANCE 

 

____________________________  _____________________________ 

      John Dalton, AYA Chairperson 

 

____________________________    



pallottaba
Text Box
J-05a-5



 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF TROY AND TROY YOUTH 

ASSISTANCE  
  

 This Agreement, by and between the City of Troy, 500 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy, 

Michigan  48084 (hereinafter referred to as the “CITY”), and the Troy Youth Assistance, 

4420 Livernois, Troy, Michigan  48098, a Michigan non-profit organization, (hereinafter 

referred to as “TYA”),   

  

RECITALS  
  

  WHEREAS, the CITY desires to provide for a problem-solving service for youth 

and parents through individual, group, and family counseling to enable those served to cope 

with problems adversely affecting the ability of the youth to make optimal use of their 

world, i.e. social adjustment, work adjustment; and to provide free, on-site and off-site 

service for youth, especially those who cannot afford private services; and  

  

  WHEREAS, the CITY desires to provide youth residents of the City an opportunity 

to participate in the TYA program; and  

  

  WHEREAS, the general purpose of the TYA is to provide opportunities for mental, 

social and physical growth and development of youth; and  

   

  NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above in meeting the needs of the 

youth of the CITY, and in consideration of the promises and mutual covenants hereinafter 

contained, the parties agree as follows:  

  

TYA RESPONSIBILITIES.    

  

1.  General Project Summary.  A general description of the community services to 

be provided by TYA is as follows:  

  

A.  A mental health worker, a licensed social worker, psychologist, or 

counselor, on staff at TYA shall be available to the youths of the community 

who are having difficulty in their personal and social adjustments.  This 

person will work with youths, parents, schools and other community 

organizations, consistent with their professional training and licensing, in 

helping the youth grow towards a more satisfactory adjustment.  The worker 

will act as a liaison for the youth, agencies, and family.  

  

B.  TYA shall also offer programs to resident youth which are designed to 

further the social and emotional needs of the youth.  

  

    C.  TYA will continue to provide service at the current level or greater.  

  

 



2.  Program Description. A detailed description of each program offered will be 

provided to the CITY, will be maintained on file at TYA, and will be available for 

inspection by the CITY on request.  

  

3.  Location of Facility.  TYA shall provide an office or treatment facility within the 

CITY.  Currently, that facility is located at 4420 Livernois, Troy, Michigan  48098.  

The CITY shall be notified immediately of any relocation or planned relocation of 

the facility.  

  

4.  Service Documentation.  TYA shall provide a quarterly report which may be in 

the form of minutes from monthly TYA Board of Directors meetings to the CITY in 

October, January, April and July, including but not limited to the following 

information:  

  

A.  Data regarding TYA’s operation, including but not limited to, the 

number of persons serviced by TYA programs, attendance records for 

counseling and programs, duration of programs, etc.  

  

    B.  Types of cases treated and referral source(s).  

  

    C.  All community and special projects undertaken by TYA.  

  

    D.  Other information that the CITY may deem necessary without 

                jeopardizing the confidentiality of the TYA clientele.  

  

5.  Fiscal Requirements.  TYA shall maintain an accounting system to identify and 

support all expenditures, i.e., all income and expenses for which services are 

provided under this Agreement.  The accounting system, at a minimum, shall 

consist of a chart of accounts, cash receipts journal, cash disbursements journal, and 

general ledger.  All expenditures and income must be supported by vouchers and 

receipts that detail the reason for the transaction.  

  

TYA shall submit to the CITY a copy of its annual budget for any fiscal year which 

falls within the twelve-month period covered by this Agreement.  These budgets 

shall show the TYA budget, total expenditures, and expenditures funded and 

claimed to other funding sources.  

  

TYA shall provide to the CITY a quarterly financial statement which may be in the 

form of Monthly Treasurer Reports as submitted to the TYA Board of Directors in 

October, January, April and July, including total income and expenditures for the 

previous three (3) months.  

  

TYA agrees to retain at its costs all books, records or other documents relevant to 

this Agreement for six years after final payment.    

  

 



6.  Review of Programs by the City.  Upon request, TYA will review with the CITY 

staff the programs funded by this Agreement to determine if there are appropriate 

educational guidance and counseling activities which may be utilized  by the youth.    

  

7.  Confidentiality.  The use or disclosure of information concerning applicants for 

services or recipients of services, obtained in connection with the performance of 

the Agreement, shall be restricted to purposes directly connected with the 

administration of the programs implemented by this Agreement and must be 

consistent with all statutory requirements.  

  

8.  Subcontracts.  TYA shall not assign this Agreement or enter into any 

subcontracts for services under this Agreement without obtaining prior written 

approval of the CITY.  

  

9.  Indemnify and Hold Harmless.  TYA shall indemnify, save and hold harmless 

the CITY, its employees, officers, and agents, and affiliated entities from any losses, 

damages, judgments, claims, expenses, costs, and liabilities, including attorney fees, 

interest and legal expenses, which may arise from or be caused directly or indirectly 

by any act or omission of TYA or its officers, directors, employees, agents or 

volunteers.  

  

10. Insurance.  TYA shall present to the CITY documentation that is satisfactory to 

the CITY that indicates that TYA is covered under a policy of insurance or self-

insurance with Oakland County, Michigan.  

  

TROY’S RESPONSIBILITIES  

  

The CITY hereby agrees to pay to TYA an amount not to exceed $17,080.00 for 

services performed under this Agreement.  Payments are to be made in four 

quarterly installments of $4,270 each during the months of September and 

November 2010 and February and May, 2011.  

  

Obligations incurred by TYA prior to or after the period covered by this Agreement 

shall be excluded.  

  

MUTUAL COVENANTS  

  

1. Cancellation of Agreement.  If the CITY determines that TYA fails to comply 

with the conditions of this Agreement, or to fulfill its responsibility as indicated in 

the Agreement, or the CITY determines that the methods and techniques being 

utilized in accomplishing the goals of this Agreement are not acceptable or 

compatible with the CITY’s policy, then the CITY reserves the right to cancel this 

Agreement by giving thirty (30) days written notice to TYA.  If TYA becomes 

defunct, TYA will reimburse the CITY for all pre-payments based on the date of 

termination.  

  



2.  Employees of TYA.  Representatives, employees and volunteers of TYA shall 

not be deemed to be employees or agents of the CITY for any purposes solely 

because of their participation with TYA.  

  

3.  Independent Contractors.  TYA is an independent contractor, and its agents, 

employees, or servants are responsible for its own conduct.  This Agreement is not a 

joint venture for the profit of either party.  

  

4.  Compliance with Laws.  TYA shall be responsible for compliance with all 

Federal, State and City laws or ordinances.  Any violation of the law or ordinance 

results in material breach of the Agreement.  

  

5.  Terms of Agreement.  This Agreement shall become effective as of August 1, 

2010 and shall terminate on July 31, 2011 unless terminated under the provisions set 

forth in this Agreement.  

  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the CITY and TYA have caused this Agreement to be 

executed by their respective authorized officers.  

  

  

WITNESSES:      CITY OF TROY  

  

  

____________________________     ____________________________  

Louise Schilling, Mayor  

  

____________________________                 ______________________________  

              Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk  

  

  

  

WITNESSES:           TROY YOUTH ASSISTANCE  

  

  

____________________________     _____________________________  

              Leonette Ciepielowski, Chairperson   

  

____________________________    

 

  



pallottaba
Text Box
J-05















 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM
 
Date:              September 22, 2010               
 
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager     
  
From:   Mark F. Miller, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services  
   Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
 
Subject: Announcement of Public Hearing for October 18, 2010- 
  Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 2011 Application 
 
Background 
 
The City of Troy is required by the Oakland County Division of Community & Home Improvement to 
advertise and conduct a Public Hearing for the Program Year 2011 CDBG application.  
 
 
Recommendation 
 
It is recommended that Council authorize a public hearing for October 18, 2010 at 7:30 PM or as 
soon thereafter as the agenda will permit for the purpose of hearing public comments on the adoption 
of the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 2011 application in the approximate amount of 
$173,970.00 to fund eligible projects. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
VR/S: Miller’s Review/Agenda 10.04.10-Request for public hearing for CDBG 2011 application 

pallottaba
Text Box
J-06



 1 

LIBRARY ADVISORY BOARD – FINAL                                                            June 10, 2010 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy Library Advisory Board was held on Thursday, June 10, 2010, in the 
Conference Room of the Troy Public Library. Chair Lynne Gregory called the meeting to order at 7:05 P.M.  
 
ROLL CALL  
PRESENT:   Kul Gauri 
   Lynne Gregory 
   Belinda Shelton Duggan 
   Nancy Wheeler (arrived at 7:10 pm) 
   Audre Zembrzuski  
   Cathleen Russ, Director, Troy Public Library 
 
Public Participation: Laura Cheng 
 
Resolution #LB-2010-06-01 
Moved by Zembrzuski 
Seconded by Duggan 
 
RESOLVED, That Paul Lee, Student Representative, be excused from the meeting.  
 
Yes: 5—Gauri, Gregory, Duggan, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given. 

 
Resolution #LB-2010-06-02 
Moved by Duggan  
Seconded by Wheeler 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the Library Advisory Board meeting, held on Thursday, May 13, 2010, 
be approved with one change. The time Mrs. Zembrzuski arrived at the meeting was noted.  
 
Yes: 5—Gauri, Gregory, Duggan, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution #LB-2010-06-03 
Moved by Duggan  
Seconded by Gauri 
 
RESOLVED, That the agenda for the Thursday, June 10, 2010, meeting be approved as written.  
 
Yes: 5—Gauri, Gregory, Duggan, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT—None 
 
BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS—The LAB members welcomed Laura Cheng. Gregory gave a summary of 
the Friends’ recent annual meeting, and said that the speaker, Lance Werner, did a good job. Gauri asked a 
question about the legal ways by which a library can organize. Russ referred him to Werner’s presentation. 

pallottaba
Text Box
N-01a



 2 

Wheeler asked about the possibility of the State Librarian granting a waiver for library hours to go the minimum 
requirement. Wheeler also asked about the lack of flowers in the library’s flower beds. Due to budget cuts, 
flowers will not be planted this year.   
 
STUDENT REPRESENTATIVE’S COMMENTS—None 
 
OLD BUSINESS—None 

NEW BUSINESS 
A.  Oakland County Trustee Association Dinner—will be held on June 23, 2010   
 

 
REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS 

A. Director’s Report—was received and filed.  
B. Suburban Library Cooperative Report—Duggan reported that the Finance Committee of the SLC 

have made sure that SLC investments are FDIC insured; Thanks to Gregory for attending the June 24 
meeting in her place; the July SLC Board meeting will be held at the recently renovated New Baltimore 
Public Library; SLC has received no new information regarding their request to the State Librarian for a 
waiver to allow Tammy Turgeon to be Cooperative Director and SHL director concurrently.  

C. Friends of the Troy Public Library Report—was received and filed  
D. Gifts—   Evening Primrose Garden Club $30      

   
E. Informational Items: http://sl.libcoop.net/troy/lib/eventcalendar.asp 
F. Visitors Comments for May—were discussed 

 
ADJOURNMENT  
 
Resolution #LB-2010-06-04 
Moved by Zembrzuski 
Seconded by Duggan 
 
RESOLVED, To adjourn the meeting.  
 
Yes: 5—Gauri, Gregory, Duggan, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
The Library Board meeting adjourned at 8:15 pm.  
 
The next regular meeting of the Library Advisory Board is Thursday, September 9, 2010, at 7 pm.  
 

 
 ___________________________________________________ 
 Lynne Gregory, Chairman 
 
 

 
Cathleen Russ, Recording Secretary 

http://sl.libcoop.net/troy/lib/eventcalendar.asp


BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – DRAFT JULY 20, 2010 
 
 

1 
 

The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting was called to order by Chair Lambert at 7:30 p.m. on 
July 20, 2010, in the Council Chamber of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Michael Bartnik 
Glenn Clark 
Kenneth Courtney 
Donald L. Edmunds 
William Fisher 
A. Allen Kneale 
David Lambert 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – June 15, 2010 
 
Resolution # BZA 2010-07-030 
Motion by Clark 
Support by Edmunds 
 
MOVED, To approve the June 15, 2010 Regular meeting minutes as printed, with the 
correction of two minor typographical errors on page 1. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

 APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # BZA 2010-07-031 
Motion by Courtney 
Support by Edmunds 
 
MOVED, To place Agenda item #4 D after Agenda item #4 E. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

pallottaba
Text Box
N-01b



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – DRAFT JULY 20, 2010 
 
 

2 
 

3. RENEWALS 
 
A. RENEWAL REQUEST, BOYS & GIRLS CLUB OF TROY, 3670 JOHN R – For 

relief of the 4‟-6” high masonry screening wall required along the east and north 
property lines between the parking lot and the adjacent residentially zoned property. 
 
Mr. Savidant gave an overview of the renewal request before the Board.  The item 
was adjourned several times since the February 16, 2010 Board of Zoning Appeals 
meeting to allow the Boys & Girls Club and the adjacent neighbor to the north to 
come to an agreement regarding site drainage.  Mr. Savidant indicated Board 
members received, prior to the beginning of tonight‟s meeting, a copy of a 
Memorandum of Understanding signed by both parties acknowledging resolution of 
the drainage issue. 
 
Mr. Clark asked (1) if the property owners to the south are satisfied with the drainage 
concern; and (2) if representation from the Witkowski family is present at tonight‟s 
meeting. 
 
Mr. Savidant indicated he was not aware of any issues associated with the property 
owner to the south.  Further, Mr. Savidant assumed there was no representation 
from the Witkowski family, by the indication of no hands in the audience. 
 
Steve Toth, Executive Director of the Boys & Girls Club, and Troy resident, 2312 
Niagara, was present.  Mr. Toth said concerns with the property owners to the south 
and east were addressed and resolved.  He indicated that with the support of the 
property owner to the north, Ms. Witkowski, the drainage issue is resolved, as well 
as the screening of car headlights and maintenance of the swale and landscaping.  
Mr. Toth acknowledged the hours volunteered by Comcast to complete the swale.  
He shared photographs of the completed work and indicated everything appears to 
be functioning well.  Mr. Toth said the Boys & Girls Club has a very positive and 
neighborly relationship with Ms. Witkowski. 
 
Mr. Forsyth stated the signed Memorandum of Understanding is for the Board‟s 
information only and does not need to be referenced in the Resolution. 
 
Mr. Clark asked what remedy the property owner and/or the Board would have 
should Ms. Witkowski not be satisfied in the future. 
 
Mr. Savidant replied that based on the positive relationship between the Boys & Girls 
Club and Ms. Witkowski, as represented by Mr. Toth this evening, any issues would 
be addressed by the Boys & Girls Club.  
 
Mr. Forsyth noted that the Court system is an option should drainage become such 
an issue that a nuisance is created. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – DRAFT JULY 20, 2010 
 
 

3 
 

Resolution # BZA 2010-07-032 
Motion by Courtney 
Support by Clark 
 
MOVED, To grant the Boys & Girls Club of Troy, 3670 John R, for relief of the 4‟-6” 
high masonry screening wall required along the east and north property lines 
between the parking lot and the adjacent residentially zoned property, a one (1) year 
renewal. 
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Edmunds indicated he would vote no on the motion.  He said the Engineering 
Department clearly stated that the swale was not necessary, and a standard renewal 
would have been appropriate.  He commended the Boys & Girls Club for their good 
neighborly spirit in working out a reasonable resolution with the neighbor to the 
north.  
 
Mr. Kneale questioned the construction of the swale as relates to City standards and 
requirements. 
 
Mr. Savidant stated that the swale was not required by the City. 
 
Mr. Toth addressed a memorandum from the Engineering Department stating that 
the City had no issues with the existing swale.  He stated the Boys & Girls Club 
worked directly with the surveyor contracted by the Witkowski family to complete the 
swale work, and it is the conclusion of both parties that the completed swale is 
beneficial to both parties. 
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: Bartnik, Clark, Courtney, Lambert 
No: Edmunds, Fisher, Kneale 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

 
4. HEARING OF CASES 

 
A. VARIANCE REQUEST, JERALD A. BOCK, 2397 VERMONT DRIVE – In order to 

construct an addition to the attached garage, a 10 foot variance to the required 35 
foot rear yard setback. 
 
Mr. Savidant gave a brief report on the proposed variance with respect to its location 
and zoning of adjacent properties.  He noted that because the home is addressed on 
Vermont, a variance to the rear yard setback is needed.  Mr. Savidant confirmed that 
if the home was addressed on Milverton, the petitioner would not need a variance 
because the side yard setback is 50 feet.  Mr. Savidant also confirmed that the 
property to the north is owned by the County.  



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – DRAFT JULY 20, 2010 
 
 

4 
 

The applicant, Gerald Bock, was present.  Mr. Bock stated that the County 
purchased 80 feet of his property and removed the 10 x 14 foot barn he used for 
equipment storage.  He indicated the garage addition would give him room to store 
lawn and garden equipment. 
 
Chair Lambert noted there is no written correspondence on file.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # BZA 2010-07-033 
Motion by Bartnik 
Support by Fisher 
 
MOVED, To grant the variance request. 
 
Preliminary Findings: 
 That the variance is not contrary to public interest. 
 That the variance does not permit the establishment of a prohibited use within a 

zoning district. 
 That the variance does not cause an adverse effect to properties in the 

immediate vicinity or zoning district. 
 

Special Findings: 
That the petitioner has one or more of the following practical difficulties: 
 Conforming to the specific ordinance that was cited in the application would be 

unnecessarily burdensome. 
 These practical difficulties result from the location and size of the property. 

 
Yes: All present (7) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
B. VARIANCE REQUEST, WILLIAM L. GUGAN, 6163 LIVERNOIS – In order to 

construct an addition to the front of the house, an 8 foot variance to the required 40 
foot front yard setback.  
 
Mr. Savidant gave a brief report on the proposed variance with respect to its location 
and zoning of adjacent properties.  He addressed the petitioner‟s rudimentary 
measurements that demonstrate his home is the furthest away from Livernois in 
comparison to other homes on the street.  Mr. Savidant said the petitioner proposes 
to construct the addition that would be consistent with the existing home façade. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – DRAFT JULY 20, 2010 
 
 

5 
 

The applicant, William Gugan, was present.  Mr. Gugan said the proposed addition 
is the desire of his wife who is a quilter.  The addition would accommodate the space 
needed to place quilts on the wall during the quilting process.  Mr. Gugan makes 
canes for a veteran program called „Lean on Me‟ and the extra space would 
accommodate his hobby also.  Mr. Gugan said he and his wife would like to put the 
addition on the front of the home for security and financial reasons. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Chair Lambert noted there is no written correspondence on file.   
 
Resolution # BZA 2010-07-034 
Motion by Courtney 
Support by Edmunds 
 
MOVED, To grant the variance. 
 
Preliminary Findings: 
 The variance is not contrary to public interest. 
 The variance does not permit the establishment of a prohibited use within a 

zoning district. 
 The variance does not adversely affect anyone on the street or any of the 

neighbors. 
 The variance relates only to this parcel. 

 
Yes: All present (7) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
C. VARIANCE REQUEST, DANIEL MACLEISH, 4938 ADAMS POINTE COURT – In 

order to cover an existing terrace, a 6.5 foot variance to the required 45 foot rear 
yard setback. 
 
Mr. Savidant gave a brief report on the proposed variance with respect to its location 
and zoning of adjacent properties.  He indicated the applicant submitted several 
elevations.  Mr. Savidant addressed correspondence received from a neighbor 
relative to concerns with drainage, and identified the property in relation to the 
applicant‟s property. 
 
There was discussion on the structural design of the patio in relation to the extension 
of the house, gutters, drains and insulation. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – DRAFT JULY 20, 2010 
 
 

6 
 

The petitioner, Daniel MacLeish, was present.  Mr. MacLeish is the builder and 
developer of the Adams Pointe subdivision.  He addressed in detail the drainage 
system installed during the development stages.  Mr. MacLeish said he spoke to Mr. 
White about his concern of potential drainage problems and reassured him there 
would be no additional stormwater runoff than what runs off the patio.  Mr. MacLeish 
addressed the intent of the applicant and their desire for a covered terrace.  He 
shared elevations of the structure and indicated the applicant has no intention of 
closing in the patio because they want a breeze.  He noted that the footings would 
go deep enough should the resident want to close it in the future. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Daniel White of 4949 Valley Vista Road, Troy, was present.  Mr. White said the 
proposed addition is very attractive and he has no problem with the structure.  He 
addressed his concerns with the drainage.  Mr. White acknowledged the 
professionalism of Mr. MacLeish as a builder and developer.  He asked what 
recourse he would have should Mr. MacLeish not be able to complete the work for 
some unforeseen reason.  Mr. White also asked if it would be appropriate to place a 
condition on a variance approval requiring that the existing swale and rear yard 
drainage configuration remains in place.  He voiced concern with re-grading the 
property between the wall and structure. 
 
Mr. Forsyth said the Board has the authority to attach conditions to a variance 
approval as long as the condition relates to the land.  He indicated in this case, a 
condition to keep the existing drainage in place relates to the land and would be a 
valid condition. 
 
Mr. MacLeish said construction would not impact the existing drainage system.  He 
noted a permit would be required to do any type of work that would involve the City 
stormwater system. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Chair Lambert noted the only written correspondence on file is the letter from Daniel 
White. 
 
Resolution # BZA 2010-07-035 
Motion by Clark 
Support by Courtney 
 
MOVED, To grant the variance. 
 
Preliminary Findings: 
 The variance is not contrary to public interest. 
 The variance does not permit the establishment of a prohibited use within a 

zoning district. 
 The variance does not cause an adverse effect to properties in the immediate 

vicinity or zoning district. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – DRAFT JULY 20, 2010 
 
 

7 
 

Further, That the swale and berm would remain there as part of the approval for the 
variance. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

 
E. VARIANCE REQUEST, FATHER & SON CONSTRUCTION, 2891 IOWA – In order 

to construct an addition to the house, variances from the requirement that the 
addition be set back at least 10 feet from the detached garage, and that a portion of 
the detached garage be allowed in the side yard.  No alterations are proposed for 
the garage; the addition of the house would require the garage to be moved 
northward, so that the entire garage is north of the proposed house addition. 
 
Mr. Savidant gave a brief report on the proposed variance with respect to the plot 
plan provided by the petitioner and Sections 40.56.02 (A) and (D) of the Zoning 
Ordinance.   
 
There was discussion on: 

 Access to the rear of the property in a fire emergency. 
 Scenario of construction of small addition on new addition and connection to 

existing garage.  Mr. Savidant determined it would make the site more non-
conforming and a side yard setback would be required.  

 Unknown object on aerial photography in lower left hand corner, immediately 
east of second accessory building and south. 

 
The petitioner, Kip Langley, of Father & Son Construction, was present.  He said 
Father & Son Construction has been in Troy for 47 years.  He indicated the object in 
the aerial photography is a deck which would be removed prior to construction.  He 
said there is 10 feet on the one side of the home for fire access in an emergency.  
Mr. Langley said the homeowners would like to add on to the 800 square foot home 
to meet family needs.  He indicated there is no room to construct an addition in the 
front or the side.  Mr. Langley said the addition would not bother any neighbor and 
would have no adverse effects.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Chair Lambert noted there is one communication on file in support of the variance 
request. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – DRAFT JULY 20, 2010 
 
 

8 
 

Resolution # BZA 2010-07-036 
Motion by Bartnik 
Support by Courtney 
 
MOVED, To grant the variance. 
 
Preliminary Findings: 
 The variance is not contrary to public interest. 
 The variance does not permit the establishment of a prohibited use within a 

zoning district. 
 The variance does not cause an adverse effect to properties in the immediate 

vicinity or zoning district. 
 
Special Findings: 

 Due to the size and location of the existing buildings that conforming would be 
unnecessarily burdensome and would restrict the owners in a reasonable use of 
their property. 

 
Yes: All present (7) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

D. VARIANCE REQUEST, BRIAN MCCALLUM FOR DETROIT MEETING ROOMS, 
3586 ADAMS ROAD – In order to reuse a single family home as a small church:  1) 
a variance from the requirement that the buildings be set back at last fifty (50) feet 
from the adjacent property lines, 2) a variance to allow parking within the front yard 
setbacks along Adams Road and Bolingbroke Drive, and adjacent to any land zoned 
for residential purposes, 3) A variance from the requirement that parking areas be 
screened from adjacent residential properties by a 4‟6” high landscaped berm, and 
4) Variances from the requirement that an 8 foot wide concrete sidewalk be provided 
along Adams Road, a 5 foot concrete sidewalk be provided along Bolingbroke Drive, 
and that 5 foot wide concrete sidewalks be provided from the public street frontage 
sidewalks to interior sidewalks serving parking areas and building entrances.   
 
Mr. Savidant gave a brief history of the item, and reviewed the approval process of 
both the Planning Commission and Board of Zoning Appeals.  Mr. Savidant 
identified each variance request and noted the variance request relating to required 
sidewalks along Adams Road and Bolingbroke is not necessary.  He explained that 
sidewalks are off-site improvements and the petitioner must seek a waiver from the 
City‟s Traffic Committee. 
 
Mr. Savidant said the Planning Department received numerous emails, 
correspondence and a signed petition in opposition of the variance request.  He 
brought to the attention of Board members that a resident submitted to the Planning 
Department photographs of converted church properties located in other 
communities, prepared from the list of addresses provided by the applicant. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – DRAFT JULY 20, 2010 
 
 

9 
 

There was a brief discussion on the requirement for a berm to screen parking in 
terms of the existing berm, required height, required location(s) and Zoning 
Ordinance interpretation by City staff. 
 
Nathan Robinson of Horizon Engineering, P.O. Box 182158, Shelby Township, was 
present to represent the landowner and the petitioner.  Mr. Robinson gave a 
PowerPoint presentation detailing the following: 

 Current site. 
 Property use. 
 Zoning regulations. 
 Review process. 
 Variance requests. 

 
Mr. Robinson closed the presentation emphasizing the proposed use of the facility is 
minimal; two days a week and each session approximately two hours.  He said the 
proposed location is ideal because it is on a main road.  Mr. Robinson said the 
maximum number of people on the site per session would be 27 people; as well, the 
maximum number of vehicles on site per session would be 9.  
 
Mr. Savidant verbally made a correction to one of the petitioner‟s PowerPoint slides 
(reference Review Process, Step 1) that indicated an informal meeting was held with 
staff and some members of Planning Commission.  Mr. Savidant clarified that no 
members of the Planning Commission were present at that meeting.   
 
Steve Carnwath, trustee and elder for the Detroit Meeting Rooms community, 3109 
Cummings, Berkley, was present.  Mr. Carnwath addressed the following items at 
the request of the Board members: 
 

 Similar capital investments acquired in other communities/states for same 
use/purpose. 

 Church bylaws require ownership of facilities; leasing not an option. 
 Worldwide church organization; Christian Fellowship Brethren, aka Plymouth 

Brethren. 
 Maintenance of properties; specifically, 1722 Eleven Mile, Berkley.  Stated 

damage shown in photograph occurred from City construction project.   
 Purchase date/closing on property.  Property acquired as high bidder in auction 

sale.  City Assessor records show property was acquired in December 2009.  
Board member Edmunds indicated purchase of property was misrepresented by 
petitioner at April 13, 2010 Planning Commission.   

 Established churches locally in residential homes; Berkley, Royal Oak, Clawson. 
 Familiarity with City procedure on variances and site plan approval process. 
 Makeup of community church. 
o One large church and smaller group facilities. 
o Traditional family gatherings. 
o Prayer and communion schedules; days, times, group size organized by 

committee. 
o Trustees conduct service in informal, conservative and quiet gathering. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – DRAFT JULY 20, 2010 
 
 

10 
 

 Major road frontage desired for local churches; sometimes, side road. 
 Number of vehicles in relation to group size; one car per family. 
 Traffic circulation; ingress and egress, directional signage. 
 Screening of parking; would prefer board-on-board wood fence in lieu of berm. 
 Size of facility in relation to proposed use.   

 
Mr. Bartnik addressed the size of the property in relation to the proposed use and 
shared concerns with parking adjacent to neighboring residential.  He feels the site 
is too small for the particular proposed use. 
 
Mr. Savidant explained that should the Planning Commission grant the applicant a 
Special Use Approval, any and all future property owners would be required to 
adhere to that Special Use Approval and any conditions that were placed on its 
approval. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
The following persons were present to speak.  All persons spoke in opposition of the 
variance request.  
 
Thomas Cook 2855 Bolingbroke, Troy 
Tom Hermann 2825 Wattles, Troy 
Marc Flora 2544 Lanergan, Troy 
Mary Masson 2856 Lanergan, Troy 
Helen Lynch 2934 Bolingbroke, Troy 
Dennis McCardle 2902 Sunridge, Troy 
Bill Grier 2828 Sunridge, Troy 
William Lynch 797 Tennyson Downs, Bloomfield Hills 
Robert Anderson 3600 Adams Road, Troy 
Lillian Fenstermacher 2964 Sunridge, Troy 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Courtney said he would be favorable to a church on this site, but it appears the 
only practical difficulty shown this evening is that the applicant bought a parcel of 
property not big enough for the proposed use.  Mr. Courtney believes that is not 
grounds enough to claim practical difficulty. 
 
Resolution # BZA 2010-07-037 
Motion by Courtney 
Support by Kneale 
 
MOVED, That the variance be denied.   
 
Preliminary Findings: 

 The applicant has not shown a practical difficulty other than the fact they bought 
a parcel that is too small.   



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – DRAFT JULY 20, 2010 
 
 

11 
 

Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Chair Lambert asked for a definition of a hardship that a petitioner would have to 
demonstrate for the Board to grant a variance. 
 
Mr. Forsyth referenced Zoning Ordinance Section 43.72.00 (C), as an example of 
practical difficulty.  It states: “Not cause substantial adverse effect to properties in 
the immediate vicinity or in the zoning district.” 
 
Chair Lambert noted a petition signed by 15 people in opposition of the variance 
request, as well as numerous letters and correspondence in opposition are on file. 
 
Mr. Bartnik said that churches are clearly allowed in residential areas, and typically 
are located on main roads.  He said this particular piece of property on Adams Road 
is too small for the proposed use as a church.  Mr. Bartnik addressed the change in 
the Zoning Ordinance to require a berm in lieu of a masonry wall to screen adjacent 
parking areas from residential.  He feels the parking and traffic from the proposed 
use would be adverse effects on surrounding properties.   
 
Chair Lambert agreed.  He expressed confidence that Detroit Meeting Rooms would 
be a good neighbor, but feels this type of facility on a small residential property 
requiring four variances is pushing the envelope too much.  Chair Lambert noted he 
would be voting in favor of a denial. 
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
5. COMMUNICATIONS 

 
None. 
 
 

6. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS 
 
Chair Lambert welcomed the new Board members, Messrs. Kneale and Fisher.  He 
thanked Vice Chair Bartnik for serving as chair at the June regular meeting.  Further, 
Chair Lambert thanked Members Kovacs and Kempen for their excellent service on the 
Board. 
 
Mr. Forsyth gave a brief account of his service on various Boards. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – DRAFT JULY 20, 2010 
 
 

12 
 

 
7. ADJOURNMENT 

 
The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting adjourned at 10:26 p.m. 
 
 

 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
David Lambert, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
G:\Board of Zoning Appeals Minutes\Draft\07-20-10 BZA Meeting_Draft.doc 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – FINAL  JULY 20, 2010 
 
 

1 
 

The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting was called to order by Chair Lambert at 7:30 p.m. on 
July 20, 2010, in the Council Chamber of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Michael Bartnik 
Glenn Clark 
Kenneth Courtney 
Donald L. Edmunds 
William Fisher 
A. Allen Kneale 
David Lambert 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – June 15, 2010 
 
Resolution # BZA 2010-07-030 
Motion by Clark 
Support by Edmunds 
 
MOVED, To approve the June 15, 2010 Regular meeting minutes as printed, with the 
correction of two minor typographical errors on page 1. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

 APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # BZA 2010-07-031 
Motion by Courtney 
Support by Edmunds 
 
MOVED, To place Agenda item #4 D after Agenda item #4 E. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

pallottaba
Text Box
N-01c



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – FINAL  JULY 20, 2010 
 
 

2 
 

3. RENEWALS 
 
A. RENEWAL REQUEST, BOYS & GIRLS CLUB OF TROY, 3670 JOHN R – For 

relief of the 4‟-6” high masonry screening wall required along the east and north 
property lines between the parking lot and the adjacent residentially zoned property. 
 
Mr. Savidant gave an overview of the renewal request before the Board.  The item 
was adjourned several times since the February 16, 2010 Board of Zoning Appeals 
meeting to allow the Boys & Girls Club and the adjacent neighbor to the north to 
come to an agreement regarding site drainage.  Mr. Savidant indicated Board 
members received, prior to the beginning of tonight‟s meeting, a copy of a 
Memorandum of Understanding signed by both parties acknowledging resolution of 
the drainage issue. 
 
Mr. Clark asked (1) if the property owners to the south are satisfied with the drainage 
concern; and (2) if representation from the Witkowski family is present at tonight‟s 
meeting. 
 
Mr. Savidant indicated he was not aware of any issues associated with the property 
owner to the south.  Further, Mr. Savidant assumed there was no representation 
from the Witkowski family, by the indication of no hands in the audience. 
 
Steve Toth, Executive Director of the Boys & Girls Club, and Troy resident, 2312 
Niagara, was present.  Mr. Toth said concerns with the property owners to the south 
and east were addressed and resolved.  He indicated that with the support of the 
property owner to the north, Ms. Witkowski, the drainage issue is resolved, as well 
as the screening of car headlights and maintenance of the swale and landscaping.  
Mr. Toth acknowledged the hours volunteered by Comcast to complete the swale.  
He shared photographs of the completed work and indicated everything appears to 
be functioning well.  Mr. Toth said the Boys & Girls Club has a very positive and 
neighborly relationship with Ms. Witkowski. 
 
Mr. Forsyth stated the signed Memorandum of Understanding is for the Board‟s 
information only and does not need to be referenced in the Resolution. 
 
Mr. Clark asked what remedy the property owner and/or the Board would have 
should Ms. Witkowski not be satisfied in the future. 
 
Mr. Savidant replied that based on the positive relationship between the Boys & Girls 
Club and Ms. Witkowski, as represented by Mr. Toth this evening, any issues would 
be addressed by the Boys & Girls Club.  
 
Mr. Forsyth noted that the Court system is an option should drainage become such 
an issue that a nuisance is created. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – FINAL  JULY 20, 2010 
 
 

3 
 

Resolution # BZA 2010-07-032 
Motion by Courtney 
Support by Clark 
 
MOVED, To grant the Boys & Girls Club of Troy, 3670 John R, for relief of the 4‟-6” 
high masonry screening wall required along the east and north property lines 
between the parking lot and the adjacent residentially zoned property, a one (1) year 
renewal. 
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Edmunds indicated he would vote no on the motion.  He said the Engineering 
Department clearly stated that the swale was not necessary, and a standard renewal 
would have been appropriate.  He commended the Boys & Girls Club for their good 
neighborly spirit in working out a reasonable resolution with the neighbor to the 
north.  
 
Mr. Kneale questioned the construction of the swale as relates to City standards and 
requirements. 
 
Mr. Savidant stated that the swale was not required by the City. 
 
Mr. Toth addressed a memorandum from the Engineering Department stating that 
the City had no issues with the existing swale.  He stated the Boys & Girls Club 
worked directly with the surveyor contracted by the Witkowski family to complete the 
swale work, and it is the conclusion of both parties that the completed swale is 
beneficial to both parties. 
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: Bartnik, Clark, Courtney, Lambert 
No: Edmunds, Fisher, Kneale 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

 
4. HEARING OF CASES 

 
A. VARIANCE REQUEST, JERALD A. BOCK, 2397 VERMONT DRIVE – In order to 

construct an addition to the attached garage, a 10 foot variance to the required 35 
foot rear yard setback. 
 
Mr. Savidant gave a brief report on the proposed variance with respect to its location 
and zoning of adjacent properties.  He noted that because the home is addressed on 
Vermont, a variance to the rear yard setback is needed.  Mr. Savidant confirmed that 
if the home was addressed on Milverton, the petitioner would not need a variance 
because the side yard setback is 50 feet.  Mr. Savidant also confirmed that the 
property to the north is owned by the County.  



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – FINAL  JULY 20, 2010 
 
 

4 
 

The applicant, Gerald Bock, was present.  Mr. Bock stated that the County 
purchased 80 feet of his property and removed the 10 x 14 foot barn he used for 
equipment storage.  He indicated the garage addition would give him room to store 
lawn and garden equipment. 
 
Chair Lambert noted there is no written correspondence on file.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # BZA 2010-07-033 
Motion by Bartnik 
Support by Fisher 
 
MOVED, To grant the variance request. 
 
Preliminary Findings: 
 That the variance is not contrary to public interest. 
 That the variance does not permit the establishment of a prohibited use within a 

zoning district. 
 That the variance does not cause an adverse effect to properties in the 

immediate vicinity or zoning district. 
 

Special Findings: 
That the petitioner has one or more of the following practical difficulties: 
 Conforming to the specific ordinance that was cited in the application would be 

unnecessarily burdensome. 
 These practical difficulties result from the location and size of the property. 

 
Yes: All present (7) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
B. VARIANCE REQUEST, WILLIAM L. GUGAN, 6163 LIVERNOIS – In order to 

construct an addition to the front of the house, an 8 foot variance to the required 40 
foot front yard setback.  
 
Mr. Savidant gave a brief report on the proposed variance with respect to its location 
and zoning of adjacent properties.  He addressed the petitioner‟s rudimentary 
measurements that demonstrate his home is the furthest away from Livernois in 
comparison to other homes on the street.  Mr. Savidant said the petitioner proposes 
to construct the addition that would be consistent with the existing home façade. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – FINAL  JULY 20, 2010 
 
 

5 
 

The applicant, William Gugan, was present.  Mr. Gugan said the proposed addition 
is the desire of his wife who is a quilter.  The addition would accommodate the space 
needed to place quilts on the wall during the quilting process.  Mr. Gugan makes 
canes for a veteran program called „Lean on Me‟ and the extra space would 
accommodate his hobby also.  Mr. Gugan said he and his wife would like to put the 
addition on the front of the home for security and financial reasons. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Chair Lambert noted there is no written correspondence on file.   
 
Resolution # BZA 2010-07-034 
Motion by Courtney 
Support by Edmunds 
 
MOVED, To grant the variance. 
 
Preliminary Findings: 
 The variance is not contrary to public interest. 
 The variance does not permit the establishment of a prohibited use within a 

zoning district. 
 The variance does not adversely affect anyone on the street or any of the 

neighbors. 
 The variance relates only to this parcel. 

 
Yes: All present (7) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
C. VARIANCE REQUEST, DANIEL MACLEISH, 4938 ADAMS POINTE COURT – In 

order to cover an existing terrace, a 6.5 foot variance to the required 45 foot rear 
yard setback. 
 
Mr. Savidant gave a brief report on the proposed variance with respect to its location 
and zoning of adjacent properties.  He indicated the applicant submitted several 
elevations.  Mr. Savidant addressed correspondence received from a neighbor 
relative to concerns with drainage, and identified the property in relation to the 
applicant‟s property. 
 
There was discussion on the structural design of the patio in relation to the extension 
of the house, gutters, drains and insulation. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – FINAL  JULY 20, 2010 
 
 

6 
 

The petitioner, Daniel MacLeish, was present.  Mr. MacLeish is the builder and 
developer of the Adams Pointe subdivision.  He addressed in detail the drainage 
system installed during the development stages.  Mr. MacLeish said he spoke to Mr. 
White about his concern of potential drainage problems and reassured him there 
would be no additional stormwater runoff than what runs off the patio.  Mr. MacLeish 
addressed the intent of the applicant and their desire for a covered terrace.  He 
shared elevations of the structure and indicated the applicant has no intention of 
closing in the patio because they want a breeze.  He noted that the footings would 
go deep enough should the resident want to close it in the future. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Daniel White of 4949 Valley Vista Road, Troy, was present.  Mr. White said the 
proposed addition is very attractive and he has no problem with the structure.  He 
addressed his concerns with the drainage.  Mr. White acknowledged the 
professionalism of Mr. MacLeish as a builder and developer.  He asked what 
recourse he would have should Mr. MacLeish not be able to complete the work for 
some unforeseen reason.  Mr. White also asked if it would be appropriate to place a 
condition on a variance approval requiring that the existing swale and rear yard 
drainage configuration remains in place.  He voiced concern with re-grading the 
property between the wall and structure. 
 
Mr. Forsyth said the Board has the authority to attach conditions to a variance 
approval as long as the condition relates to the land.  He indicated in this case, a 
condition to keep the existing drainage in place relates to the land and would be a 
valid condition. 
 
Mr. MacLeish said construction would not impact the existing drainage system.  He 
noted a permit would be required to do any type of work that would involve the City 
stormwater system. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Chair Lambert noted the only written correspondence on file is the letter from Daniel 
White. 
 
Resolution # BZA 2010-07-035 
Motion by Clark 
Support by Courtney 
 
MOVED, To grant the variance. 
 
Preliminary Findings: 
 The variance is not contrary to public interest. 
 The variance does not permit the establishment of a prohibited use within a 

zoning district. 
 The variance does not cause an adverse effect to properties in the immediate 

vicinity or zoning district. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – FINAL  JULY 20, 2010 
 
 

7 
 

Further, That the swale and berm would remain there as part of the approval for the 
variance. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

 
E. VARIANCE REQUEST, FATHER & SON CONSTRUCTION, 2891 IOWA – In order 

to construct an addition to the house, variances from the requirement that the 
addition be set back at least 10 feet from the detached garage, and that a portion of 
the detached garage be allowed in the side yard.  No alterations are proposed for 
the garage; the addition of the house would require the garage to be moved 
northward, so that the entire garage is north of the proposed house addition. 
 
Mr. Savidant gave a brief report on the proposed variance with respect to the plot 
plan provided by the petitioner and Sections 40.56.02 (A) and (D) of the Zoning 
Ordinance.   
 
There was discussion on: 

 Access to the rear of the property in a fire emergency. 
 Scenario of construction of small addition on new addition and connection to 

existing garage.  Mr. Savidant determined it would make the site more non-
conforming and a side yard setback would be required.  

 Unknown object on aerial photography in lower left hand corner, immediately 
east of second accessory building and south. 

 
The petitioner, Kip Langley, of Father & Son Construction, was present.  He said 
Father & Son Construction has been in Troy for 47 years.  He indicated the object in 
the aerial photography is a deck which would be removed prior to construction.  He 
said there is 10 feet on the one side of the home for fire access in an emergency.  
Mr. Langley said the homeowners would like to add on to the 800 square foot home 
to meet family needs.  He indicated there is no room to construct an addition in the 
front or the side.  Mr. Langley said the addition would not bother any neighbor and 
would have no adverse effects.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Chair Lambert noted there is one communication on file in support of the variance 
request. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – FINAL  JULY 20, 2010 
 
 

8 
 

Resolution # BZA 2010-07-036 
Motion by Bartnik 
Support by Courtney 
 
MOVED, To grant the variance. 
 
Preliminary Findings: 
 The variance is not contrary to public interest. 
 The variance does not permit the establishment of a prohibited use within a 

zoning district. 
 The variance does not cause an adverse effect to properties in the immediate 

vicinity or zoning district. 
 
Special Findings: 

 Due to the size and location of the existing buildings that conforming would be 
unnecessarily burdensome and would restrict the owners in a reasonable use of 
their property. 

 
Yes: All present (7) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

D. VARIANCE REQUEST, BRIAN MCCALLUM FOR DETROIT MEETING ROOMS, 
3586 ADAMS ROAD – In order to reuse a single family home as a small church:  1) 
a variance from the requirement that the buildings be set back at last fifty (50) feet 
from the adjacent property lines, 2) a variance to allow parking within the front yard 
setbacks along Adams Road and Bolingbroke Drive, and adjacent to any land zoned 
for residential purposes, 3) A variance from the requirement that parking areas be 
screened from adjacent residential properties by a 4‟6” high landscaped berm, and 
4) Variances from the requirement that an 8 foot wide concrete sidewalk be provided 
along Adams Road, a 5 foot concrete sidewalk be provided along Bolingbroke Drive, 
and that 5 foot wide concrete sidewalks be provided from the public street frontage 
sidewalks to interior sidewalks serving parking areas and building entrances.   
 
Mr. Savidant gave a brief history of the item, and reviewed the approval process of 
both the Planning Commission and Board of Zoning Appeals.  Mr. Savidant 
identified each variance request and noted the variance request relating to required 
sidewalks along Adams Road and Bolingbroke is not necessary.  He explained that 
sidewalks are off-site improvements and the petitioner must seek a waiver from the 
City‟s Traffic Committee. 
 
Mr. Savidant said the Planning Department received numerous emails, 
correspondence and a signed petition in opposition of the variance request.  He 
brought to the attention of Board members that a resident submitted to the Planning 
Department photographs of converted church properties located in other 
communities, prepared from the list of addresses provided by the applicant. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – FINAL  JULY 20, 2010 
 
 

9 
 

There was a brief discussion on the requirement for a berm to screen parking in 
terms of the existing berm, required height, required location(s) and Zoning 
Ordinance interpretation by City staff. 
 
Nathan Robinson of Horizon Engineering, P.O. Box 182158, Shelby Township, was 
present to represent the landowner and the petitioner.  Mr. Robinson gave a 
PowerPoint presentation detailing the following: 

 Current site. 
 Property use. 
 Zoning regulations. 
 Review process. 
 Variance requests. 

 
Mr. Robinson closed the presentation emphasizing the proposed use of the facility is 
minimal; two days a week and each session approximately two hours.  He said the 
proposed location is ideal because it is on a main road.  Mr. Robinson said the 
maximum number of people on the site per session would be 27 people; as well, the 
maximum number of vehicles on site per session would be 9.  
 
Mr. Savidant verbally made a correction to one of the petitioner‟s PowerPoint slides 
(reference Review Process, Step 1) that indicated an informal meeting was held with 
staff and some members of Planning Commission.  Mr. Savidant clarified that no 
members of the Planning Commission were present at that meeting.   
 
Steve Carnwath, trustee and elder for the Detroit Meeting Rooms community, 3109 
Cummings, Berkley, was present.  Mr. Carnwath addressed the following items at 
the request of the Board members: 
 

 Similar capital investments acquired in other communities/states for same 
use/purpose. 

 Church bylaws require ownership of facilities; leasing not an option. 
 Worldwide church organization; Christian Fellowship Brethren, aka Plymouth 

Brethren. 
 Maintenance of properties; specifically, 1722 Eleven Mile, Berkley.  Stated 

damage shown in photograph occurred from City construction project.   
 Purchase date/closing on property.  Property acquired as high bidder in auction 

sale.  City Assessor records show property was acquired in December 2009.  
Board member Edmunds indicated purchase of property was misrepresented by 
petitioner at April 13, 2010 Planning Commission.   

 Established churches locally in residential homes; Berkley, Royal Oak, Clawson. 
 Familiarity with City procedure on variances and site plan approval process. 
 Makeup of community church. 
o One large church and smaller group facilities. 
o Traditional family gatherings. 
o Prayer and communion schedules; days, times, group size organized by 

committee. 
o Trustees conduct service in informal, conservative and quiet gathering. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – FINAL  JULY 20, 2010 
 
 

10 
 

 Major road frontage desired for local churches; sometimes, side road. 
 Number of vehicles in relation to group size; one car per family. 
 Traffic circulation; ingress and egress, directional signage. 
 Screening of parking; would prefer board-on-board wood fence in lieu of berm. 
 Size of facility in relation to proposed use.   

 
Mr. Bartnik addressed the size of the property in relation to the proposed use and 
shared concerns with parking adjacent to neighboring residential.  He feels the site 
is too small for the particular proposed use. 
 
Mr. Savidant explained that should the Planning Commission grant the applicant a 
Special Use Approval, any and all future property owners would be required to 
adhere to that Special Use Approval and any conditions that were placed on its 
approval. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
The following persons were present to speak.  All persons spoke in opposition of the 
variance request.  
 
Thomas Cook 2855 Bolingbroke, Troy 
Tom Hermann 2825 Wattles, Troy 
Marc Flora 2544 Lanergan, Troy 
Mary Masson 2856 Lanergan, Troy 
Helen Lynch 2934 Bolingbroke, Troy 
Dennis McCardle 2902 Sunridge, Troy 
Bill Grier 2828 Sunridge, Troy 
William Lynch 797 Tennyson Downs, Bloomfield Hills 
Robert Anderson 3600 Adams Road, Troy 
Lillian Fenstermacher 2964 Sunridge, Troy 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Courtney said he would be favorable to a church on this site, but it appears the 
only practical difficulty shown this evening is that the applicant bought a parcel of 
property not big enough for the proposed use.  Mr. Courtney believes that is not 
grounds enough to claim practical difficulty. 
 
Resolution # BZA 2010-07-037 
Motion by Courtney 
Support by Kneale 
 
MOVED, That the variance be denied.   
 
Preliminary Findings: 

 The applicant has not shown a practical difficulty other than the fact they bought 
a parcel that is too small.   



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – FINAL  JULY 20, 2010 
 
 

11 
 

Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Chair Lambert asked for a definition of a hardship that a petitioner would have to 
demonstrate for the Board to grant a variance. 
 
Mr. Forsyth referenced Zoning Ordinance Section 43.72.00 (C), as an example of 
practical difficulty.  It states: “Not cause substantial adverse effect to properties in 
the immediate vicinity or in the zoning district.” 
 
Chair Lambert noted a petition signed by 15 people in opposition of the variance 
request, as well as numerous letters and correspondence in opposition are on file. 
 
Mr. Bartnik said that churches are clearly allowed in residential areas, and typically 
are located on main roads.  He said this particular piece of property on Adams Road 
is too small for the proposed use as a church.  Mr. Bartnik addressed the change in 
the Zoning Ordinance to require a berm in lieu of a masonry wall to screen adjacent 
parking areas from residential.  He feels the parking and traffic from the proposed 
use would be adverse effects on surrounding properties.   
 
Chair Lambert agreed.  He expressed confidence that Detroit Meeting Rooms would 
be a good neighbor, but feels this type of facility on a small residential property 
requiring four variances is pushing the envelope too much.  Chair Lambert noted he 
would be voting in favor of a denial. 
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
5. COMMUNICATIONS 

 
None. 
 
 

6. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS 
 
Chair Lambert welcomed the new Board members, Messrs. Kneale and Fisher.  He 
thanked Vice Chair Bartnik for serving as chair at the June regular meeting.  Further, 
Chair Lambert thanked Members Kovacs and Kempen for their excellent service on the 
Board. 
 
Mr. Forsyth gave a brief account of his service on various Boards. 





pallottaba
Text Box
N-01d









PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – FINAL AUGUST 24, 2010 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Hutson at 7:30 p.m. on August 24, 2010 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Donald Edmunds 
Michael W. Hutson 
Mark Maxwell 
Philip Sanzica 
Robert M. Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Lon M. Ullmann 
Mark J. Vleck (arrived 7:45 p.m.) 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Zachary Branigan, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 

 
 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 
Resolution # PC-2010-08-058 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as prepared. 
 
Yes:  All present (8) 
Absent: Vleck (arrived 7:45 p.m.) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
Resolution # PC-2010-08-059 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the August 10, 2010 Regular meeting as 
prepared. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Vleck (arrived 7:45 p.m.) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

pallottaba
Text Box
N-01e



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – FINAL AUGUST 24, 2010 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 
5. BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS (BZA) REPORT 

 
Mr. Edmunds reported on the July 20, 2010 Board of Zoning Appeals (BZA) meeting.   
 
Items addressed: 
 Renewal, Boys & Girls Club, 3670 John R, granted. 
 Variance, 2397 Vermont Drive, granted. 
 Variance, 6163 Livernois, granted. 
 Variance, 4938 Adams Pointe Court, granted. 
 Variance, 2891 Iowa, granted. 
 Variance, Detroit Meeting Rooms, 3586 Adams Road, denied. 

 
 

6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 
 
Mr. Savidant reported on the August 18, 2010 Downtown Development Authority (DDA) 
meeting.   
 
Items discussed: 
 Big Beaver Design Guidelines, presented by Planning Consultant. 
 Role of DDA with respect to current economic climate. 

 
 
7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 

 
Mr. Savidant made the following meeting announcements: 
 
 September 8, 2010 Joint Meeting with Birmingham, 7:00 p.m., Birmingham 

Department of Public Services. 
o ‘Revised’ Transit Center Preliminary Site Plan Review / Approval. 
o Site Plan available for public view in Planning Department; hard copies to be 

distributed to Planning Commission members next week. 
 October 4, 2010 Joint Meeting with Troy City Council, immediately following Regular 

City Council Meeting (7:30 p.m.), Troy City Hall, Lower Level Conference Room. 
o Economic development initiatives. 
o Current business climate, including how it relates to the re-write of the Zoning 

Ordinance. 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – FINAL AUGUST 24, 2010 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 
8. SPECIAL USE APPROVAL AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File 

Number SU 382) – Proposed The Barkshire, North of Maple, West of Crooks (1501 
Temple City Drive), Section 29, Currently Zoned M-1 (Light Industrial) District  
 
Mr. Branigan presented a summary of the revised Planning Consultant report, dated 
August 18, 2010.  He noted the key differences between the previous plan and the 
recently submitted revised plan are the elimination of the five (5) parking spaces 
along the east façade and the addition of four (4) parking spaces in the main 
parking lot.  Mr. Branigan noted the petitioner is requesting a parking reduction of 
eleven (11) spaces.   
 
Mr. Branigan further addressed the revisions proposed with respect to liquid waste 
management and voiced support of the changes.  He said the petitioner addressed 
all deficiencies noted in the original Planning Consultant report. 
 
[Mark Vleck arrived 7:45 p.m.] 
 
Mark Farlow of Victor Saroki & Associates, 430 N. Old Woodward, Birmingham, 
was present.  Mr. Farlow said they met with City staff members and they are 
confident the revised site plan demonstrates marked improvements as relates to the 
parking and liquid waste management. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Ullmann said the liquid waste management proposed does not adequately 
address the concerns expressed by the Planning Commission.  He addressed the 
treatment of soil and the City’s high water table and clay soil.  Mr. Ullmann said the 
two issues are nutrients and the potential for pathogens.  Mr. Ullmann also 
addressed a concern with the bacteria buildup on the proposed Astroturf.  He 
expressed support of the proposal but would like to see liquid waste management 
handled in a more appropriate manner. 
 
Mr. Savidant briefly compared a recently approved site plan application for Pet Suite 
Retreat with respect to liquid waste management.  He noted that a significant 
amount of the waste is contained and served by the sanitary sewer by providing a 
covered area for the dogs prior to their release to the outdoors. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – FINAL AUGUST 24, 2010 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Steven Sorensen of Professional Engineering Associates, 2430 Rochester Court, 
Troy, was present.  Mr. Sorenson addressed in detail the proposed liquid waste 
management, and covered the following: 
 

 Comparison to recently approved site application for Pet Suite Retreat. 
 Creation of a large septic field. 
 Sand and aggregate storage for infiltration. 
 Sump pump to capture layers under Astroturf; alleviate water saturation. 
 Soil borings to be determined in future. 
 Control of potential contamination of ground water. 
 Runoff water to gravel area. 

 
Mr. Ullmann addressed concerns with the potential to contaminate ground or 
surface water.  He requested that the Resolution take into consideration biological 
concerns to eliminate contamination of ground or surface water.   
 
Mr. Savidant confirmed that the petitioner met with the City’s engineering staff and 
arrived at the workable solution presented on the revised site plan.  He assured 
Planning Commission members that the Engineering Department would have the 
opportunity to address and correct any potential concerns at the time of Final Site 
Plan approval. 
 
Mr. Sanzica expressed concerns with the volume of water in the storage area.  He 
stated that soils must be determined and studied further for appropriate action, 
which could be done by the City’s Engineering Department at the time of Final Site 
Plan approval. 
 
Mr. Savidant suggested that the Resolution can be inclusive of engineering design 
considerations or conditions on approval. 
 
Mr. Sorensen said the petitioner is agreeable to providing a relief area for the dogs, 
similar to Pet Suite Retreat, if that is the desire of the Planning Commission. 
 
Resolution # PC-2010-08-     
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Strat 
 

WHEREAS, The Planning Commission hereby approves a reduction in the 
number of required parking spaces for the proposed commercial kennel to 14 
when a total of 25 spaces are required on the site based on off-street parking 
space requirements, as per Article XL.  This 11-space reduction is justified 
through a comparison of parking spaces provided for similar uses in the area, as 
outlined in the Parking Analysis prepared by PEA.  Furthermore, this reduction 
will allow for additional pervious surface throughout the site. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – FINAL AUGUST 24, 2010 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary 
Site Plan Approval for the proposed The Barkshire commercial kennel, located 
north of Maple, west of Crooks on 1501 Temple City Drive, Section 29, within the 
M-1 zoning district, be granted. 
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Vleck offered the following amendment to the motion on the floor. 
 
Resolution # PC-2010-08-060 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Strat 
 

RESOLVED, To amend the motion on the floor to condition approval on the 
underground aggregate area (the drainage) will be connected to the sanitary 
sewer system. 
 
Discussion on the amendment on the floor. 
 
Mr. Sanzica said he would like to see no stormwater connected to the sanitary 
sewer and runoff directed away from the relief area.  He suggested developing a 
separate stormwater system for the remainder of the site because it is illegal to 
drain stormwater into the sanitary storm system. 
 
Mr. Vleck proposed to revise the amendment on the floor to include that no runoff 
will be directed into the aggregate infiltration area. 
 
Mr. Strat did not support the revision to the amendment on the floor.  He 
indicated it is the role of the City Engineering Department to address these 
concerns.   
 
Vote on the amendment on the floor, as originally offered. 
 
Yes: Strat, Ullmann, Vleck 
No: Edmunds, Hutson, Maxwell, Sanzica, Schultz, Tagle 
 
MOTION (AMENDMENT) FAILED 
 
Mr. Vleck offered the following amendment to the motion on the floor.  
 
Resolution # PC-2010-08-061 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Ullmann 
 
RESOLVED, To amend the motion on the floor to condition approval on the 
underground aggregate areas (main areas that will be used for the evacuation 
centers) will be connected to the sanitary sewer system and with the design 
recommendation that no additional runoff will be directed to the aggregate infiltration 
areas. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – FINAL AUGUST 24, 2010 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

Vote on the amendment on the floor. 
 
Yes: Edmunds, Maxwell, Sanzica, Ullmann, Vleck 
No: Hutson, Schultz, Strat, Tagle 
 
MOTION (AMENDMENT) CARRIED 
 
Vote on the motion on the floor, as amended. 
 
Resolution # PC-2010-08-062 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Strat 
 

WHEREAS, The Planning Commission hereby approves a reduction in the 
number of required parking spaces for the proposed commercial kennel to 14 
when a total of 25 spaces are required on the site based on off-street parking 
space requirements, as per Article XL.  This 11-space reduction is justified 
through a comparison of parking spaces provided for similar uses in the area, as 
outlined in the Parking Analysis prepared by PEA.  Furthermore, this reduction 
will allow for additional pervious surface throughout the site. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary 
Site Plan Approval for the proposed The Barkshire commercial kennel, located 
north of Maple, west of Crooks on 1501 Temple City Drive, Section 29, within the 
M-1 zoning district, be granted, subject to the following condition: 
 
1. That the underground aggregate areas (main areas that will be used for the 

evacuation centers) will be connected to the sanitary sewer system; and 
 
2. With the design recommendation that no additional runoff will be directed to 

the aggregate infiltration areas. 
 

Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

 
STUDY ITEM 

 
9. COMPREHENSIVE ZONING ORDINANCE REWRITE (ZOTA 236) – Discussion 

with Representatives from Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
 
Mr. Branigan gave an overall review of the draft language for Article 20 - Form-
Based Districts, addressing: 
 

 Section 20.01 General Purpose and Intent 
 Section 20.02 Applicability and Organization 
 Section 20.03 Big Beaver District 

 
Planning Commission members were encouraged to forward comments to the 
Planning Department for discussion at future meetings. 





 

1 

SPECIAL JOINT MEETING OF THE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM  
PLANNING BOARD AND CITY OF TROY PLANNING COMMISSION  

ACTION ITEMS OF SEPTEMBER 8, 2010 
 

Item 
 

Page 

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 
1. Construction of Amtrak platform, public plaza, parking, 

pedestrian tunnel and sidewalks to access the rail platform in 
Birmingham and to link to the Transit Center building in Troy 

 
      Motion by Mr. Williams 
Seconded by Mr. DeWeese on behalf of the Birmingham Planning Board 
to grant Preliminary Site Plan Approval as requested for the proposed 
Troy/Birmingham Intermodal Transit Facility with respect to property 
located within the City of Birmingham, including that portion of the 
property which comprises the tunnel between Troy and Birmingham. 
  
Motion carried, 6-0. 
 
 

2. 1251 Doyle Drive, Troy, MI: Construction of multi-modal transit 
center, parking facility, pedestrian tunnel and sidewalks to 
access the rail platform in Birmingham and to link to the 
platform in Birmingham 

 
      Motion by Mr. Schultz 
Seconded by Mr. Hutson that the Troy Planning Commission recommends to 
the City Council Preliminary Site Plan Approval as requested for the proposed 
Troy/Birmingham Intermodal Transit Facility located south of Maple Rd. and 
west of Coolidge in Section 31 within the M-1 Zoning District and controlled by 
Consent Judgment be granted.   
 
Motion withdrawn. 
 
      Amended by Mr. Edmunds 
Seconded by Mr. Tagle that the previous (withdrawn) resolution be 
granted subject to the following design considerations: 

1. Prior to final approval, conduct a design workshop with members 
of the Planning Commission, the Planning Board, the Hubbell, 
Roth & Clark team and staff from the Cities of Birmingham and 
Troy.  The goal of the workshop would be to discuss and 
incorporate further design enhancements into the plans for 
improved aesthetics and functionality of the project.  In general, 
the enhancements will address: 
 Building façade articulation to create a greater visual 

 
2 
 
 
 

8 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

pallottaba
Text Box
N-01f



Birmingham-Troy Planning Proceedings 
September 8, 2010 

 

 

 

2 

Item 
 

Page 

interest; 
 A more identifiable building entrance; 
 Enhancing the sense of arrival by focusing on a major point 

of interest; 
 Establishing visual interest with human-scale elements at 

the building; 
 Creating transitional features between the building, the 

ground plane and retaining wall; and 
 Offering additional, cost effective, sustainable design 

features. 
 The workshop shall be scheduled so that the results of the 

workshop can be a part of what is presented to the Troy City 
Council and Birmingham’s Planning Board for Final Site Plan 
Approvals. 

 
2. The project shall be developed so that the construction cost does 

not exceed the approved funding amount. 
 

Motion carried, 4-3. 
 

8 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

            



 

1 

 
SPECIAL JOINT MEETING OF THE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM  

PLANNING BOARD AND CITY OF TROY PLANNING COMMISSION  
WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 8, 2010 

Conference Room, Department of Public Services Building 
851 S. Eton, Birmingham, Michigan 

 
 
Minutes of the special joint meeting of the Birmingham Planning Board and Troy 
Planning Commission held September 8, 2010. Birmingham Chairman Robin Boyle 
convened the meeting at 7:01 p.m. 
                                                                                                                                        
Birmingham Planning Board 
 
Present: Chairman Robin Boyle; Board Members Scott Clein, Carroll DeWeese, 

Bert Koseck, Gillian Lazar, Bryan Williams; Student Representative Aaron 
Walden  

 
Absent:  Board Member Janelle Whipple-Boyce 
 
Birmingham Administration: Matthew Baka, Planning Intern 
     Jana Ecker, Planning Director 
     Carole Salutes, Recording Secretary 
 
Troy Planning Commission 
 
Present: Chairman Michael Hutson; Commission Members Donald Edmunds, Mark 

Maxwell, Robert Schultz, Thomas Strat, John Tagle, Lon Ullmann 
 
Absent: Commission Members Philip Sanzica, Mark Vleck 
 
Troy Administration: Mark Miller, Acting City Manager/ Economic Development 

Services 
    Christopher Forsyth, Asst. City Attorney 
    Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
    Steve Vandette, City Engineer 
 
Also Present 
 
Walter Alix, Hubbell, Roth & Clark 
Sally Elmiger, Carlisle/Wortmen Associates, Inc. 
Jim Epping, JEP Partners 
Michael MacDonald, Hubbell, Roth & Clark 
James Surhigh, Hubbell, Roth & Clark 
Larry Ancypa, Hubbell, Roth & Clark 
 



 

 2 

09-151-10 
 

CHAIRPERSON’S COMMENTS AND INTRODUCTION OF GUESTS 
 
Chairman Boyle explained this joint meeting is only a part of the process of approving a 
multi-modal transit center.  The plan will eventually move forward to the councils in 
Birmingham and Troy for their final approval.  He went on to welcome members of the 
public including students from Wayne State University. 
 

09-152-10 
 
REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE JOINT MEETING OF JULY 
14, 2010 
 
Mr. Williams: 
Page 6 -  First partial paragraph, last sentence should read that they do have 

“consent” of the property owners rather than “control.” 
 
REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE JOINT MEETING OF JULY 
27, 2010 
 
Mr. Schultz: 
Page 2 - Ms. Quincey’s name is misspelled. 
 
Mr. Walden: 
Page 1 - He was marked as present when he was not. 
 
Motion by Mr. Schultz 
Seconded by Mr. Williams to approve the Minutes of July 14 and July 27, 2010.  
 
Motion carried, all were in favor. 
 

09-153-10 
 
REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA (no changes) 
 

09-154-10 
 
MEETING OPEN TO THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA (no one 
spoke) 
 

09-155-10 
 

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 



 

 3 

1. Construction of Amtrak platform, public plaza, parking, pedestrian tunnel 
and sidewalks to access the rail platform in Birmingham and to link to the Transit 
Center building in Troy  

Property within Birmingham: 
(A) PROPOSED NORTHERN APPENDAGE PARCEL, TO BE SPLIT OFF OF THE 

BIRMINGHAM SCHOOL PROPERTY AND PURCHASED BY CITY. (AS SURVEYED) 
PART OF LOT 164, BIRMINGHAM GARDENS, AS RECORDED IN LIBER 31 ON PAGE 38 OF PLATS, 

OAKLAND COUNTY RECORDS, AND ALSO PART OF THE NORTHEAST ¼ OF SECTION 31, TOWN 2 

NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST, CITY OF BIRMINGHAM, OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN, MORE PARTICULARLY 
DESCRIBED AS: BEGINNING AT THE NORTH ¼ CORNER OF SAID SECTION 31; THENCE S. 01° 59' 10" 

W. 701.82 FEET; THENCE S 88° 11' 20" E. 36.00 FEET TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 1 OF 
"ASSESSOR'S PLAT NO. 28, BEING A REPLAT OF PART OF LOT 169 OF BIRMINGHAM GARDENS AND A 

PLAT OF PART OF THE N.E. ¼ OF SECTION 31, T.2N., R.11E., CITY OF BIRMINGHAM, OAKLAND 
COUNTY, MICHIGAN", LIBER 43, PAGE 50, OAKLAND COUNTY RECORDS; THENCE S. 01° 59' 10" W. 

1,278.38 FEET ALONG THE EASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF ETON ROAD (WIDTH VARIES) TO A 

POINT AT THE NORTHEAST INTERSECTION OF SAID ETON ROAD AND HOLLAND AVENUE (50 FEET 
WIDE), 

ALSO BEING THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 9 OF SAID ASSESSOR'S PLAT NO. 28; THENCE S. 88° 
15' 29" E. 604.19 FEET ALONG THE NORTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF HOLLAND AVENUE TO THE 

SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 9 OF SAID ASSESSOR'S PLAT NO. 28; THENCE N. 01° 53' 01" E. 621.11 

FEET TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 1 OF SAID ASSESSOR'S PLAT NO. 28, SAID POINT ALSO 
BEING A CORNER OF ETON STREET STATION II CONDOMINIUM PLAN NO. 1678, LIBER 34405, PAGE 

578 - 665, OAKLAND COUNTY RECORDS; THENCE ALONG THE PERIMETER OF SAID ETON STREET 
STATION II FOR TWO (2) COURSES: 1). 44.04 FEET ALONG A NON-TANGENT CURVE TO THE LEFT, 

SAID CURVE HAVING A RADIUS OF 22,661.83 FEET, A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 00° 06' 41", A CHORD 
LENGTH OF 44.04 FEET AND A CHORD BEARING OF N. 31° 39' 31" W.; 2). N. 58° 13' 52" E. 99.79 FEET 

TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, SAID POINT ALSO BEING A CORNER OF SAID ETON STREET STATION 

II; THENCE ALONG THE PERIMETER OF SAID ETON STREET STATION II FOR FOUR (4) COURSES: 1). N. 
31° 31' 34" W. 80.22 FEET, 2). N. 57° 32' 30" E. 52.11 FEET; 3). N. 11° 54' 39" W. 114.49 FEET; 4) N. 

19° 00' 45" W. 116.00 FEET TO A POINT ON THE RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF GRAND TRUNK WESTERN 
RAILROAD; THENCE ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE S. 30° 43' 58" E. 304.96 FEET; THENCE S. 59° 

24' 46" W. 57.75 FEET; THENCE S. 60° 25' 16" W. 53.74 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

CONTAINING 15,111 SQUARE FEET OR 0.35 ACRES, MORE OR LESS 
 

(B) PROPOSED SOUTHERN APPENDAGE PARCEL TO BE SPLIT OFF OF THE 
BIRMINGHAM SCHOOL PROPERTY AND PURCHASED BY CITY. (AS SURVEYED) 

A PARCEL OF LAND LOCATED IN THE NORTHEAST ¼ OF SECTION 31, TOWN 2 NORTH, RANGE 11 

EAST, CITY OF BIRMINGHAM, OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS: 
BEGINNING AT THE NORTH ¼ CORNER OF SAID SECTION 31; THENCE S. 01° 59' 10" W. 701.82 FEET; 

THENCE S 88° 11' 20" E. 36.00 FEET TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 1 OF "ASSESSOR'S PLAT 
NO. 28 BEING A REPLAT OF PART OF LOT 169 OF BIRMINGHAM GARDENS AND A PLAT OF PART OF 

THE N.E. ¼ OF SECTION 31, T.2N., R.77 E., CITY OF BIRMINGHAM, OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN", 
LIBER 43 PAGE 50, OAKLAND COUNTY RECORDS; THENCE S. 01° 59' 10" W. 1,278.38 FEET ALONG THE 

EASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF ETON ROAD (WIDTH VARIES) TO A POINT AT THE INTERSECTION 

SAID ETON ROAD AND HOLLAND AVENUE (50 FEET WIDE), SAID POINT ALSO BEING THE SOUTHWEST 
CORNER OF LOT 9 OF SAID ASSESSOR'S PLAT NO. 28; THENCE S. 88° 15' 29" E. 604.19 FEET TO THE 

SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 9 OF SAID ASSESSOR'S PLAT NO. 28; 
THENCE S. 02° 29' 25" W. 16.90 FEET; THENCE S. 87° 53' 30" E. 396.57 FEET ALONG THE NORTH LINE 

OF "ASSESSOR'S PLAT NO. 28-B, BEING A REPLAT OF LOTS 11 & 12 OF ASSESSOR'S PLAT NO. 28, 

BEING A REPLAT OF PART OF LOT 169 OF BIRMINGHAM GARDENS AND A PLAT OF PART OF THE NE. 
1/4 OF SECTION 31, T.2N., R77 E., CITY OF BIRMINGHAM, OAKLAND COUNTY MICHIGAN," LIBER 64, 

PAGE 10, OAKLAND COUNTY RECORDS, TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE N. 15° 59' 00" E 
117.21 FEET; THENCE S. 18° 59' 54" EAST 182.57 FEET; THENCE ALONG A CURVE TO THE LEFT 239.09 



 

 4 

FEET, SAID CURVE HAVING A RADIUS OF 1,564.10 FEET, A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 08° 45' 30"; A CHORD 

LENGTH OF 238.86 FEET AND A CHORD BEARING OF S. 23° 22' 39" E.; THENCE S. 27° 47' 20" E. 218.21 
FEET; THENCE N. 67° 00' 00" W. 47.75 FEET; THENCE ALONG A CURVE TO THE LEFT 515.19 FEET, 

SAID CURVE HAVING A RADIUS OF 22,661.83 FEET, A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 01° 18' 09" A CHORD 
LENGTH OF 515.17 FEET AND A CHORD BEARING OF N. 28° 18' 13" W. TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, 

SAID CURVE ALSO BEING THE EASTERLY LINE OF LOT 1 OF SAID ASSESSOR'S PLAT NO. 28-B. 

CONTAINING 23,605 SQUARE FEET OR 0.54 ACRES, MORE OR LESS 
 

(C) PARENT PARCEL 2 PER TITLE INFORMATION REPORT S-378832-1-125 SU 
(EDGEMERE ENTERPRISES' PROPERTY) PARCEL ID NO. 20-31-203-024 
A PART OF THE NORTHEAST ¼ OF SECTION 31, TOWN 2 NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST, IN THE CITY 
OF BIRMINGHAM, OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS: 
COMMENCING AT A POINT ON THE NORTH LINE OF SAID SECTION 31; THENCE NORTH 88 
DEGREES 12 MINUTES 00 SECONDS WEST, ALONG SAID NORTH SECTION LINE TO THE NORTH 
¼ CORNER OF SAID SECTION; THENCE SOUTH 31 DEGREES 18 MINUTES 02 SECONDS EAST 
1442.06 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, SAID POINT BEING ON THE WESTERLY LINE OF 
THE GRAND TRUNK WESTERN RAILROAD THE FOLLOWING TWO COURSES BEING ALONG THE 
WESTERLY LINE OF SAID RAILROAD; 1) SOUTH 30 DEGREES 34 MINUTES 07 SECONDS EAST 
416.60 FEET; AND 2) SOUTH 28 DEGREES 10 MINUTES 17 SECONCS EAST 385.25 FEET; 
THENCE SOUTH 62 DEGREES 42 MINUTES 03 SECONDS WEST 134.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 
18 DEGREES 59 MINUTES 17 SECONDS WEST 272.01 FEET; THENCE ALONG A CURVE TO THE 
LEFT 403.53 FEET, SAID CURVE HAVING A RADIUS OF 1907.31 FEET, CENTRAL ANGLE OF 12 
DEGREES 07 MINUTES 20 SECONDS AND LONG CHORD BEARING OF NORTH 25 DEGREES 02 
MINUTES 57 SECONDS WEST 402.78 FEET; THENCE NORTH 31 DEGREES 06 MINUTES 37 
SECONDS WEST, 126.48 FEET; THENCE NORTH 59 DEGREES 25 MINUTES 23 SECONDS EAST 
57.75 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 
 
Ms. Ecker highlighted what has gone on since the last couple of meetings.  There was 
consensus both on the part of the Birmingham Planning Board and the Troy Planning 
Commission primarily with regard to where the building would be situated and whether 
there would be elevators.  Further, a consensus building exercise had determined a 
number of other elements.  Therefore, staffs from both cities have been meeting 
extensively with the design team since July 27 and they have re-designed the entire 
building and the entire site based on the comments that were heard from both boards. 
 
They are looking to have the whole project wrapped up within the next two to three 
months in order to have it finalized concurrent with the Federal Railroad Administration’s 
process.   
 
Once everyone around the table is in agreement on the plans, the numbers will be run 
and a cost estimate presented. 
 
Mr. Michael MacDonald reiterated some of the major points that were determined during 
the consensus building exercise as well as in the Vision Statement: 
 Revise the building exterior using traditional materials; 
 Take a fresh look at how the building was laid out; 
 Incorporate elevators into the building on the Troy side; 
 No elevators to be incorporated into the Birmingham side of the project; 
 Revise the vertical element at the building entrance; 



 

 5 

 Revise the platform shelter and canopy so it is more substantial and respects the 
building materials and roof design;  

 Plaza area should compliment the building. 
 
Mr. MacDonald went through slides of the site vicinity map and showed photographs 
taken from different vantage points. 
 
Mr. Larry Ancypa started out by saying that the design team comprised of the City of 
Troy, the City of Birmingham and the technical people from HRC, CWA, and JEP are all 
excited and proud of the new drawings that they have put together.   
 
Key points included in the Vision Statement were: 
 Project should have high visibility; 
 Consideration for future development; 
 The facility should respect the surrounding neighbors; 
 Security is of prime importance centering on the decision that the facility will be 

un-manned; 
 Materials need to be vandal resistant and supportive of the project identity; 
 Users should understand how to circulate through the site; 
 The canopy should visually link both sides of the rail as one comprehensive site. 

 
The Troy/Birmingham facility is currently classified as a small facility with ridership 
exceeding 10,000 per year.  This should grow to a medium size station by the year 
2027 with more than 50,000 riders.   
 
Mr. Ancypa went on to describe significant improvements that have been made to the 
facility: 
 A vestibule was incorporated in the northwest corner to allow the use of the 

elevator if the main portion if the building is locked; 
 The main entrance now has a larger vestibule; 
 Additional seating has been added along the north wall; 
 A second kiosk was moved to the southwest corner of the building; 
 North, east and west elevations better reflect compatibility with the surroundings; 
 Contemporary style, but use of the materials captures a traditional feeling. 

 
Mr. Ancypa explained that Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design (“LEED”) is 
an internationally recognized green building certification program.  Buildings can qualify 
for four levels of certification:  Basic, Silver, Gold, or Platinum.  The Intermodal Transit 
Project has chosen to achieve the Silver Certification level.  Some of the main items that 
the design team has selected are: 
 Green roof; 
 Storm water management; 
 Rain water harvesting; 
 Geothermal for the HVAC; 
 LED lighting; 
 Regional materials; 
 Recycled materials. 



 

 6 

The cost was the determining factor in the selection of the LEED features.  LEED and 
sustainability elements cost more initial dollars to implement than traditional building 
methods.  However, over the life of the structure the sustainable building methods can 
save significant operation and maintenance dollars and return their initial cost in some 
cases many times over. 
 
Mr. Ancypa advised that the platform and canopy carry through the same brick, 
limestone, glass and sloped roof theme established by the building.  This allows for 
linking of the Birmingham side to the Troy side so the overall facility is seen as one 
development as originally stated in the Vision Statement.  A cross-section of the site 
illustrates the massing and how everything fits together on the site. 
 
Mr. James Surhigh went over the site plans for each side of the railroad tracks.  He 
showed slides that described parking including electric vehicle plug-in stations, 
accessibility, circulation, sheltered bus drop-off areas, the pedestrian tunnel, train 
platform, heated sidewalks for snow melt, distances, green site design elements, 
retaining wall elevations, elevator entrance, site lighting with LED fixtures, and the site 
photometrics. 
 
Ms. Sally Elmiger illustrated the site amenities/landscaping.  On the Troy side, the plaza 
incorporates a hardscape compass that will utilize a focal piece of artwork to create an 
arrival zone and gathering area.  The amount of landscaping on the site has been 
reduced, thereby decreasing the cost to install it and to maintain it. The plant materials 
were shown and they will provide four seasons of interest.  Paving patterns point the 
pedestrians to use the cross-walks across Doyle Dr.  Locations for benches and 
receptacles were described.  These site furnishings will be Michigan made.  The bus 
shelters that are proposed are very similar to the bus shelters in Birmingham, but will 
have a different finish.  They will be located at the spot where busses will actually be 
opening their doors.  
 
A compass is also featured on the Birmingham side.  An overlook provides a beefy 
element.  The retaining wall creates a nice weight to the canopy on the Birmingham side 
and it discourages people from walking through the landscaping.  The retaining wall will 
be concrete that is stamped and colored.  Covered bike racks are provided and there is 
a location for artwork that is a focal point to the entrance.   
 
Mr. Williams requested that the video of this hearing be kept in perpetuity in case of a 
dispute as to what was said or not said. 
 
Ms. Lazar received confirmation that there will be a bike path along Doyle Dr. and that  
traffic calming measures along Doyle Dr. will  include raised crosswalks, contrasting 
pavement and signage along the road to warn drivers that there are pedestrians in the 
area. Space on both sides of the tracks for ticket purchase is envisioned. 
 
Mr. Surhigh specified that all the changes they have made will bring the cost down.  Mr. 
Ullmann said it is really important that they not exceed Federal and State grants that are 
already in place. 



 

 7 

 
Mr. Koseck complimented the design team on an incredibly great job.  The retaining 
walls and landscape walls match the building and help to tie everything together.  He 
commented on the plans as follows: 
 Shift the building slightly to the east so it does not focus on a loading dock; 
 Sidewalk along the back of the building could be eliminated.  Mr. Surhigh 

indicated that it serves as an emergency ingress/egress path. 
 Bike rack is almost directly across from the loading dock. He would rather see 

the view to that area buffered by shifting two deciduous trees from another part of 
the site. 

 Two pairs of entry doors are close to one another.  Eliminate one. 
 Placement of the bench against the glass wall hinders visibility into the building.  

Also, the window sill could be lowered so people can look out. 
 Extend the metal canopy out further to cover the sidewalk and offer protection. 
 He misses the tower element because it delineates the destination. 
 Consider brick rather than stamped concrete for the retaining walls.  Brick used 

on the building should be dense and not porous. 
 
Mr. Strat voiced his concern about the slope of the roof and the inability to see the 
green roof from the tracks.  He would rather have seen a flat roof.  Mr. Ancypa indicated 
one of the reasons for the sloped roof is so they could put the elevator inside.  Mr. Strat 
also thought the Kroger dumpster should be screened off.  He agreed with the idea of 
removing the walkway at the rear of the building. 
 
Mr. Tagle commended the design team for listening so well to the comments from the 
last meeting.  Design is a process that needs continued refinement and good 
architecture is made from that. 
 
Chairman Boyle took discussion from the public at 8:45 p.m. 
 
Ms. Dorothy Conrad from Birmingham received confirmation that the tunnel is always 
open.  Ms. Ecker explained the access from Crosswinds to the Birmingham platform for 
her.  Mr. Surhigh said they anticipate that an emergency phone and security cameras 
monitored by the police stations will be located on the platform.  Ms. Conrad asked the 
design team to take a look at the dangerous pedestrian crossing at Doyle Dr. and Maple 
Rd. 
 
Ms. Michelle Hodges who spoke to represent the Troy Chamber of Commerce 
reiterated their gratitude to the group for continuing to keep the process moving forward.  
The business community feels strongly that this is an important part of the solution in 
maintaining economic viability and they will continue their support for the process. 
 
Ms. Denna Kelly from Detroit noticed there is very limited bicycle parking in the plans.  
The bicycle parking that was shown doesn’t accommodate a U-lock which is preferred 
by most bicyclists.  She asked if there are plans for bike lockers.  Mr. Surhigh said the 
proposed bike rack and its use can be modified as they go forward to final design. He 
described the covered bike racks that are proposed and indicated there is room to add 



 

 8 

more racks in the future.  Currently there are 12 bike racks on the Troy side and 6 on 
the Birmingham side.  Ms. Kelly thought they looked like short-term racks that leave 
bicycles susceptible to the elements. 
 
Ms. Alice Thimm from Birmingham received confirmation that the distance from the Troy 
parking lot to the platform is 900 ft. 
 
Discussion of the Birmingham side of the tracks 
 
Chairman Boyle explained this is a Preliminary Site Plan Review.  After that there will be 
a Final Site Plan Review.  Then the plan will go to the Birmingham City Commission 
who will have the final say after the bidding process and contract award. 
 
Mr. Miller noted that the Troy Planning Commission will be invited to the Final Site Plan 
Review.  Mr. Savidant advised that tonight’s decision by the Troy Planning Commission 
will move forward to the Troy City Council for Preliminary Site Plan Approval.  Final Site 
Plan Approval in Troy is administrative. 
 
Chairman Boyle noted that as they go forward through the process there is opportunity 
to pick up some of the points that have been made.  Mr. Schultz added that 
considerations can be applied to the motions. Chairman Boyle thanked the staff and the 
consultants for listening to the public and giving them what was asked for. 
 
Motion by Mr. Williams 
Seconded by Mr. DeWeese on behalf of the Birmingham Planning Board to grant 
Preliminary Site Plan Approval as requested for the proposed Troy/Birmingham 
Intermodal Transit Facility with respect to property located within the City of 
Birmingham, including that portion of the property which comprises the tunnel 
between Troy and Birmingham. 
  
There were no comments from members of the public at 9:01 p.m. 
 
Motion carried, 6-0. 
 
ROLLCALL VOTE: 
Yeas:  Williams, DeWeese, Boyle, Clein, Lazar, Koseck 
Nays: None 
Absent:  Whipple-Boyce 
 
Discussion of the Troy side of the tracks 
 
Motion by Mr. Schultz 
Seconded by Mr. Hutson that the Troy Planning Commission recommends to the City 
Council Preliminary Site Plan Approval as requested for the proposed Troy/Birmingham 
Intermodal Transit Facility located south of Maple Rd. and west of Coolidge in Section 
31 within the M-1 Zoning District and controlled by Consent Judgment be granted. 
 



 

 9 

Amended by Mr. Edmunds 
Seconded by Mr. Tagle that the previous resolution be granted subject to the 
following design considerations: 

1. Prior to final approval, conduct a design workshop with members of the 
Planning Commission, the Planning Board, the Hubbell, Roth & Clark team 
and staff from the Cities of Birmingham and Troy.  The goal of the 
workshop would be to discuss and incorporate further design 
enhancements into the plans for improved aesthetics and functionality of 
the project.  In general, the enhancements will address: 
 Building façade articulation to create a greater visual interest; 
 A more identifiable building entrance; 
 Enhancing the sense of arrival by focusing on a major point of 

interest; 
 Establishing visual interest with human-scale elements at the 

building; 
 Creating transitional features between the building, the ground plane 

and retaining wall; and 
 Offering additional, cost effective, sustainable design features. 

 The workshop shall be scheduled so that the results of the workshop can 
be a part of what is presented to the Troy City Council and Birmingham’s 
Planning Board for Final Site Plan Approvals. 

 
2. The project shall be developed so that the construction cost does not 

exceed the approved funding amount. 
 
Mr. Edmunds confirmed that the results of the workshop would be presented to City 
Council before their final action on it. 
 
Mr. Schultz withdrew his original motion and Mr. Hutson withdrew his second to that 
motion. 
 
Mr. Hutson said City Council won’t take this up unless they overrule their 
recommendations.  He would like to get it there immediately without having a workshop 
that would delay the process. 
 
Vote on the amendment now considered to be the main motion: 

 
Motion carried, 4-3. 
 
ROLLCALL VOTE: 
Yeas: Ullmann, Tagle, Edmunds, Strat  
Nays: Hutson, Maxwell, Schultz 
Absent: Sanzica, Vleck 
 



 

 10 

Mr. Forsyth confirmed by looking at the Planning Commission Bylaws, Article 4, Section 
7, that a majority of those present at a meeting shall be necessary for those matters in 
which the Planning Commission serves in an advisory capacity, thus the motion passes. 
 

09-156-10 
 
MEETING OPEN TO THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA (no one spoke) 
 

09-157-10 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
No further business being evident, meeting adjourned at 9:15 p.m. 
 
      Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
      Jana Ecker 

 Planning Director 
 City of Birmingham 
 
 
 
 Brent Savidant 

Acting Planning Director 
 City of Troy  



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             SEPTEMBER 13, 2010  

 Page 1 of 5 

 
A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, 
September 13, 2010 in the Lower Level Room of Troy City Hall, 500 West Big 
Beaver Road.  Chairman Max K. Ehlert called the meeting to order at 6:58 p.m. 
 
 
Roll Call 
 
 PRESENT:  Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
    W. Stan Godlewski 
    Patrick C. Hall 
    Andrew Kaltsounis 
    Bohdan L. Ukrainec 
     
 ABSENT:  David S. Ogg 
    Timothy P. Payne 
 
 ALSO PRESENT: Officer James Feld  

Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Dane Lepola, student representative 

    Pat Gladysz 
 
 
Resolution to Excuse Committee Members Ogg & Payne 
 
Resolution #LC2010-09-022  
Moved by Hall 
Seconded by Ukrainec 
 
RESOLVED, That the absence of Committee members Ogg & Payne at the Liquor 
Advisory Committee meeting of September 13, 2010 be EXCUSED. 
 
Yes:  5 
No:  0 
Absent: Ogg, Payne 
 
 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of August 9, 2010 Meeting 
 
Resolution #LC2010-09-023 
Moved by Hall 
Seconded by Ukrainec 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the August 9, 2010 meeting of the Liquor 
Advisory Committee be APPROVED. 

pallottaba
Text Box
N-01g



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             SEPTEMBER 13, 2010  

 Page 2 of 5 

Yes:  5 
No:  0 
Absent: Ogg, Payne 
 
 
 
Agenda Items 
 
1. Marico, Inc. , 645 East Big Beaver Road  Troy, MI 48083 (Big Beaver 

Tavern) requests New Outdoor Service (1 Area) to be held in conjunction 
with 2010 Class C Licensed Business with Dance Permit, Entertainment 
Without Dressing Rooms, and 2 Bars {MLCC Req. #565601}. 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was Mark Larco.  Mr. Larco 
explained to the Committee that a fenced outdoor patio has been constructed on 
the west side of the building.  The area will seat 25-30 patrons and will be serviced 
by the interior bar.   
 
Officer Feld advised the Committee that there was no research that determined 
that this request should not be approved. 
 
Resolution #LC2010-09-024 
Moved by Kaltsounis 
Seconded by Ukrainec 
 
RESOLVED, That the Liquor Advisory Committee recommends that the request of 
Marico, Inc., 645 East Big Beaver Road  Troy, MI 48083 (Big Beaver Tavern) for a 
New Outdoor Service (1 Area) to be held in conjunction with 2010 Class C 
Licensed Business with Dance Permit, Entertainment Without Dressing Rooms, 
and 2 Bars be APPROVED. 
 
Yes:  5 
No:  0 
Absent: Ogg, Payne 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             SEPTEMBER 13, 2010  

 Page 3 of 5 

Informational Items 
 
Officer Feld advised the Committee on the following: 
 
Quantity of Class C/SDM Licenses in Troy 
 58 Class C 
   9 Class C/Resort 
   3 Class B/Hotel 
 27 Class C/SDM  
 
Violations at CVS 
The following is a violation history for sales to minors at 4963 John R: 
 07/19/10 
 02/21/08 
 05/03/07 
 07/25/00 
 
Directed Patrol Unit Decoy Operation 
The Police Department’s Directed Patrol Unit recently performed compliance 
checks of licensed establishments within the City.  Three sale-to-minor violations 
occurred:  (1) Kroger at 1237 North Coolidge Highway; (2) Camp Ticonderoga at 
5725 Rochester Road; and (3) Mr. B’s at 3946 Rochester Road. 
 
Inventory Verification  
It has not been decided who in the City will conduct $250,000 inventory verification 
on retail establishments with SDM licenses.  Also, the frequency of these 
inspections has not been determined.  Assistant City Attorney Lancaster stated 
she will check with the Building Department as to their involvement. 
 
Smoker’s Express 
City Council accepted the Liquor Advisory Committee’s recommendation and 
denied the applicant’s request for an SDM license.  The applicant indicated he will 
appeal to the MLCC. 
 
Numan Troy, Inc.  
This business indicates it is still interested in pursuing the SDM license.   
 
Space Station of Troy, Inc. 
This business indicates it is still interested in pursuing the SDM license.   
 
Square Lake Diner, LLC  
This business has purchased a liquor license from Pontiac.   
 
Simbad, Inc.   
This business is changing the hours of food service. 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             SEPTEMBER 13, 2010  

 Page 4 of 5 

Mr. Bootleg Pizza, Inc.  
This was merely a paperwork issue and the matter has been resolved.   
 
Embassy Suites 
MLCC Hearing is scheduled for 09/20/10 at 11:00 a.m. at the Sterling Heights 
Civic Center, 40555 Utica Road, Sterling Heights for the disturbance on 12/31/09.   
 
Capital Grille  
This business is requesting an outdoor service area. 
 
 
 
Additional Items 
 
October Meeting 
There was a brief discussion regarding scheduling next month’s meeting for 
October 4, 2010 instead of October 11, 2010. 
 
Resolution #LC2010-09-025 
Moved by Ehlert 
Seconded by Hall 
 
RESOLVED, That the Liquor Advisory Committee meeting be scheduled for 
October 4, 2010 instead of October 11, 2010 and this change is APPROVED. 
 
Yes:  5 
No:  0 
Absent: Ogg, Payne 
 
 
 
Assistant City Attorney Lancaster advised the Committee that research was done 
after a clothing store at the Somerset Collection was observed serving champagne 
to their customers.  Ms. Lancaster stated that our City criminal ordinance prohibits 
serving alcohol in a public place.  The alcohol service would be allowed if the 
business was closed for a private event.  Officer Feld stated he planned to visit the 
store and inform them of the City ordinance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             SEPTEMBER 13, 2010  

 Page 5 of 5 

The meeting adjourned at 7:25 p.m. 
 
  
    
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
 
 
 
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Patricia A. Gladysz, Secretary II 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT SEPTEMBER 14, 2010 
  
 
 

1 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Hutson at 7:30 p.m. on September 14, 2010, in the Council Chamber of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Donald Edmunds Mark J. Vleck 
Michael W. Hutson 
Mark Maxwell 
Philip Sanzica 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Lon M. Ullmann 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Zachary Branigan, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2010-09-063 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Ullmann 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as prepared. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Vleck 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
Resolution # PC-2010-09-064 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Sanzica 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the August 24, 2010 Special/Study meeting 
as prepared. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

pallottaba
Text Box
N-01h



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT SEPTEMBER 14, 2010 
  
 
 

2 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 

5. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 964) – Proposed Walmart 
Store Expansion, South of Maple and West of Crooks (2001 W. Maple Road), 
Section 32, Currently Zoned M-1 (Light Industrial) District (Consent Judgment) 
 
Mr. Savidant apologized to members that hard copies of the site plan were not 
delivered to the members prior to the meeting. 
 
Mr. Branigan presented a summary of the Planning Consultant report on the 
proposed Preliminary Site Plan application.  He addressed: 
 Site and façade improvements. 
 Building additions. 
 Impervious surface. 
 Parking requirements. 
 Parking reduction. 
 Parking analysis conducted by OHM and CESO. 
 Recommending body to City Council. 

 
Robert Matko of CESO Engineers & Surveyors, 8164 Executive Court, Lansing, 
was present.  Mr. Matko introduced project members:  Steve Engelhart (Engelhart 
Realty), Patrick McCune (Kimco Realty), Tyler Tennent (DMMS), Jim Gallagher 
(pb2 Architecture).  Mr. Matko addressed parking lot improvements, façade 
upgrades and internal modifications.  He projected the construction time to be 
approximately 8 to 10 months, and indicated both stores would remain open during 
construction. 
 
Jim Gallagher of pb2 Architecture, Rogers, Arkansas, addressed building materials.  
Mr. Gallagher said EFIS is proposed for Marshall’s and trespa panels are proposed 
for Walmart, of which a material sample was circulated among members.  Mr. 
Gallagher also addressed accommodations for the physically challenged.   
 
Mr. Matko addressed stormwater management.  He said the grading plan shows no 
changes to the existing basin because the existing basin is more than adequate to 
handle the stormwater on site. 
 
Mr. Sanzica recommended consideration of stormwater quality as it enters the 
retention basin. 
 
Mr. Matko said stormwater quality would be addressed during final site plan review 
by the Engineering Department. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT SEPTEMBER 14, 2010 
  
 
 

3 
 

There was a brief discussion on the appropriate recommending body for the 
proposed parking space reduction. 
 
Resolution # PC-2010-09-065 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, The Planning Commission hereby recommends approval of a 
reduction in the number of required parking spaces for the proposed Walmart 
expansion to 1,128 when a total of 1,203 spaces are required on the site based on 
off-street parking space requirements, as per Article XL.  This 75-space reduction is 
justified through the application of ITE methodologies, as outlined in the Parking 
Analysis prepared by CESO, and further analyzed using ULI methodologies in the 
review letter prepared by OHM. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends 
that Preliminary Site Plan Approval, pursuant to Section 03.40.03 of the Zoning 
Ordinance, as requested for the proposed Walmart expansion, located south of 
Maple and west of Crooks (2001 W. Maple Road), in Section 32, within the M-1 
zoning district, be granted, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. Design consideration that stormwater quality issues be considered for the 

existing site. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

STUDY ITEMS 
 

6. COMPREHENSIVE ZONING ORDINANCE REWRITE (ZOTA 236) – Discussion 
with Representatives from Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
 
Mr. Branigan gave a status report on the completion of the Zoning Ordinance 
rewrite.  He indicated Article 20, Form Based Codes, would be discussed at the 
next meeting. 
 
Mr. Branigan reviewed Article 10, Planned Unit Development, and addressed the 
following changes:   
 Number of Public Hearings required.  
 Process simplification.  
 Authority to Zoning Administrator to waive certain information and materials. 

 
A brief discussion followed. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT SEPTEMBER 14, 2010 
  
 
 

4 
 

Mr. Branigan reviewed Article 13, Landscaping, and addressed the following: 
 Percentage of site area required to be landscaped (Section 13.07 A). 
 Green incentives (vegetative roof, reduction in turf grass). 
 Table 13.1 – Reference table for tree types. 
 Low impact stormwater development. 
 Natural landscape (Section 13.13). 
 Maintenance schedule and enforcement. 

 
A brief discussion followed. 
 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 
7. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 
8. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 

 
There was discussion around the table on the following: 
 
 Troy/Birmingham Intermodal Transit Facility. 
o Memorandum distributed by the City Manager, dated September 14, 2010. 
o Consideration of Preliminary Site Plan Approval by City Council at their 

September 20, 2010 meeting.  Two recommendations going forward to City 
Council.  
 Recommendation by City Management to approve Preliminary Site Plan 

as submitted because the application meets all Zoning Ordinance 
requirements. 

 Recommendation by Planning Commission to approve Preliminary Site 
Plan with design considerations, and a design workshop held prior to final 
approval.  

 Zoning Ordinance Rewrite. 
o Stormwater management and quality. 
o Relationship of stormwater management to Planning Department/Planning 

Commission. 
o Engineering design standards. 
o Green incentives. 

 Michigan Association of Planning (MAP) Conference, Detroit. 
o Budget monies available. 
o Contact Planning Department for assistance. 

 
Mr. Maxwell addressed maintenance and care of residential lawns. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT SEPTEMBER 14, 2010 
  
 
 

5 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 8:57 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Michael W. Hutson, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2010 PC Minutes\Draft\09-14-10 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – DRAFT SEPTEMBER 21, 2010 
 
 

1 
 

The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting was called to order by Chair Lambert at 7:30 p.m. on 
September 21, 2010, in the Council Chamber of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Michael Bartnik 
Glenn Clark 
Kenneth Courtney 
Donald L. Edmunds 
William Fisher 
A. Allen Kneale 
David Lambert 
 
Also Present: 
Paul Evans, Zoning Compliance Specialist 
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – July 20, 2010 
 
Resolution # BZA 2010-09-038 
Motion by Edmunds 
Support by Clark 
 

MOVED, To approve the July 20, 2010 Regular meeting minutes as prepared. 
 

Yes: All present (7) 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

3. HEARING OF CASES 
 
A. VARIANCE REQUEST, WILLIAM GEORGE AND LINDA BULL, 987 EMERSON – 

In order to enlarge the existing garage, 1) a 3.5 foot variance to the minimum 10 foot 
side yard setback and 2) an 8.5 foot variance from the requirement that the 
combined total setback for both side yards is at least 25 feet. 
 
Mr. Evans gave a brief report on the proposed variance with respect to its location 
and zoning of adjacent properties and briefly addressed the requested setback 
variances.  Mr. Evans announced that prior to the beginning of tonight’s meeting, the 
petitioner provided floor plans and an elevation drawing to further clarify the 
appearance of the addition should the variance be granted. 

pallottaba
Text Box
N-01i



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – DRAFT SEPTEMBER 21, 2010 
 
 

2 
 

The petitioner, William George and Linda Bull, were present.  Mr. and Mrs. Bull said 
situating the garage to the side of the house would preserve their beautifully 
landscaped backyard with a pond and garden.  Mrs. Bull said they would like to keep 
the view of their backyard from their glassed-in dining area, and not look at a 
garage.  They indicated their intent to utilize the existing garage as living space. 
 
Mr. Edmunds confirmed, upon inspection, that the home is beautifully landscaped.  
He said that should the variance be granted, the neighbor closest to the proposed 
garage would still be considerably at a distance because the home is situated on a 
double lot. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak.  Chair Lambert noted the petitioner submitted signed 
documentation from three neighbors indicating support of the variance request.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # BZA 2010-09-039 
Motion by Courtney 
Support by Edmunds 
 

MOVED, To grant the variance request. 
 

Preliminary Findings: 
• That the variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• That the variance does not permit the establishment of a prohibited use within a 

zoning district. 
• That the variance does not create an adverse effect on the neighbors. 
 

Special Findings: 
• Conformity would ruin the backyard and that is not a desired effect. 
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Clark inquired if the house closest to the proposed garage, 991 Emerson, is 
situated on a double lot.   
 
Mr. Evans could not confirm that 991 Emerson is a double lot, but he indicated the 
lot it is clearly larger than other lots in the area, and that the setback of that house 
from the adjoining lot line is well over 10 feet.   
 
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
 

MOTION CARRIED 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – DRAFT SEPTEMBER 21, 2010 
 
 

3 
 

B. VARIANCE REQUEST, WAYNE AND JEAN PURSELL, 4912 MOONGLOW – In 
order to cover the existing deck with a screened porch, an 8.2 foot variance to the 
required 45 foot rear yard setback.  
 
Mr. Evans gave a brief report on the proposed variance with respect to its location 
and zoning of adjacent properties and briefly addressed the requested setback 
variance.  Mr. Evans said the floor plans and elevations provided by the petitioner 
indicate the appearance of the proposed construction. 
 
The petitioner, Jean Pursell, was present.  Ms. Pursell addressed the intended use 
of the screened porch.  She said there is written support from three neighbors, as 
well as supporting documentation from the Architectural Review Committee of the 
Oak River Subdivision. 
 
David Hattis, contractor for the project, of 14895 Almont, Allenton, was present.  Mr. 
Hattis said he would be installing a roof and screens on the existing porch.   
 
Mr. Bartnik noted the Homeowners Association placed a condition on its approval 
that future use of the proposed structure shall be limited to an un-insulated screened 
porch.  Ms. Pursell said she has no plans to insulate the porch or turn it into an 
addition to the house.  She had no objection to place that same condition on the 
approval of a variance. 
 
Mr. Hattis said it would not be feasible to turn the porch into living quarters without a 
substantial amount of construction.   

 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak.  Mr. Lambert noted communications on file are the 
recommendation from the Homeowners Association Architectural Review 
Committee, and a letter of support from the neighbor to the south. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # BZA 2010-09-040 
Motion by Bartnik 
Support by Courtney 
 

MOVED, To grant the variance request. 
 

Preliminary Findings: 
• That the variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• That the variance is not calling for a prohibitive use within the zoning district. 
• That the variance does not appear to cause an adverse effect to the immediately 

adjacent properties. 
 

Special Findings: 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – DRAFT SEPTEMBER 21, 2010 
 
 

4 
 

• Conforming is unnecessarily burdensome, given the size, location and 
configuration of this particular piece of property.   

• Approval is conditioned on the requirement that the future use is an un-insulated 
screened porch. 

 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Bartnik addressed his reasoning in making the motion.  He said it appears the 
nature of the request relates to the property’s open space and the particular 
requirements of the petitioner.     
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
C. VARIANCE REQUEST, JOSEPH MANIACI, MONDRIAN PROPERTIES WESTON 

DOWNS LLC, VACANT SITES AT 694, 702 AND 710 SEABISCUIT AND 3901, 
3909, 3925, 3933 AND 3941 APPALOOSA (WESTON DOWNS) – In order to 
construct 8 detached condominium units, a variance to allow the minimum distance 
between buildings to be no less than 10 feet.  Chapter 31.30.00 (L) of the Zoning 
Ordinance allows no less than a 20 foot minimum distance between buildings. 
 
Mr. Evans gave a brief history of the site condominium development.  He indicated 
that the petitioner is currently going through the preliminary site plan review process 
to receive approval to build the remaining units as single family detached units.  Mr. 
Evans addressed the flexibility of the Planning Commission approval with respect to 
minimum distances between buildings.  He indicated that the petitioner has provided 
elevations and floor plans.  In response to Board member questions, Mr. Evans said 
there is no change in the number of units and noted it would be best to confirm with 
the petitioner on occupancy status of the completed units.  
 
The petitioner, Joe Maniaci of Mondrian Properties, 50215 Schoenherr, Shelby 
Township, was present.  Mr. Maniaci gave a brief history of the development, from 
its origination in 2002.  He indicated the project was very successful up until the 
recent economic downtown, and they are now revisiting the site with the intent to 
complete the project and meet the obligation of creditors. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – DRAFT SEPTEMBER 21, 2010 
 
 

5 
 

Mr. Maniaci addressed the marketing strategy of detached condominiums versus 
attached condominiums.  He indicated detached condominiums have a greater 
appeal to a larger variety of people, and they are unable to construct the current 
units as originally planned due to the existing market conditions.  He briefly 
addressed ownership role and responsibility of detached condominiums, impact on 
property values and maintenance costs.  Mr. Maniaci said they have the ability to 
construct six units without the variance but it is their desire to build out the project 
completely.   
 
Mr. Maniaci addressed the following items: 
• Square footage. 
• Distance between buildings. 
• Open space. 
• Individual condominium units in relation to distances between buildings.  
• Occupancy of existing units (all built, sold and occupied). 
• Architecture (blend with original development). 
• Garage design (side or front entrance). 
• Reputation of Mondrian Properties. 
• Economic impact on sale prices (original sale prices ranged from $400,000-

$500,000; later unit sale prices ranged from $275,000-$280,000). 
• Maintenance costs currently shared by 16 homeowners; it is projected that owner 

costs will be lower if among 24 units. 
 
Mr. Maniaci, a member of the three-member Association Board, said a board 
meeting was held to present the proposal.  He said all homeowners were notified of 
the meeting.  The Board was in favor of the proposal, and homeowners in 
attendance voiced no objections at that time. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Janet Martin of 3912 Old Creek was present.  Ms. Martin voiced a concern with 
existing water problems and the potential to increase those problems with the 
development of units 710, 702 and 694. 
 
Karen Allen of 3886 Appaloosa was present.  She voiced objection to the proposed 
development.  Ms. Allen addressed property values, the number of remaining units 
to be constructed, and the appearance differences from the original plan to the 
proposed plan.  
 
Dave Schuit 3942 Appaloosa was present.  He voiced objection to the proposed 
development.  Mr. Schuit addressed property values, marketing strategy of attached 
units and appearance change of overall development than what was originally 
presented at the time he bought his unit.  He said he would rather pay a higher 
monthly maintenance fee going forward than put in single family units. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – DRAFT SEPTEMBER 21, 2010 
 
 

6 
 

Mr. Bartnik referenced the board meeting that was held wherein there were no 
objections heard, and it appears that eight homeowners are in favor or do not care 
one way or another and seven are against the proposal.     
 
Mr. Schuit said homeowners were hit cold with the proposal that night and did not 
have time to think about it.  He said those homeowners who paid $280,000 for their 
condominiums probably do not care what goes in, and a few homeowners have their 
units on the market hoping to sell.   
 
Chair Lambert said communications received on the item comprise of a formal letter 
from a Wattles Creek Condominium owner, a petition signed by seven neighbors in 
opposition and four email messages, one in favor and three opposed.     
 
Ms. Bluhm stated that no outside agreements should be considered in the Board’s 
determination.  She noted that consideration should be given to the impact on 
neighboring properties and documentation presented to the members this evening. 
 
Mr. Maniaci thanked homeowners for coming to the meeting tonight.  He addressed 
the condominium documents which allow the developer to present site alterations 
and request City approval.  He said they must consider other options because they 
cannot economically build as originally planned.  Mr. Maniaci addressed the 
architecture and density of the development.  He said it is not their intent to devalue 
property values but to try to increase them. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked the petitioner what option he would go with, higher density or 
construction of six units, should the Board deny the variance request.   
 
Mr. Maniaci replied they would have to go back and review numbers.  He said it 
could very likely be decided to go with the higher density and build smaller units 
(1200 to 1400 square feet).  Mr. Maniaci confirmed that any revisions would have to 
go back before the Planning Commission for approval, and noted that a 
development of higher density would meet all Zoning Ordinance requirements.  Mr. 
Maniaci addressed the impact of distances unit by unit should the variance request 
receive approval. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Evans responded to Janet Martin who identified a water problem during the 
Public Hearing.  He advised Ms. Martin that the City Engineering Department would 
be happy to work with her on a resolution to the existing water problem.   
 
Mr. Clark addressed concerns presented by both the homeowners and developer.   
 
Mr. Evans reviewed the Site Plan Review process and Board of Zoning Appeals 
approval process for variance requests.   



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – DRAFT SEPTEMBER 21, 2010 
 
 

7 
 

Mr. Edmunds asked Mr. Evans if he is aware of any condominium developments 
with units as closely distanced as the proposed plan.   
 
Mr. Evans replied he is not prepared to answer because he conducted no research 
on to that respect.   
 
Ms. Bluhm advised the Board members of the following: 
• Variance requests could be determined individually, in which case, separate 

motions should be entertained. 
• Economics cannot be considered in the decision. 
• Practical difficulty must be demonstrated. 
• Determination should be made whether conditions are unique to the property not 

shared by other properties, whether there are reasonable alternatives and 
whether conditions are self-created. 

• Consideration should be given to impact on the neighbors; not necessarily from a 
financial aspect. 

• Developer is not required to construct on the vacant lots.  The impact of vacancy 
on the neighboring properties could be considered. 

• The developer may wish an opportunity to revise the plan before the Board 
makes an action; in which case, tabling the item is a consideration.   

 
Mr. Courtney said he is not in favor of the variance request because of the close 
proximity between units.   
 
Mr. Kneale said he is not very much in favor of the variance request.  He suggested 
a hybrid plan (a “Plan C”) that might be more palatable. 
 
Mr. Bartnik said he is struggling with the economic impact on the neighbors of 
attached units versus detached units.  He noted that units 6, 7 and 8 are most 
severely affected by the variance request.   
 
Chair Lambert said a clear presentation of hardship on the part of the petitioner was 
not presented, other than economic.  He suggested that the item be delayed to the 
next meeting to allow the petitioner an opportunity to arrive at an alternate plan that 
might accommodate both the developer and homeowners. 
 
Resolution # BZA 2010-09-041 
Motion by Courtney 
Support by Clark 
 

MOVED, To table the item until the next regular meeting.  
 

Yes: Clark, Courtney, Fisher, Kneale, Lambert 
No: Bartnik, Edmunds  
 

MOTION CARRIED 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – DRAFT SEPTEMBER 21, 2010 
 
 

8 
 

Mr. Evans announced the item would be placed on the October 19, 2010 Regular 
meeting agenda.   
 
The petitioner was asked to address the following concerns at the next meeting: 
 

• What is the adverse economic effect on the neighbors and how would property 
values be affected should development (1) continue with detached units; (2) 
change some or all units to attached units, and (3) leave some or all units vacant.   

• Clarification of a practical difficulty with the land.   
• Impact on neighborhood and property values with respect to varying square 

footage of detached and attached condominium units.  
• Address real hardship.  
 
 

 
D. VARIANCE REQUEST, YACOUB MURAD, VACANT LOT ADJACENT TO AND 

EAST OF 734 AMBERWOOD – In order to build a new house, 1) a 5 foot variance 
from the required 10 foot side yard setback, and 2) a 15 foot variance from the 
required 45 foot rear yard setback. 
 
Mr. Evans gave a brief report on the proposed variance with respect to its location 
and zoning of adjacent properties and briefly addressed the requested setback 
variance.  He noted that the property is adjacent to a dedicated outlot for drainage 
purposes.  Mr. Evans said the petitioner has provided an elevation drawing and floor 
plans of the proposed home.   
 
Nathan Robinson of Horizon Engineering, P.O. Box 182158, Shelby Township, was 
present to represent the petitioner.  Mr. Robinson stated that the petitioner currently 
resides at 685 Amberwood Court and also owns the vacant subject property.  He 
would like to construct a home for his family of a size that satisfies the needs of his 
family, but the preliminary design of the house does not fit on the lot.  Mr. Robinson 
addressed the uniqueness of the lot with respect to its bordering on two sides by a 
permanent easement for drainage purposes.  He addressed setbacks on the east 
and south sides.  He noted that there is no neighbor to the rear (south) and a 
substantial setback would remain to the neighbor to the east.   
 
Mr. Courtney asked how much square footage would be lost should the petitioner 
build a home that fits on the lot and would require no variance.   
 
Mr. Robinson said he did not calculate square footage.  He assured that the overall 
width and depth of the structure would not exceed overall lot coverage.   



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – DRAFT SEPTEMBER 21, 2010 
 
 

9 
 

Mr. Courtney asked if a completely different house design would fit on the lot.   
 
Mr. Robinson replied most likely, but noted that the house design is one of a custom 
home and has been a work in progress for the petitioner.   
 
Mr. Bartnik asked if the overhang on the second floor is part of the variance request.   
 
Mr. Robinson said he did not show cantilevers on the plan, and does not recall if 
they would be allowed within the side setbacks. 
 
Mr. Evans said it would be required to meet side setbacks.   
 
Mr. Robinson said he would remove the cantilevers.   
 
Mr. Clark asked if the covered concrete patio is within the proposed backyard 
setback.   
 
Mr. Robinson replied in the affirmative.  He said the concrete patio is basically a 
masonry extension of the house.  Mr. Robinson said it would be required to be within 
the setback because it has a footing and is covered. 
 
Mr. Clark asked how much depth there would be if the covering for the patio was 
removed.   
 
Mr. Robinson replied approximately 8 to 10 feet.  He said approximately 10 feet 
would remain to the main rear line of the house. 
  
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak.  Chair Lambert noted that there are no objections to 
the proposed variance request on file. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
There was a brief discussion on the temporary closing of Amberwood in relation to 
the driveway.  It appears there would be no effect because the driveway is on the 
other side of the property.   
 
There was a brief discussion on the height of the house.  Mr. Robinson indicated he 
was not certain of the height but assured the Board members that it would fit within 
the building envelope and meet all Zoning Ordinance requirements.   
 
Mr. Clark said a practical difficulty has not been clearly demonstrated.  He said the 
proposed home is very beautiful and is beautifully situated on the lot, but he does 
not understand what the Board should be looking at with respect to a practical 
difficulty. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – DRAFT SEPTEMBER 21, 2010 
 
 

10 
 

Mr. Edmunds agreed, noting he sees very little practical difficulty.  He said it appears 
that a very substantial home could be built on the lot that would require no 
variances.   
 
 
Resolution # BZA 2010-09- 
Motion by Clark 
Support by Kneale 
 

MOVED, To deny the variance request based on the fact there appears to be no 
apparent practical difficulty with the land. 
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
After a brief discussion, Board members were amenable to postpone the item to 
provide the petitioner an opportunity to come back before the Board with a slightly 
reduced floor plan. 
 
Resolution # BZA 2010-09-042 
Motion by Courtney 
Support by Kneale 
 

MOVED, To substitute the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution # BZA 2010-09-043 
Motion by Courtney 
Support by Kneale 
 

MOVED, To postpone the item to the next regular meeting. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

4. COMMUNICATIONS 
 
Chair Lambert announced the following communications: 
• Memorandum from City Manager and Staff regarding 2062 Charnwood. 
• Michigan Association of Planning Annual Conference, Detroit. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – DRAFT SEPTEMBER 21, 2010 
 
 

11 
 

There was a brief discussion on budget monies available for training purposes. 
 

 
5. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS 

 
Chair Lambert welcomed Ms. Bluhm. 
 
Ms. Bluhm suggested that agendas in the future be inclusive of a section titled “Public 
Comment” in order to meet the requirement of the Open Meetings Act.   
 
There were brief comments around the table on available training courses. 
 

 
6. ADJOURNMENT 

 
The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting adjourned at 9:22 p.m. 
 
 

 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
David Lambert, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
G:\Board of Zoning Appeals Minutes\Draft\09-21-10 BZA Meeting_Draft.doc 

 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS STUDY SESSION MEETING – DRAFT SEPTEMBER 21, 2010 
 
 

1 
 

The Board of Zoning Appeals Study Session meeting was called to order by Chair Lambert at 
9:35 p.m. on September 21, 2010, in the Council Chamber of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Michael Bartnik 
Glenn Clark 
Kenneth Courtney 
Donald L. Edmunds 
William Fisher 
A. Allen Kneale 
David Lambert 
 
Also Present: 
Paul Evans, Zoning Compliance Specialist 
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 

2. TRAINING PROGRAM FOR BOARD MEMBERS – Presented by Lori Grigg Bluhm, City 
Attorney 
 
Ms. Bluhm conducted a training session for the Board members and identified the role 
and responsibility of Board members.  Ms. Bluhm distributed a Board of Zoning Appeals 
(BZA) reference manual and highlighted the following topics: 
 
• Rules of Procedure 
• Select Provisions from Troy Zoning Ordinance 
• State Statute Provisions (Zoning Enabling Act) 
• Standard for Non-Use Variances 
• Motion Format 
• MML Zoning of Appeals Handbook 
• Open Meetings Act (OMA) 
• Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) 
 
A question and answer session followed. 
 
 

3. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting adjourned at 10:45 p.m. 
 
 

pallottaba
Text Box
N-01j



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS STUDY SESSION MEETING – DRAFT SEPTEMBER 21, 2010 
 
 

2 
 

 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
David Lambert, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
G:\Board of Zoning Appeals Minutes\Draft\09-21-10 BZA Study Session Meeting_Draft.doc 
 



ELECTION COMMISSION MINUTES – Draft September 23, 2010 
 
A meeting of the Troy Election Commission was held September 23, 2010, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road. City Clerk Bartholomew called the Meeting to order at 8:00 AM. 

ROLL CALL:  
PRESENT:  Timothy Dewan, Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
ABSENT:  David Anderson 

Minutes: Regular Meeting of June 24, 2010  
 
Resolution #EC-2010-09-010 
Moved by Dewan 
Seconded by Bartholomew 
 
RESOLVED, That the Election Commission hereby APPROVES the minutes of June 24, 
2010 as presented. 
 
Yes:  Bartholomew, Dewan 
No:  None 
Absent: Anderson 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

Approval of Election Inspector Assignments – Tuesday, November 2, 2010 
General Election 
 
Resolution #EC-2010-09-011 
Moved by Dewan 
Seconded by Bartholomew 

 
RESOLVED, That the Election Commission hereby APPOINTS Election Inspectors for 
the Tuesday, November 2, 2010 Primary Election as presented by the City Clerk. 
 
Yes:  Bartholomew, Dewan 
No:  None 
Absent:  Anderson 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

Adjournment:  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:03 AM. 
 
 
 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC  
City Clerk 

pallottaba
Text Box
N-01k



pallottaba
Text Box
N-02a





















pallottaba
Text Box
N-05





 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

Date:  September 29, 2010 
To:   Members of the Troy City Council      
From:  Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney  
Subject: Library Proposals/ Ordinance Initiative Petition   
______________________________________________________________________________ 
Absentee ballots for the November 2010 election were mailed this week.  In addition, there was a 
recent front page Oakland Press article about a new library petition initiative.  This, combined with the 
public comment at City Council meetings, has prompted several questions to City Administration 
about the library ballot proposals and the proposed ordinance initiative petition.  Since these 
initiatives are citizen driven, and not City sponsored, City Administration is not able to answer many of 
the questions of the residents, and must defer to the petition filer(s), as set forth below.  City 
Administration’s role was to verify that the appropriate number of valid signatures were affixed to the 
petitions, and then to forward the petitions, as received, to the Oakland County Clerk for placement 
on the ballot.   
 
It is apparent that many voters are not sure of the impact of voting on one or all of the four proposals.  
However, the City can only provide procedural guidance to voters.  I expect that in addition to the 
questions received by City Administration, City Council has also received several inquiries, and may 
find the following overview helpful.   
 
Under 1877 PA 164 (MCL 397.210a), citizens can petition for a ballot question to ask the voters 
whether they support a tax to establish a free public library.  Although the statute allows for the tax to 
be up to 2 mills, all four ballot proposals seek under 1 mill to establish a new, independent library.  
The State Statute also requires the ballot question to indicate the duration of the collection of the 
millage, which, in all four cases, is ten years or less.  (One of the proposals, as filed, has an internal 
conflict which references both a three year and a ten year term).  The levy is based on the millage, 
and therefore, the actual amount collected is dependent on the taxable value of property in the City.   
This amount, if approved by the voters, would be segregated and could only be used for library 
operations.  
 
If one or more of the four ballot proposals pass, then a new independent library board (Library Board), 
independent of City Council, must be established.  City Council appoints the initial provisional board, 
based on fitness for office, until the next municipal election.  The elected non-partisan library board 
members would eventually serve six year terms, but the initial terms are set up to accommodate 
staggered terms (2 year, 4 year, and 6 year terms initially).   
 
The Library Board would be responsible for the operation of the library, including the hiring and 
administration of employees, acquisition of property (real and personal), maintenance, etc..  The 
disposition of the library building, contents, and collection would be determined by Council as part of 
the implementation of the successful passage of the ballot question(s).  Council may wish to donate, 
lease, or sell to the Library Board any or all of the above, guided by the best interest of the public.   
 
The City would be responsible to collect the library millage, up to the maximum amount approved by 
the voters and as determined through the Library Board’s budgeting process, just as the City collects 
on behalf of the school district, the county, etc..  The requested amount would be transferred to the 

pallottaba
Text Box
N-06



 

 

2 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

Library Board.  The Library Board does not have any authority to issue bonds or to demand anything 
other than what is approved by the voters.  The Library Board would be subject to the Open Meetings 
Act and the Freedom of Information Act, which provides transparency.   
 
If more than one of the four separate proposals were approved by the voters, it would be my 
recommendation, based on analogous scenarios, that Council direct the collection of the approved 
millage, based on the proposal receiving the highest number of votes.  
 
In addition to these four ballot proposals, a separate initiative petition for an ordinance concerning the 
library was mentioned during the public comment portion of the September 20, 2010 City Council 
meeting.  Although this issue is not a matter for the November 2010 ballot, it has been suggested that 
this proposal is an option in addition to or in place of the four independent library proposals.  Similar 
to the four ballot proposal questions, this petition is not City sponsored.  To the best of my knowledge, 
City Administration has not seen a copy of the petition that is being circulated, nor has it been 
requested, since there are statutory restrictions tied to using City resources for election questions.  
However, it may be beneficial for City Council, as well as members of the public, to be informed about 
this legislative process.  Under Troy's Charter, Section 5.11, citizens can circulate petitions, seeking 
the adoption of a new legislative ordinance.  Any such petition must set forth the entire text of the 
proposed new ordinance, and must be signed by at least 2,000 registered electors of the City within a 
90 day period of time. If such a petition is filed, the City Clerk would verify that the signatory 
requirements are satisfied.  The petition would then be submitted to the Troy City Council for review.  
Under Section 5.12, the City Council has thirty days to either adopt the ordinance as submitted, or 
referred to the voters.  There is a minimum six month period of time where Council would be 
prohibited from amending or repealing an ordinance passed through the initiative process, under 
Charter Section 5.14.   
 
According to one of the speakers at the September 20, 2010 City Council meeting, it appears that the 
petition proposes an ordinance that requires the City to operate a library for 55 hours per week.  State 
Statute limits the initiative process to legislative matters, and does not allow for ballot questions on 
administrative matters.  This distinction between administrative and legislative matters led to a 
Charter Amendment ballot proposal in November 2005, seeking authority for advisory ballot 
questions.  If filed, City Council would determine if the proposal meets the legislative criteria.  Council 
could decide to place an administrative proposal on the ballot as a non-binding advisory question.     
 
Declaratory actions may also be initiated.  These are lawsuits asking for a Court ruling for clarity or 
procedural guidance, as opposed to a lawsuit seeking monetary damages  
 

According to the Petition Receipts of Filing, the following individuals filed the ballot question petitions:   
 
Library Millage Proposal 1 –  Rhonda Hendrickson 
Library Millage Proposal-   William M. Redfield 
Library Millage Proposal-  Kathleen O’Loughlin 
Library Millage Proposal-  Robert D. Outland 
 
Additional filing information is available a the City Clerk’s Office.  


	AGENDA: October 4, 2010
	COVER MEMO
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET
	ROLL CALL:
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:
	C-1 Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations Scheduled
	Presentation given by Marla J. Larsen-Williams, Real Estate Specialist with the United States Postal Service regarding Troy’s Main Post Office Property


	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	D-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	E-1 No Public Hearings Scheduled

	PUBLIC COMMENT:
	RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT
	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	H-1 No Postponed Items

	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	I-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees:
	I-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: None Scheduled
	I-3 Request for Closed Session – None Requested
	I-4 Winter Maintenance Agreement – Road Commission for Oakland County (RCOC)
	I-5 Consulting/Professional Services Agreement with the International City Management Association (ICMA)

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	J-1a Approval of “I” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	J-1b  Address of “I” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council
	J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Proposed
	J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:
	Standard Purchasing Resolution 5: Approval to Expend Budgeted Funds

	J-5 Application for New SDM License for San Marino Club, Inc.
	J-6 Announcement of Public Hearing for October 18, 2010 – Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 2011 Application

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: No Announcements Forwarded
	K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at  some future point in time): No Memorandums Forwarded

	COUNCIL REFERRALS:
	L-1  No Council Referrals Advanced

	COUNCIL COMMENTS
	M-1   No Council Comments Advanced

	REPORTS
	N-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Library Advisory Board – Final – June 10, 2010
	Board of Zoning Appeals – Draft – July 20, 2010
	Board of Zoning Appeals – Final – July 20, 2010
	Liquor Advisory Committee Minutes – Final – August 9, 2010
	Planning Commission Special/Study Meeting – Final – August 24, 2010
	Planning Commission/Birmingham Planning Board Special/Joint - Draft – September 8, 2010
	Liquor Advisory Committee – Draft – September 13, 2010
	Planning Commission Regular Meeting – Draft – September 14, 2010
	Board of Zoning Appeals – Draft – September 21, 2010
	Board of Zoning Appeals/Study Session – Draft – September 21, 2010
	Election Commission – Draft – September 23, 2010

	N-2 Department Reports:
	2010 Third Quarter Litigation Report

	N-3  Letters of Appreciation: No Letters of Appreciation
	N-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Forwarded
	N-5  Communication from the State of Michigan Public Service Commission Regarding  Notice of Hearing for the Natural Gas Customers of The Consumers Energy  Company –  Case No. U-16441
	N-6  Library Proposals / Ordinance Initiative Petition

	STUDY ITEMS
	O-1  No Study Items

	CLOSED SESSION:
	P-1 None Requested

	ADJOURNMENT




